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Lloyds TSB Bank ple

Directors' report

Results and dividends

The consolidated income statement on page 7 shows
a profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2006 of £2,916 million An
interm dividend of £602 million for the year ended
31 December 2006 was paid on 2 October 2006
A second intenim dividend of £1,325 mithon will be
paid on 2 May 2007

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries provide a wide range of
banking and financial services through branches and
offices in the UK and overseas

Business review
Profit before tax for the Lloyds TSB Bank Group was
£4,282 million, an increase of £428 million, or
11 per cent, compared with £3,854 million in 2005,
profit attnbutable to equity shareholders was
£412 millicn {or 16 per cent) higher at £2,916 million
compared with £2,504 million 1n 2005, and the
post-tax return on equity increased to 25 O per cent
compared with 23 O per cent in 2005 The Lloyds
TSB Bank Group's customer service index {which 1s
based on the results of a customer satisfaction survey
performed monthly for the Lloyds TSB Group by an
external agency} improved to 69 7 per cent from
68 0 per cent in 2005, and the service quality index
(a measure of ‘defects per million opportunities’,
where a ‘defect’ 1s registered whenever there I1s a
failure to defiver a process or product within a certain
time or to the required standard} improved to 4 30
from 4 02 in 2005

In 2006, the Lloyds TSB Bank Group continued
to deliver good levels of earnings growth underpinned
by continued momentum in all divisions The Group’s
strategy to deepen customer relationships at the same
time as improving productivity has led to strong
trading surplus growth of 14 per cent

The Group's Income statement includes
substanttal amounts of income and expenditure
attnbutable to the policyholders of the Group's
tong-term assurance funds, which are consolidated
in order to meet the requirements of accounting
standards These amounts are volalile and can cause
significant vanations 1in net interest income, other
income and insurance claims However they have no
overall effect upon profit aitnbutable to equity
shareholders In addition, the impact of the
implementation of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in 2005, and n particular the
increased use of fair values, has also led to greater
earnings volatlity than was previously the case under
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles In

order to provide a more comparable representation
of underlying business performance, the impact of
these items has been excluded, where appropriate, in
the discussion below

Group net nterest ncome, excluding
Insurance grossing adjustments of £78 million
(2005 £310 mullion}, increased by £99 million, or
2 per cent, compared with 2005 Strong levels of
customer lending growth i Business Banking and
Corporate Markets, and good growth In mortgages,
offset the expected slowdown n the rate of growth n
unsecured personal lending

Operating expenses, exctuding the impact of a
£128 million pension schemes related credit and, in
2005, a £150 million provision for customer redress,
continued to be tightly controlled and increased by
only 2 per cent Significant improvements continued
to be made in processing and operational efficiency
and, over the past 12 months, staff numbers on a
full-ime equivalent basis reduced by 4,167 to
62,630 As a result of this constant focus on
day-to-day operating cost conirol, the cost income
ratio, excluding the pension schemes related credit,
proviston for custormner redress and Insurance grossing
adjustments, mproved to 489 per cent, from
51 7 per cent in 2005

Impairment losses on loans and advances
increased by 20 per cent to £1,555 million
In UK Retail Banking, impairment losses increased by
£127 mion, or 11 per cent, to £1,238 million,
reflecting more customers, with higher levels of
iIndebtedness, experiencing repayment difficulties as
well as higher levels of customer insolvency Towards
the end of 2006 we expenenced some signs of
stabilisation in the rate of our customers filing for
bankruptcy and a slowdown in the rate of growth In
Individual Voluntary Arrangements (IVAs) and whilst
the rate of growth in the number of customers filing for
bankruptcy and IVAs remains a key factor inthe outlook
for retall impairment, we expect that the rate of growth
In the unsecured retail lending impairment charge in
2007 will be significantly lower than that expenenced
n 2006

As expected, the Wholesale and International
Bankng charge for impairment losses on loans and
advances increased by £120 mithon to £308 million,
reflecting lower levels of releases and recoveries in
Corporate Markets than in 2005, and a higher level of
consumer finance lending impairment n the Asset
Finance business Overall asset quality remains good
and the level of new corporate provisions remained at
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a low level in 2006, although we expect a return to
more normal levels of impairment over time

Profit before tax from UK Retall Banking, before
provisions for customer redress, increased by
£5 million to £1,549 milhion, as strong levels of
business growth were partly offset by the impact of
higher impairment losses Increased income from the
Group's mortgage lending and customer deposit
portfolios more than offset the impact of lower levels
of unsecured consumer lending and related insurance
products Total income increased by £137 miilion, or
3 per cent, notwithstanding a significant decrease in
mcome from unsecured creditor surance, whilst
costs fell by 3 per cent As a result, the trading surplus
increased by 8 per cent

Profit before tax from Insurance and Investments,
excluding  volatilty {2006 £410  milhon,
2005 £749 mihon), and strengthening of reserves
for mortality in 2005 (£155 mullion), increased by
11 per cent to £873 million There was a 24 per cent
Increase In the present value of new business
premiums reflecting, in particular, strong growth n
the sales of Open Ended investment Companies
{OEICs) and corporate  pension  products
Bancassurance sales improved significantly and
were 62 per cent higher, including excellent growth
in the sales of OEICs through the branch network and
to Lloyds TSB private banking clients As a result of
improved caprtal efficency and strong sales of
pensions and single premium investments, the life,
pensions and OEICs new business margin increased
to 3 6 per cent, from 3 2 per cent in 2005

In General Insurance, profit before tax excluding
volatihity of £18 milion (2005 £28 million),
increased by 16 per cent to £243 million
Operating income, net of clams, increased by
8 per cent whilst costs fell by 2 per cent Good
progress continues to be made in implementing new
ptatforms for underwnting and claims processes The
claims rato improved to 32 per cent (2005
34 per cent} and the combined ratio relating to the
underwnting business 1mproved to 8O per cent
{2005 81 per cent)

In Wholesale and International Banking, pre-tax
profits increased by £122 mithon, or 8 per cent, to
£1,640 million Income growth of 8 per cent
exceeded cost growth of 4 per cent, leading to a
significant reduction n the cost income ratio to
53 8 per cent The trading surplus increased by
14 per cent There was strong profit growth n
Corporate Markets and Business Banking, while
Asset Finance profit decreased by 13 per cent,

reflecting  higher levels of consumer finance
impairment losses Good progress has continued fo
be made in delivering the strategy to bulld an
integrated wholesale bank for corporate markets,
with a 46 per cent increase in income from cross-
selling in the Corporate Markets business

Shareholders’ equity tncreased by £339 million
to £12,124 million, largely as a result of retained
earnings Risk-weighted assets increased by 8 per cent
to £156 billion reflecting strong growth 1n mortgages
and corporate tending Atthe end of 2006, the nsk asset
rahoswere 9 8 percent fortotal capital and 8 1 percent
for tier 1 capital

Financial nsk management objectives

and policies

Information regarding the financial nsk management
objectives and policies of the Bank and its subsidiary
undertakings, n refation to the use of financial
instruments, 1s given N note 47 on pages 60 to 70

Directors
The names of the directors of the Bank are shown on
page 5

Sir Victor Blank joined the board on 1 March
2006 and Mr M A van den Bergh and Mrs A A Knight
left the board on 11 May 2006 and 31 October
2006, respectively Dr Julus will retire from the board
on 9 May 2007

Directors’ interests

The directors are also directors of Lloyds TSB Group
plc and their interests in the share and loan capital of
Lloyds TSB Group pl¢ and its subsicdhianies are shown
in the report and accounts of that company

Directors’ indemnities

The directors have entered into individual contracts of
indemnity with Lloyds TSB Group plic winch
constitute  ‘qualifying  thard  party  indemnity
provisions’ for the purpeses of the Companies Act
1985 These contracts were n force from 11 May
2006 until the end of the financial year and are
available for inspection at the Bank's registered office

Statement of directors’ responsibihties
The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year Under
that law the directors have prepared the consolidated
and parent company financial statements n
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union The financial statements are required by law to
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give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
parent company and the group and of the profit or loss
of the group for that penod The directors consider
that, in preparing the financial statements on pages 7
to 73, the Bank and the Group have used appropnate
accounting policies, consistently apphed and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates, and that all accounting standards
which they consider applicable have been followed

The directors have responsibility for ensurning
that the Bank and the Group keep proper accounting
records which disclose with reascnable accuracy the
financial position of the Bank and the Group which
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Compames Act 1985 and, as regards
the consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation They have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Bank and the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

A copy of the financial statements 1s placed on
the website of Lloyds TSB Group plc The directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integnty of
statutory and audited information in relation to the
Bank on that website Information published on the
Internet 1s accessible in many countries with different
legal requirements Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdichions

Employees

The Bank 15 committed to providing employment
practices and polictes which recognise the diversity of
our workforce and ensure equality for employees
regardless of sex, race, disabiity, age, sexual
onentation or religtous belief

in the UK, the Bank belongs to the major employer
groups campaigning for equality for the above groups
of staff, including Employers’ Forum on Disability,
Employers' Forum on Age and Stonewall The Bank is
also represented on the Board of Race for Opportunity
and the Equal Opportunites Commussion Our
involvement with these organisattons enables us to
identify and rmplement best practice for our staff

Employees are kept closely nvolved in major
changes affecting them through such measures as
team meetings, briefings, internal communications
and opinion suiveys There are well established
procedures, including regular meetings with
recognised unions, to ensure that the views of

employees are taken into account in reaching
decisions

Schemes offering share options or the
acquisitton of shares are avallable for most staff,
to encourage therr financial involvement in the
Lloyds TSB Group

Policy and practice on payment of creditors
The Bank follows ‘The Better Payment Practice Code’
published by the Department of Trade and Industry
{DTD) regarding the making of payments to suppliers
A copy of the code and information about it may
be obtained from The DTI Publications Ordertine
0845 0150010, quoting ref URN 04/606

The Bank's policy 1s to agree terms of payment
with suppliers and these normally provide for
settlement withen 30 days after the date of the
invotce, except where other arrangements have been
negohiated Its the poficy of the Bank to abide by the
agreed terms of payment, provided the supplier
performs according to the terms of the contract

The number of days required to be shown in
this report, to comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1985, 1s 29 This bears the same
proportion to the number of days in the year as the
aggregate of the amounts owed to trade creditors at
31 December 2006 bears to the aggregate of the
amounts mveiced by suppliers during the year

Auditors and audit information

Each person wha 15 a director at the date of approval
of this report confirms that, so far as the director I1s
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which
the Bank's auditors are unaware and each director
has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken
as a director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Bank's auditors are aware of that information This
confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 234ZA of
the Companies Act 1985

On behalf of the board

A J Michie MM hox
Secretary

22 February 2007
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Lloyds TSB Bank plc

We have audited the conschdated and parent
company financial statements (the ‘financal
statements”) of Lioyds TSB Bank plc for the year
ended 31 December 2006 which compnse the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
and parent company balance sheets, the
consohdated and parent company statements of
changes in eguity, the consolidated and parent
company cash flow statements and the related
notes These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directars' responsibilities for prepanng the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reperting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
are set out In the statement of directors’
responsibilities within the directors’ report

Our responsibility 15 to audit the financial
statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland} This report, including
the optnion, has been prepared for and only for the
Company's members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any cther person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in wnting

We report to you our opinion as to whether the
financial statements give a true and fair view and have
been properly prepared In accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the
consolidated financial statements, Aricle 4 of the
IAS Regulation We also report to you whether, i our
opinion, the information given in the directors’ report
15 consistent with the financial statements

In addition, we report to you If, in cur opinion,
the Company has not kept proper accounting records,
f we have not received all the wnformation and
explanations we require for our audit, or if iInformation
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
ather transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the
annual report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent
with the audited financial statements The other
information comprises only the directors’ report We
consider the implications for our report If we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal

inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur
responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on  Auditng (UK and
Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and
Jjudgments made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's
and Company's ciucumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

We planned and perfermed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanattons which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
wregelanty or error In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements

Cpinion

In our opinion

« the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, of the state of the Group's
affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended,

the parent company financial statements give a true
and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Umion as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of
the state of the parent company's affairs as at
31 December 2006 and cash flows for the year
then ended,

the financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the consolidated financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

» the miormation given in the directors’ report 1s
consistent with the financial statements

(A —

PricewaterhouseCoopers L1

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Southampton

22 February 2007




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Note £ milion £ million

Interest and similar income 14,319 12,592
Interest and similar expense (8,780) (6,920)
Net interest income 4 5,539 5672
Fee and commission income 3,119 2,993
Fee and commission expense {846) (842)
Net fee and commission income 5 2,273 2,151
Net trading income 6 6,331 9,293
Insurance premium INCome 7 4,719 4,469
Other operating income 8 806 1,140
Other income 14,129 17,053
Total iIncome 19,668 22,725
Insurance claims 9 (8,569) (12,186)
Total income, net of insurance claims 11,099 10,539
Operating expenses 10 (5,262) (5,436)
Trading surplus 5,837 5,103
Impairment losses on loans and advances 11 (1,555) (1,299)
Profit on sale and closure of businesses 12 - 50
Profit before tax 4,282 3,854
Taxation 13 (1,262) (1,288}
Profit for the year 3,020 2,566
Profit attributable to minority interests 104 62
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 2,916 2,504
Profit for the year 3,020 2,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements




Ltoyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2006

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note £ millign £ millicn £ million £ mitlion
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 1,898 1,156 1,678 966
ltems in the course of collection from banks 1,431 1,310 1,358 1,256
Trading and other financial assets at farr value
through profit or loss 14 67,928 60,567 8,819 5,924
Derivative financial instruments i5 5,565 5,878 5,665 6,050
Loans and advances to banks 16 40,638 31,655 86,588 86,090
Loans and advances to customers 17 190,135 176,635 106,576 91,759
Available-for-sale financial assets 19 19,178 14,840 3,972 4,503
Investment property 20 4,739 4,260 - -
Goodwill 21 2,377 2,373 8 8
Value of in-force business 22 2,723 2,922 - -
Other intangible assets 23 138 50 37 23
Tax recoverable - - 2 -
Deferred tax asset 36 - - 861 o84
Tangible fixed assets 24 4,252 4,291 1,284 1,243
Investment 1n subsidiary undertakings 25 - - 18,527 16,078
Other assets 26 4,662 5,584 1,966 2,887
Total assets 345,664 311,621 237,341 217,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

The directors approved the financial statements on 22 February 2007

Sir Victor Blank J Enc Daniels Helen A Weir
Carrman Chief Executive Finance Director
| ~
\ WI\
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2006

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005

Note £ millien £ million £ millton £ million
Equity and habilities
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 27 36,394 31,527 44,070 37,973
Customer accounts 28 140,767 131,350 127,938 115,505
Items in course of transmission {o banks 781 658 660 533
Trading and other Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 29 1,184 - 1,184 -
Derwvative financial instruments i5 5,877 6,584 6,405 7,212
Debt secunties in 1ssue 30 54,118 39,346 32,719 31,316
Liabilities ansing from insurance contracts
and participating investment contracts 31 41,602 40,684 - -
Liatnhties ansing from non-participating
investment contracts 32 24,370 21,839 - -
Unallocated surpius within insurance
businesses 33 683 518 - -
Other habilities 34 11,034 9,876 3,280 2,990
Retirement benefit obligations 35 2,462 2,910 1,845 2,206
Current tax habilities 735 536 - 73
Deferred tax habihties 36 1,416 1,170 - -
Other provisions 37 259 368 196 298
Subordinated habilities 38 11,506 12,635 10,281 11,382
Total liabihties 333,188 300,001 228,578 209,488
Equity
Share capital 39 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542
Share prermum account 40 2,960 2,960 2,960 2,960
Other reserves 41 12 40 9 37
Retained profits 42 7,610 6,643 4,252 3,744
Shareholders’ equity 12,124 11,185 8,763 8,283
Minonty interests 352 435 - -
Total equity 12,476 11,620 8,763 8,283
Total equity and habilities 345,664 311,621 237,341 217,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statements of changes in equity

The Group

Attributable to equity shareholders

Balance at 1 January 2005

Movement in avarlable-for-sale financial
assets, net of tax

Movement 1n cash flow hedges, net of tax
Currency translation differences

Net income recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income for 2005
Dividends
Capital invested by minornity shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2005

Movement in available-for-sale financial
assets, net of tax

Movement in cash flow hedges, net of tax
Currency transfation differences

Net income recogrised directly in eqgtity
Profit for the year

Tota! recogrused income for 2006
Dividends

Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders

Balance at 31 DPecember 2006

Share
capital
and QOther  Retained Mtnonty

premium  reserves profits Tota!  nterests Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
4,502 28 6,036 10,566 81 10,647
- 8 - 8 - 8

- 11 - 11 - 11

- {7) 16 9 - 9

- 12 16 28 - 28

- - 2,504 2,504 62 2,566

- 12 2,520 2,532 62 2,594
- - (1,913) (1,913 (37) (1,950)

- - - - 329 329
4,502 40 6,643 11,185 435 11,620
- (31) - (31) - (31)

- 1 - 1 - 1
- 2 (31) (29} {4) (33)
- (28) (31) (59} {4 (63)

- - 2916 2916 104 3,020

- (28) 2,885 2,857 100 2,957
- - (1,918) (1,918) (32) (1,950)
- - - - (151} (151)
4,502 12 7,610 12,124 352 12,476

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statements of changes in equity

The Bank

Aftributable to equity shareholders

Balance at 1 January 2005

Movement In available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Movement in cash flow hedges, net of tax

Currency translation differences

Net iIncome recogrused directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recogrused income for 2005
Oividends

Balance at 31 December 2005

Movement in available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Movement 1n cash flow hedges, net of tax

Currency translation differences

Net income recogmised directly in eguity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for 2006
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2006

Share
capital and Other Retained
premium reserves profits Total
£m £m £m £m
4,502 22 2,896 7,420
- 11 - 11
- 11 - 11
- (7) 25 18
- 15 25 40
- - 2,736 2,736
- 15 2,761 2,776
- - (1,913) (1,913)
4,502 37 3,744 8,283
- (29) - (29)
- 1 - 1
- - (23) {23)
- (28) (23) (51)
- - 2,449 2,449
- (28) 2,426 2,398
- - (1,918) (1,918)
4,502 9 4,252 8,763

The accompanying nates are an ntegral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank pic

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Profit before tax
Adjustments for

Change in operating assets
Change in operating habilities
Non-cash and other items
Tax pad

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from mvesting activities:
Purchase of avallable-for-sale ftnancial assets
Proceeds from sale and matunity of avaltable-
for-sale financial assets

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Additional capital injections to subsidianes
Capital repayments by subsidiaries
Acquisttion of businesses, net of cash acquired
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed

Net cash (used in) generated by investing
activities

Cash flows from financing actmities-
Dwidends paid to equity shareholders
Dividends patd to minonty interests

Interest paid on subordinated habilities
Proceeds from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilibes

Capital element of finance lease rental
payments

Capital invested by minonty shareholders
Repayment of capital to minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

Change In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash egquivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of the financial statements

Note

49a
49h
49¢

49f
49¢

4%9e

49e
49e

49¢e

49e
49

494
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The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mullion £ mullion £ million £ million
4,282 3,854 2,730 3,042
(32,194) (17.084) {21,601) (14,022}
34,164 10,035 21,939 5,896
1,632 4,290 (155} 1,064
{844) (723) (231) (301}
7,040 372 2,682 (4,321}
(23,448} (10,108} (9,917) (8,210)
18,106 10,266 10,353 9,958
(1,724) (1,843) {312) (318)
1,257 1,073 28 46
- - {2,444) (250)
- - 3 350
(20) 27) (8) (4)
936 (4) 936 -
{4,893) (643) (1,361) 1572
(1,918) (1,913) {1,918) (1,913)
(32) (37) - -
(704) {658) {619) (573)
- 1,361 - 810
(509) (232) (509) (232)
- (2) - (2)
- 329 - -
{151) - - -
(3,314) {1,152) {3,046) (1,910}
(148) (20) (147) (20)
(1,315) (1,443) (1,872) (4,679)
26,753 28,196 17,307 21,986
25,438 26,753 15,435 17,307




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting polictes

The consolidated financial statemtents have been prepared in accordance with
International  Financal Reporting Standards ('IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (‘EU)

IFRS comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS 1ssued by the International
Accounung Standards Board ('IASB') and those prefixed IAS 1ssued by the
IASB's predecessor body as well as interpretations 1ssued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body The
EU endorsed version of 1AS 39 Fmnancial instruments Recognition and
Measurement relaxes some of the hedge accounting reguirerments, the Group
has not taken advantage of this relaxation

The financial information has been prepared under the histoncal cost
convention, as medified by the revaluation of investment properbes,
avalable-for-sate financial assets, trading secuniies and certain other
financial assets and habilites at far value through profit or loss and all
denvative contracts

The followang IFRS pronouncements relevant to the Group have been adopted
in these consolidated financial staternents

() Amendment to 1AS 19 Actuanal Gains and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures The Group has not changed its accounting policy for the
recognition of actuanal gains and lesses as a result of this amendment, the

additional disclosures required have been provided in note 35

Amendment to I1AS 39 Fwmancial Instruments Recogmifion and
Measurement - The Fair Value Option This amendment, which was
effective from 1 January 2006, changed the cntena for financial assets to
be designated at far value through profit or loss and permitted financial
habilites meeting certain crnitena to be designated at fair value for the first
time The adoption of these requuements had no effect upon the
classification or valuation of those financial assets that were designated at
fair value through profit or loss prior to 1 January 2006, at 31 December
2006, £1 2 billion of financial habihties for the Group and the Bank had
been designated at inception into this category dunng the year This
change has had no matenal effect upon the Group's iIncome statement

()

() Amendment to 1AS 38 Financig! Instruments Recogmition and
Measurement and IFRS 4 /nsurance Contracts — Financial Guarantee
Contracts Since 1 January 2008, all of the Group's financial guarantee
confyacts have been accounted for as financial instruments This change
has had no matenal effect upon the Group's financial statements

{v} IFRIC Interpretation 4 Deterrruming Whether a2n Arrangement Contains a
lease The Group has reviewed the terms of all contracts potentally
affected by this interpretation, its adoption has had no matenal effect upon
the Group's financial statements

Details of those IFRS pronguncements which will be relevant to the Group but
which were not eflective at 31 December 2006 and which have not been
apphed in prepanng these financial staterments are given in note 50

The accounting policies are set out below

a Consolidation

The assets, labilities and results of Group undertakings {including special
purpose enuttes) are ncluded i the financial statements on the basis of
accounts made up to the reporting date Group undertakings include all entities
over which the Group has the power o govern the financial and operating
policies which generally accompanies a shareholding of more than one half of
the voling nghts The eustence and effect of potenbal voting nghts that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls ancther entity Group undertakings are fully consolrdated from
the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group, they are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs)
and umit trusts where the Group, through the Group's Wife funds, has a
controlling interest are consolidated, the unitholders’ interest 1s reported in other
labtilmes Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses
on transactions between Group companies are elimmated
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1 Accounhting policies {continued)

b Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired entity at the date
of acquisiion Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and 1s tested at least
annually for impawment If an impairment 1s identified the carmpng value of the
goodwill s wntten down immediately through the income statement and is not
subsequently reversed At the date of disposal of a Group undertaking, the
carnang value of attrnibutable goodwill s included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on dispasal except where it has been wntten off directly to reserves in the

past

c Other intangible assets

Other intangble assets compnse capitalised software enhancements and
customer hists Capitalised software enhancements are amortised over pertods
not exceeding five years, being thew eshmated useful lves, using the
straight-ine method Custormer lists are amortised over penods not exceeding
15 years, being their estimated useful lives, in line with the income expected to
anse from those customers and are subject to annual reassessment Al other
intangible assets are reviewed for imparment whenever events or any changes
in circumstances (ndicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable In
the event that an asset's carrying amount 1s determined to be greater than its
recoverable amount, it 15 wnitten down immediately

d Revenue recognition

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
interest-beanng financial instruments, except for those classified at far value
thraugh profit or loss, using the effectve interest method The effective interest
method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a finangial asset or
liabiity and of allocating the interest tncome or interest expense The effective
interest rate I1s the rate that exactly discounts the estmated future cash
payments o receipts over the expected life of the instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter pencd, (o the net camying amount of the financial asset or
financial habiity The effective interest rate 1s calculated on imitial recogrution of
the financial asset or hability, estimatng the future cash flows after considenng
all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses The
calculation includes all amounts paid or received by the Group that are an
integral part of the overall return, direct incrementat transaction costs related to
the acquisition, i1ssue or disposal of a financial instrument and all other
premiums or discounts Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial
assets has been watten down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income
15 recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss (see j)

Fees and commussions which are not an integral part of the effective interest
rate are penerally recogmised when the service has been provided Loan
commitment fees for Ioans that are lkely to be drawn down are deferred
{together with related direct costs} and recognised as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate on the loan Loan syndicabon {ees are recognised as
revenue when the syndicabion has been completed and the Group retains no
part of the loan package for itself or ref2ins a part at the same effective interest
rate for all interest-beanng financial instruments, including loans and advances,
as for the other participants

Revenue recogrution policies specific to Iife assurance and general insurance
business are detailed below (see s)

e Trading secunhes, other financial assets and Labilities at fair vatue through

profit or loss, and available-for-sale financial assets
Debt sectunties and equity shares acquired pnincipally for the purpose of selling
n the short term or which are part of a portiotio which 15 managed for short-
term gains are classified as trading secunties and recogrised in the balance
sheet at their fair value Gains and losses ansing from changes in their fair value
are recogmsed in the income statemnent within net trading income in the penod
in which they occur
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Other financial assets and labihties at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such by management upon inmal recogniion Such assets and
labilities are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value and gains and losses
ansing from ¢hanges in fair value together with interest coupons and dividend
income are recognised 1n the income statement within net trading income in the
period 1n which they occur

Financial assets and labilities are designated as at far value through profit
or loss

« When doing 5o results in more relevant information because erther

— It eminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
ptherwise anse from measunng the assets and labilities or recogmsing
gans or losses on them on a different basis, or

— the assets and habilihes are part of a group which is managed, and its
performance evaluated, on a farr value basis in accordance with a
documented nsk management or investment strategy with management
information also prepared on this basis, or

« Where the assets and habilities contain one or more embedded denvatives
that significantly modify the ¢ash flows ansing under the contract and would
otherwise need to be separately accounted for

The fair values of assets and habilines traded in active markets are based on
current bid and offer prices respectively If the market 1s ot active the Group
establishes a far value by using valuation techniques These include the use of
recent arm's-length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pncing models
and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants

Debt secunties and equity shares, other than those classiied as trading
securities or at fair value through profit or loss, are classified as available-for-
sale and recognised in the balance sheet at their fair value Gains and losses
ansing from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-
sale are recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset 1s either sold,
becomes impaired or matures, at which hme the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised 1n eguity 1S recogrised in the income statement Interest
calculated using the effective \nterest method 1s recognised In the income
statement, dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recegnised n
the income statement when the Group’s night to recerve payment 15 established

Purchases and sales of secunties and other financial assets and liabshities are
recognised on trade date, bemng the date that the Group 1s committed to
purchase or sell an asset Trading secuntes and other financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are inihially secognised at fair value
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are inthially recognised at fair value inclusive
of transaction costs These financial assets are derecognised when the nghts to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership

f Loans and advances to banks and customers

Loans and advances to banks and customers are accounted for at amortised
cost using the effectve interest method, except those which the Group intends
to sell in the short term and which are accounted for at far vatue, with the gains
and losses ansing from changes in therr fair value reflected in the income
statement Loans and advances are imtially recognised when cash 1s advanced
to the borrowers at fair value inclusive of transaction costs Leans and advances
are derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from them have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially 2/l nsks and rewards of
ownership
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The Group has entered into secuntisation and similar transactions to finance
certain loans and advances to customers Such financial assets continue to be
recognised by the Group, together with a correspending hability for the funding
except In those cases where substantially all of the risks and rewards associated
with the assets have been transferred or a significant proportion but not all of
the nsks and rewards have been transferred and the transferee has the ability to
sell the assets when the assets are derecognised in full If a fully proportional
share of all, or of specifically identified, cash flows have been transferred, then
that proportion of the assets is derecognised

g Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are recognised on the
balance sheet where all of the nisks and rewards are retained, the counterparty
labihty 15 included in depesits from banks or customer accounts, as
appropnate Secunties purchased under agreements to resell {‘'reverse repos’)
are recorded as foans and advances to banks or customers, as appropriate The
diffesence between sale and repurchase price 1s treated as interest and accrued
over the Iife of the agreements using the effective interest method Securities
lent to counterparties are also retained 1n the financial statements

Secunhes borrowed are not recogrused in the financial statements, unless these
are sofd to third parties, in which case the abligation to return them 1s recorded
at fair value as a trading hability

h Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

All derivatives are recognised at their far value Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions,
and using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow and options
pricing models, as appropnate Denvatives are carned 1n the balance sheet as
assets when thewr fair value 1s positive and as liabiities when their fair value 1s
negative

The method of recognising the movements in the fair value of the denvatives
depends on whether they are designated as hedging instruments and, if so, the
nature of the item being hedged Dervatives may only be designated as hedges
provided certain strict cntenia are met At the inception of a hedge its terms must
be clearly documented and there must be an expectation that the denivative will
be highly effective in offseting changes in the fair value or cash flow of the
hedged nsk The effectiveness of the hedging relationship must be tested
throughout its Iife and of at any point it 15 concluded that it 1s no longer highly
effective in achieving its objective the hedge relationship 1s terminated

The Group designates certain denvatives as either (1) hedges of the fair vatue
of the interest rate nsk inherent in recognised assets or habilities {fair vatue
hedges), (2) hedges of highly probable future cash flows atinbutable to
recognised assets or liabihties (cash flow hedges), or (3} hedges of net
investments in foreign operations (net investment hedges) These are accounted
far as follows

(1) Farr value hedges

Changes n the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in the sncome statement, together with the changes
In the fair value of the hedged asset or habiity that are attmbutable to the
hedged nsk If the hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting,
changes In the farr value of the hedged nsk are no longer recognised in the
income statement, the adjustment that has been made to the carrying amount
of a hedged item s amortised to the income statement over the perod to
maturity
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(2) Cash flow hedges

The effectve portion of changes n the far value of dervatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognised 1n equity The gainor
loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recognised immedhately in the income
statement Amounts accumulated 1In equity are recycled to the income
statement 1in the perods 1n which the hedged item affects profit or loss
When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets
the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or 0ss existing In equity
at that time remains in equity and 15 recogrused when the forecast transaction is
ulbmately recognised in the income statement When a forecast transaction 1s
no longer expected to occur, the cumudative gamn or loss that was reported in
equity 15 immediately transferred to the income statement

(3) Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similary to
cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge is recognised tn equity, the gain or loss relaing to
the ineffective portion 1s recogmised immediately i the income statement Gains
and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement when
the forergn operation is disposed of

Changes n the far value of any denvative instrument that 1s not part of a
hedging relabonship are recognised immediately i the income statement

Denvatives embedded in financial instruments and insurance contracts {unless
the embedded denvatve 15 itself an insurance contract) are treated as separate
denvatives when thetr economic charactenstics and nsks are not ctosely related
to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not carried at far value
through profit or loss These embedded denvatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recogrised In the income statement

[ Offset

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there 1s a legally enforceable nght of set-off and there 1s an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the hability
stmultaneously

j Impairment of financial assets

(1) Assets accounted for at amortised cost

At each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of one or
more events occurning after imbial recogmition, there 1s chjective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets has become impaired Evidence of
rnpanment may include indications that the borrower or group of borrowers 15
expenencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or
princepal payments, or the fact that the debt 1s being restructured to reduce the
burden on the borrower

If there ts objective evidence that an impairment loss has been ncurred, a
provision 15 established which 15 calculated as the difference between the
balance sheet carrying value of the asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at that asset's onginal effective interest rate For
the Group's portfolios of smaller balance homogenous loans, such as the
residential morgage, personal lending and credit card portfolios, provisions are
calculated for groups of assets taking into account histoncal cash flow
expenence For the Group's other lending portiolios, provisions are established
on a case-by-case basis If an asset has a vantable interest rate, the discount
rate used for measuning the imnpatirment loss 1s the current effective interest rate
The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collaterahised asset or group of assets reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less the costs of obtaining and selling the collateral, whether of
not foreclosure 15 probable
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If there 1s no objective evidence of indradual impaimment the asset 1s included 1n
a group of financial assets with similar credit nsk charactenstics and collectively
assessed for impairment  Segmentation takes into account such factors as the
type of asset, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status
and other relevant factors These characternstics are relevant to the estmation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets as they are indicative of the
borrower's ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated Future cash flows are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and histencal loss expenence
for assets with similar credit nsk characienstcs Histonical loss expenience s
adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of cument
conditions that did not affect the penod on which the histoncal loss expenence
1s based and to remove the effects of conditions in the listoncal penod that do
not extst currently The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estmates and actual loss expenence

If, in a subsequent penad, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the imparment
was recognised, such as an improvement in the borrower's credit rating, the
provision 1s adjusted and the amount of the reversal 15 recogmised i the income
statement

When a loan or advance 1s uncollectable, it s wntten off agatnst the related
provision ance all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent recovenes of amounts
previously wnitten off decrease the amount of impairment losses recorded in the
Income statement

(2) Avallable-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there I1s objective
evidence that an avallable-for-sale financral asset 1s impaired In addition to the
factors set out above, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
asset below its cost 15 considered in determening whether an impasrment loss
has been incurred If an impairment loss has been incurred, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the onginal cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recogrused, 15 rernoved from
equity and recognised In the income statement If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as avallable-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurning after the imparment
loss was recognised, the impanment loss 5 reversed through the income
statement Impawment losses recognised n the Income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the income statement

k Investment property

Property held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation within the
long-term assurance funds 1s classified as investment property Investment
property compnses freehold and long leasehold land and buildings and is
carried in the balance sheet at farr vafue Fair value 1s based on active market
prices, adjusted, f necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
cendition of the specific asset If this information 1s not available, the Group
uses aliernative valuation methods such as discounted cash flow projections or
recent prices on less active markets These valuations are reviewed at least
annually by an independent valuation expert. Investmen! property being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property, or for which the market
has become less active, continues to be measured at fair value Changes in fair
values are recorded in the income statement

| Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less depreciation The value of land
{included tn premises) is not depreciated Depreciabon on other assets 1s
calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the difference between the
cost and the residual value over therr estmated useful lives, as follows

Premises {excluding land)

- Freeholdlong and short leasehold prerises shorter of 50 years or the
remaiming peniod of the lease

— Leasehold improvements shorter of 10 years or the remaining period of the
lease
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Equipment
— Fuxtures and furmshings 10-20 years

— Other equiprment and motor vehicles 2-8 years

The asseis’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If
appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Assets are reviewed for imparrment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carnying amount may not ba recoverable In
the event that an asset's carrying amount 1s determined to be greater than its
recoverable amount it 1s written down immediately

m Leases

(1) As lessee

The leases entered into by the Group are primarily operating leases Operating
lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the penod of the fease

When an operating lease Is terminated before the end of the lease penod, any
payment made to the lessor by way of penalty 1s recognised as an expense In
the penod of termination

(2) As lessor

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases |f the lease
agreements transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, all other leases are classified as operating leases When assets are
subject to finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 15 recogmsed
as a recevable withan loans and advances to banks and custemers Finance
lease income 1s recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment
method (before tax) reflecting a constant penedic rate of return

Operating lease assets are included withsn fixed assets at cost and depreciated
over the life of the lease after taking mto account anticipated residual values
Opesating lease rental income 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease

The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and simular
contracts to determine f they contain a lease which 15 then separately
accounted for

n Investrment in subsidiary undertakings
Investments it subsideanes are camed at histonical cost, less any provisicns for
impairment

o Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being therr 1ssue proceeds net
of transaction costs tncurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method

Preference shares and other instruments which carry a mandatory coupon
or are redeemable on a specific date are classified as financial liabilities
The coupen on these instruments 1S recognised in the income statement as
interest expense

p Pensions and other post retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of post-retrement benefit schemes for its
employees tncluding both defined benefit and defined contnbution pension
plans A defined benefit scheme 15 a pension plan that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receve on retrement, dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of sernce and salary A defined contnbution
plan 1s a pension plan tnto which the Group pays fixed contnbutions, there s no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contnbutions
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Full actuanal valuations of the Group's principal defined benefit schemes are
cammed oul every three years with internim reviews m the interverung years, these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independent
actuartes, o in the case of the Scotish Widows Retirernent Benefits Scheme, by
a qualfied actuary employed by Scottish Widows For the purposes of these
annual updates scheme assets are included at thewr fair value and scheme
habeities are measirred on an actuarial basts using the projected il credit
method adjusted for unrecognised actuanal gains and losses The defined
benefit scheme labilities are discounted using rates equivalent to the market
yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds that are
denorminated i the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension ltability The
resulting net surplus or deficit ts included in the Group's balance sheet
Surpluses are only recognised to the extent that they are recoverable through
reduced contnbutions in the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Group's income slatement Includes the current serice cost of providing
pension benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected
administration cests, and the interest cost on the schemes' hatalities  Actuanal
gains and losses arising from expenence adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are not recognised unless the cumulative unrecogrised gain or
loss at the end of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of
10 per cent of the scheme assets or habilities { the cornder approach’) In these
circumstances the excess 15 charged or credited to the income statement over
the employees’ expected average rematning working lives Past service costs are
charged immediately to the income statement, unless the charges are
conditional on the employees remaming in service for a specified perod of
tme {the vesting period) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting penod

The Group recognises the effect of matenal changes to the terms of its defined
benefit pension plans which reduce future benefits as curtaiiments, gans and
losses are recognised In the income statement when the curtallments occur

The eosts of the Group's defined contnbution plans are charged to the income
statement in the pericd in which they fall due

q Share-based compensation

The Lloyds TSB Group operates a number of equsty-settied, share-based
compensation plans The value of the employee services received in exchange
for equity instruments granted under these plans 1 recognised as an expense
over the vesting pertod of the instuments, with a corresponding increase in
equity This expense 1s determened by reference to the fair value of the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest The far value of equily
instruments granted 1s based on market prices, if available, at the date of grant
In the absence of market pnees, the fair value of the instruments at the date of
grant I1s estimated using an appropnate valuation techrigue, such as a Black-
Scholes aption pricing model The determination of fan values excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions, which are included in the
assumptions used to esimate the number of options that are expected to vest
At each balance sheet date, this estimate 1s reassessed and of necessary revised
Any revision of the onginal estimate 1S recognised in the income statement over
the remamning vesung penod

r Taxation
Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits 1S recognised as an
expense In the period tin which the profits anse

For the Group's long-term assurance businesses, the tax charge is analysed
between tax that 15 payable in respect of policyholders' retums and tax that 1s
payable on equity holders’ returns This allecation 1s based on an assessment of
the rates of tax whach will be applied to the retums under current UK tax rules




Lloyds TSB Bank pic

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Deferred tax 1 provided n full, using the habiity method, on ternporary
differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabiliues and their
carrying amounts tn the consoldated finanoal statements However, deferred
Income tax 1s not accounted for if it anses from snibial recogmition of an asset or
llability 1n a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transactiort affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or foss Deferred tax
1 determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset 15 reahised or the deferred tax habulity 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it 1$ probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be uhlised
Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and it 15 probable that the
difference will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future Income tax payable on
profits 15 recogrused as an expense in the penod in which those profits anse
The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are recogrused as an asset
when it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be availabte against which
these losses can be utilised Defersed tax related to fair value re-measurement of
availlable-for-sale investrments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited drrectly to equity, 1s also credited or charged directly to equity and 1s
subsequently recognised n the income statement together with the deferred
gain or loss

Deferred and current tax assets and hiabiliies are offset when they anse in the
same tax reporting group and where there 1s both a fegal nght of offset and the
intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultanecusly

s Insurance
The Group undertakes both life assurance and general insurance business

For accounting purposes the life assurance business issues three types of
contract

Insurance contracts — these contracts contain significant insurance nsk, which
the Group defines as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence
of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable If the
insured event were not to occur

investment contracts containing a discretionary paricipation feature — these
contracts do not contain significant insurance nsk, but contarn features which
entitle the holder to receive, In additton to the guaranteed benefits, further
amounts that are ikely to be a significant proportion of the total benefits and the
amount and timing of which 15 at the discretion of the Group and based upon
the performance of specified assets Contracts with a discretionary participation
{feature are referred to as participating investment contracts

Non-participating investment contracts — these contracts do not contain
significant insurance nsk or a discretionary participation feature

For accounting purposes the general insurance business only 1Ssues insurance
contracts

(1) Life assurance business

{1} Accounting for insurance and partricipating investment contracts
Premiums and claims

Premiums recerved 1n respect of nsurance and participating investment
contracts are recognised as revenue when due, except as detailed below n
respect of unit-linked contracts

Claims are recorded as an expense when they are incurred
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Liabuittes

- insurance or participating investment contracts m the Group’s With Profit
Fund

Liabilibes of the Group's With Profit Fund, including guarantees and options

embedded within preducts written by that fund, are stated at their reahstic

values i accordance with the Financial Services Authonty’s reahstic capital

regime

- surance or participating investment contracts which are not unit-inked or
in the Group's With Profit Fund

A habnlity for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future 1s
recorded when the premiums are recogmised The hability 1§ calculated by
estimating the future cash flows over the duration of in-force policies and
discounting them back to the valuatich date allowing for probabiities of
occurrence The hability will vary with movernents In interest rates and with the
cost of Iife assurance and annuity benefits where future mertality 1s uncertain
Assurnptions are made 1n respect of all matenal factors affecting future cash
flows, including future interest rates, mortalty and costs

— insurance or participabing nvestment contracts which are unmit-hnked
Allocated premiums in respect of umit-hinked contracts that are either insurance
or participating investment contracts are recogmised as latbilities These
habilities are increased or reduced by the change in the urit prices and are
reduced by policy administration fees, mortality and surrender charges and any
withdrawals The mortality charges deducted n each penod from the
pelicyholders as a group are considered adequate to cover the expected total
death benefit claims in excess of the contract account balances in each penod
and hence no additional habilty 1s established for these claims Revenue
consists of fees deducted for mortality, pohicy adrmimistration and surrender
charges Interest or changes in the unit pnces credited to the account balances
and excess benefit clams in excess of the account balances incurred in the
perted are charged as expenses in the income statement

Unallocated surplus

Any amounts in the With Profit Fund not yet determuned as being due to
pclicyholders are recognised as an unallocated surplus which 15 shown
separately from other liabilities

Value of in-force business

The Group recognises as an asset the value of in-force business in respect of life
insuwrance and participating investment contracts The asset represents the
present value of the shareholders’ interest :n the profits expected to emerge from
those contracts written at the balance sheet date determined using appropriate
economic and actuanal assumptions, after making allowance for the realistic
value of financial options and guarantees The asset in the consolidated balance
sheet 15 presented gross of attnbutable tax and movements in the asset are
reflected within other operating income 1n the income staterment

Dunng 2006 the Group has changed the way in which 1t calculates the value of
Iin-force business Under the new method each cash flow is valued using the
discount rate consistent with that applied to such a cash flow n the capiial
markets The new market consistent discount rates replace the single discount
rate previously used The new method also includes an explicit allowance made
for non-market nsk The effect of this change in methodology has been to
reduce prefit before tax in 2006 by £18 mifhon

(11} Accounting for non-participating investment contracts

All of the Group's non-participating investrment contracts are unit-hnked In
accordance with industry prachce, these contracts are accounted for as
finzncial habilities whose value s contractually linked to the fawr values of
financial assets within the Group’s uniised nvestment funds The value of the
unit-hinked financial iabilities 1s determined using current unit prices multiplied
by the number of units attnbuted to the contract holders at the balance sheet
date Ther value 1s never less than the amount payabfe on surrender,
discounted for the required notice peried where applicable
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Deposits and withdrawals are accounted for directly in the balance sheet as
adjustments to the bability

The Group receives nvestment management fees 1n respect of services
rendered in conjunction with the i1ssue and management of investment
contracts where the Group actively manages the consideration received from its
customers to fund a return that 1s based on the investment profile that the
customer selected on onginatien of the instrument These services comprise an
indeterminate number of acts over the lives of the individual contracts and,
thesefore, the Group defers these fees and recognises them on a stratght-line
basis pver the estimated lives of the contracts

Directly incremental commisstons that vary with and are related to either
SECUNNE new or rengwing existing non-parhicipatng tnvestment contracts are
deferred, all other costs are recogmsed as expenses when incurred This asset s
subsequently amortised over the penod of the prowvision of investment
management services and 1s reviewed for impairment in circumstances
where its carrying amount may not be recoverable [If the asset i1s greater than
its recoverable amount it 1s watten down immediately

(2) General insurance business

The Group both underwrites and acts as intermediary in the sate of general
insurance products Underwnting premiums are included, net of refunds, in the
pertod N which insurance cover is provided to the customer, premiums
recewved relating to future penads are deferred and only credited to the income
staternent when earned  Broking commssion 15 recognised when the
underwriter accepts the nsk of providing nsurance cover io the customer
Where appropriate, provision is made for the effect of future policy terminations
based upon past experience

The underwrnting business makes provision for the estmated cost of claims
notified but not settled and ¢laims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet
date The prowision for the cost of claims notified but not settled 1s based upon a
best estimate of the cost of setthng the outstanding claims after taking into
account all known facts In those cases where there I1s insufficient infermation to
determine the required prowision, statistical techrigues are used which take mio
account the cost of clams that have recently been settled and make
assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases Similar
statistical techmques are used te determine the provision for claims incurred but
not reported at the balance sheet date

(3) Liabulity adequacy test

At each balance sheet date hiability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of insurance and participating investment contract habihities In
performing these tests current best estimates of discounted future contractuat
cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as
investment income from the assets backing such habilites, are used Any
deficiency 1s immediatety charged to profit or loss by establishing a provision for
losses ansing from hability adequacy tests

(4) Reinsurance

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group 1s
compensated for losses on one of more contracts 1ssued by the Group and that
meet the classificatien requirements for insurance contracts are classified as
reinsurance contracts held Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under
which the contract holder 1s another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included
with insurance contracts

The benefits to which the Group 1s entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term
balances due from reinsurers as well as longer term receivables that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits ansing under the related
reinsured 1nsurance contracts Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured
nsurance contracts and m accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract Reinsurance habilities are pnmanty premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense when due
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1 Accounting pohcies {continued)

t Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary econormic environment In which
the entity operates ('the functional currency’} These financizl statements are
presented n sterling, which 1s the Bank's functional and presentation currency

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
transtation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilites
dencrminated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred 1n equity as qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedges Non-monetary assets that are measured at far value are translated
using the exchange rate at the date that the far value was determined
Transtation differences on equiies and similar non-monetary itlems measured at
fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences an avaitable-for-
sale non-monetary financial assets such as equity shares, which are included m
the fair value reserve in equity unless the asset 1s a hedged iterm 10 a fair
value hedge

(3} Group compames

The results and financial positon of all the Group entittes {none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflatienary econemy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows

(1) assets and liabiliies for each balance sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

(1} income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average 15 not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevaihing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

{m) all resulting exchange differences are recogrused as a separate component
of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entiies are taken to shareholders’ equity When a forergn
operaton Is sold, such exchange differences are recognised 1n the income
statement as part of the gan or loss on sale

Gooawilf and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are treated as assets and Liabilites of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate

u Provisions

Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations ansing from past
events where it 1s probable that outflows of resources will be required to settle
the obligations and they can be reliably estmated

The Group recogmises provisions in respect of vacant leasehold property
where the unavoidable costs of the present obligations exceed anticrpated
rental income

Contingent habilities are possible obhgations whose existence depends on the
outcome of uncertain future events or those present obligations where the
outflews of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured rehably Contingent
habiliies are not recogrised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless
they are remote
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

v Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the pened in which
they are paid

w Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents
cormpnse cash and non-mandatory balances with central banks and amounts
due from banks with a matunty of less than three months
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2 Cntical accounting eshmates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, abilsties, income and expenses Dueto the inherentuncertainty in making
estimates, actual results reporied in future penods may be based upon amounts
which differ from those estimates Estimates, judgements and assumptions are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of futureeventsthat are believed to be reasonable underthe
circurnstances Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the period in
which the estimate 15 revised and in any futuse periods affected The accounting
policies deemed cntical to the Group's resuits and financial position, based upon
matenality and significant judgements and esttmates, are discussed below

Loan impatrment provisions

The Group regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess for impairment
Impairment provisions are established to recogmise incurred impairment losses
in 1ts loan portfolios camed at amortised cost In determining whether an
imparrment has occurred at the balance sheet date the Group consuders
whether thete 15 any observable data indicating that there has been a
measurable decrease 1n the estimated future cash flows or their trmings, such
ohservable data includes whether there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers or changes in economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on loan repayment obligations Where this I1s the case, the
impairment 10ss 15 the difference between the carnang value of the loan and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan's oniginal
effective interest rate

At 31 December 2006 gross loans and advances to customers and banks totalled
£232,967 milon (2005 £210,363 million) aganst which impatrment
provisions of £2,194 million (2005 £2,073 rillion) had been made

There are two components of the Group's loan imparment provisions
indradual and collectve Al impaired  loans which exceed a certain
threshold, principally within the Group's corporate banking business, are
indmidually assessed for impairment having regard to expected future cash
flows including thase that could anse from the reahsation of secunty The
determination of these prowisions often requires the exercise of considerable
Judgement by management mvolving matters such as local economic
conditions and the resulting trading performance of the customer and the
value of the secunty held, for which there may not be a readily accessible
market. The actual amount of the future cash flows and therr bming may differ
significantly from the assumpbions made for the purposes of determining the
unpairment provision and consequently these provisions can be subject to
vanation as time progresses and the circumstances of the customer become
clearer

Impairment provistons for portfolios of smaller balance homogenous loans,
such as residental mortgages, personal loans and credit card balances that are
below the indmdual assessment thresholds, and for loan losses that have been
incurred but not separately identified at the balance sheet date, are determined
on a collective basis Collechive imparment provisions are calculated on a
portfolio basis using formulae which take into account factors such as the length
of hme that the customer's account has been out of order, historical loss rates,
the credit qualty of the portfolios and the value of any secunty held The
vanables used in the formulae are kept under regular review 1o ensure that as
far as possible they reflect current economic circumstances, however changes
n (nterest rates, unemployment levels particularly in the UK and bankruptcy
trends could result i actual losses diffenng from reported impairment
PIOVISIONS

Pensions

The net hability recognised tn the balance sheet at 31 December 2006 1n
respect of the Group's retirement benefit obligations was £2,462 mitlien (2005
£2,910 million) of which £2,362 mdiion {2005 £2,809 million) related to
defined benefit pension schemes This habilty excludes actuanal gains of
£263 mullion {2005 losses of £485 million) which the Group 1s permitted to
leave unrecognised The defined benedit pension schemes' gross deficit totalled
£2,099 million (2005 £3,294 million) representng the difference between
the schemes’ habilites and the fair value of the related assets at the balance
sheet date
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2 Cntical accounting estmates and judgements (continued)

The schemes’ liabibes are calculated using the projected unit credit method,
which takes nto account projected earmings Increases, using actuanal
assumptions that give the best estmate of the future cash flows that will
anse under the scheme habilities The resulting estimated cash flows are
discounted at a rate equivalent to the market yield at the batance sheet date on
high quality bonds with a similar duraton and currency to the schemes'
habilites tn order to estimate the future cash flows, a number of financial and
non-financial assumptions are made by management, changes to which could
have a matenal impact upcn the overall deficit or the net cost recogmised i the
Income statement

Two importanit assumptions are the rate of inflation and the expected ifetime of
the schemes’ members The assumed rate of inflation affects the rate at which
salanes are projected to grow and therefore the size of the pensicn that
employees recewve upon retirement and also the rate at which pensions in
payment increase Qver the longer term rates of inflation can vary signidicantly,
at 31 December 2006 it was assumed that the rate of inflation would be
2 9 per cent per annum (2005 2 7 per cent), although if this was increased by
0 2 per cent the overa!l deficit would increase by approximately £559 million
and the annual cost by approximatety £20 milhion A reduction of O 2 per cent
would reduce the overall deficit by approxamately £539 milflion and the annual
cost by approximately £15 million

The cost of the benefits payable by the schemes will also depend upon the
longewity of the members Assumphons are made regarding the expected
Ifetime of scheme members based upon recent expenence, however given the
rates of advance \n medical science and increasing levels of cbesity, 1t 1S
uncertain whether they will uthimately reflect actual expenence An increase of
one year In the expected lifetime of scheme members would increase the overall
deficit by approximatety £459 million and the annual cest by approximately
£30 milon, a reduction of one year would reduce the overall deficit by
approximately £460 million and the annual cost by approumately £30 million

The size of the overall deficit 1s atso sensitive to changes in the discount rate, which
15 affected by market conditions and therefore potentially subject to significant
variations At31 December 2006 thediscount rate used was 5 1 percent (2005

4 8 per cent), a reduction of O 2 per cent would increase the overall deficit by
approximately £592 millign and the annual cost by approxmately £14 millon,
while an increase of 0 2 per cent would reduce the net deficit by approximately
£570 million and the annual cost by approximately £13 million

Goodwill

At 31 December 2006 the Group casmed goodwill on its balance sheet totalling
£2,377 milhon (2005 £2,373 million), substantially all of which relates to
acquisitions made a number of years ago

The Group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events
or changes In economic circumstances sndicate that impairment may have
taken place The imparment review 15 performed by projecting future cash
flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and making
approprniate assumptions about rates of growth and discounting these using a
rate that takes into account prevailing markel interest rates and the nsks
itherent in the business If the present value of the projected cash flows is less
than the carmying value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill an
imparrment charge 1s required In the icome statement This calculation
requires the exercise of significant judgement by management, if the estimates
made prove to be incorrect of changes in the performance of the subsidianes
affect the amount and tming of {uture cash flows, goodwill may become
tmpaired 1n future penods
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2 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

fnsurance

Life assurance business

The Group carnes in its balance sheet an asset representing the value of in-force
business 1n respect of life iInsurance and partcipating tnvestment contracts of
£2,723 milbion at 31 December 2006 (2005 £2,922 milion) This asset,
which 1s presented gross of aftributable tax, represents the present value of
future profits expected o anse from the portfolio of in force Iife insurance and
participating investment contracts To amwve at this value it 1s necessary for
management to make assumptions about the future expenence of the insurance
portfolios which will be affected by factors such as stock market levels, rates of
interest and price inflaton, future mortality rates and future persistency rates
These factors are inherently uncertain If actual expenence differs from that
assumed this could significantly affect the value attnbuted The process for
determining the key assumptions that have been made at 31 December 2006
15 detailed in note 22

At 31 Decernber 2006 the Group also carned substantial iabihities to holders of
Iife insurance policies in s balance sheet The methodology used to value the
labilities 1s described in 1 (s) (1} Liabilites ansing from insurance contracts
and paricipating investment  contracts were  £25920 millon  and
£15,095 million respectively (2005 £26,022 milion and £14,068 million}
and those ansing from non-participating vestment contracts totalled
£24,370 million (2005 £21,839 million) Elements of the liabilities require
assumptions about future snvestment returns, future mortality rates and future
policyholder behaviour The process for determirung the key assumptions that
have been made at 31 December 2006 15 detailed in note 31

The 1mpact on profit before tax of changes in key assumptions 15 detalled n
note 31

General insurance business

At 31 Detember 2006 the Group held a prowision of £149 million (2005

£147 mithon) in respect of the estmated cost of claims notified but not settled and
claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date The provision for the
cost of claims notified but not setthed 15 based upon a best estimate of the cost of
setthng the cutstanding claims after taking into account all known facts In those
cases where there 15 1nsufficient information to determine the required provision,
statistical techmigues are used which take into account the cost of claims that have
recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the
outstanding cases Similar statistical techniques are used to determine the
pravision for claims incured but not reported at the balance sheet date

While management believes that the habihty carned at year end 1s adequate, the
application of statistical techniques requires significant judgment Anincrease of
10 per centinthe cost of claims would result in the recogrition of an additional loss
of approxarnately £14 milhon Similarly, an increase of 10 per centin the ultimate
number of such claims would lead to an additional loss of approxsmately
£15 milhon There 1s na relief ansing from reinsurance contracts held

Taxation

Significant judgement 15 required In determuming the Group's income tax
habthties In arrving at the current tax habehity of £735 million and deferred tax
habibty of £1,416 mitlion at 31 Decernber 2006 (2005 current tax habihity of
£536 million and deferred tax lability of £1,170 mullion}, the Group has taken
account of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussions with HM Revenue
& Customs and other tax authanties Calculations of these llabilities have been
based on management's assessment of legal and professional advice, case law
and other relevant guidance In these situations, the vanous nsks are
categonised and approximate weightings apphed in arnving at the assessment
of the expected hability Where the expected tax outcome of these matters 1s
different from the amounts that were inally recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax amounts in the period in which such
determination s made
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3 Segmental analysis

Lleyds TSB Bank Group I1s a leading financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services predominantly in the UK

The Group's activities are organised into three segments UK Retall Banking, Insurance and Investments and Wholesale and Iniernationat Banking Senvices provided
by UK Retall Banking encompass the provision of banking and other financial services to personal customers, pnvate banking and mortgages Insurance and
Investments offers Iife assurance, pensions and savings products, general insurance and asset management services Wholesale and International Banking provides
banking and related services for major UK and multtnational companies, banks and financial msttutions, and small and medium-sized UK businesses It also
provides assel finance to personal and corporate custorners, manages the Group's activities 1n financial markets through its Treasury function and provides banking
and financial services overseas

Under the Group's transfer pneing amangements, inter-segment services are generally recharged at cost, with the exception of the internal commission arrangements
between the UK branch and other distnibution networks and the insurance product manufactunng businesses within the Group, where a profit margin 1s also charged
inter-segment lending and deposits are generally entered into at market rates, except that non-interest beanng balances are pnced at 2 rate that reflects the extemal
yield that could be eamed on such funds In addiion, for those denvative contracts entered into by business umits for nsk management purposes, the difference
between the result that would have been recognised on 2n accruals accounting basis and the actual result calculated using fair values 1s charged or credited to the
central segment where the resulting volatility 1s managed

Wholesale
Life, pensions Insurance and
UK Retail General and asset and  Intemational Central Inter segment
Banking insurance management Investments Banking groupilems  elimmations Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31 December 2006
Interest and similar ncome 6,913 24 820 844 8,806 997 (3,241) 14,319
Interest and similar expense {3,271) - {741) {741) (6,421) (1,588) 3,241 (8,780)
Net interest iIncome 3,642 24 79 103 2,385 {(591) - 5,539
Other income {net of fee and commission
expense) 1,621 594 9,893 10,487 1,827 194 - 14,129
Tota! income 5,263 618 9,972 10,590 4,212 (397 - 19,668
Insurance claims - {200) (8,369) {8,569) - - - {8,569)
Total income, net of Insurance claims 5,263 418 1,603 2,021 4,212 (397) - 11,099
Operatng expenses (2,476) (157) (481) (638) (2,264) 116 - (5,262)
Trading surplus (deficit) 2,787 261 1,122 1,383 1,948 (281) - 5,837
Impaiment losses on loans and advances (1,238) - - - (308) 9 - {1,559)
Profit (loss) before tax 1,549 261 1,122 1,383 1,640 {290) - 4,282
External revenue 8,136 1,249 10,888 12,137 8,867 154 - 29,294
Inter-segment revenue 698 19 199 218 2,276 910 {4,102} -
Segment revenue 8,834 1,268 11,087 12,355 11,143 1,064 (4,102) 29,294
External assets 108,381 1,115 84,959 86,074 147,836 3,373 - 345,664
Inter-segment assets 3,331 502 4,050 4,552 80,995 53,588 (142,466) -
Total assets 111,712 1,617 89,009 90,626 228,831 56,961 (142,466) 345,664
External abilities 87,327 875 77,633 78,508 150,779 16,574 - 333,188
Inter-segment liabilities 20,980 54 5,695 5,649 72,793 43,084 (142,466) -
Total habilities 108,307 929 83,228 84,157 223,572 59,618 (142,466) 333,188
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 82 7 84S 852 847 143 - 1,724
Depreciation and amortisation 202 9 29 38 379 - - 619
Defined benefit scheme charges 121 4 24 28 100 (140) - 109
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3 Segmental analysis (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2005
Interest and sumilar Income
Interest and similar expense

Net interest income
Other income {net of fee and commussion
expense)

Total income
Insurance claims

Total income, net of insurance claims
Operating expenses

Trading surplus (defiet)
Impatrment losses on loans and advances
Profit (loss) on sale and closure of businesses

Profit {loss} before tax

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue

External assets
Inter-segment assels

Total assets

External liabilities
Inter-segment liabilities

Tetal hiabilities

Other segmem ems

Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Customer remediation provision
Defined benefit scheme charges

Wholesale
Life, pensions Insurance and
UK Retail Genesal and asset and  Intematonal Central  Inter segment

Banking nsurance  management Investments Banking group rems eliminations Total
Em £m Em Em £m £m £m £m
6,652 27 850 877 6,944 1,094 (2,975 12,592
(3,131) {4) (478) (482) (4,679) (1,603) 2,975 (6,920)
3,521 23 372 395 2,265 (509) - 5,672
1,605 571 13,288 13,859 1,628 (39} - 17,053
5,126 594 13,660 14,254 3,893 {548) - 22,725
- (197) (11,989 (12,186) - - - (12,186)
5,126 397 1,671 2,068 3,893 (548) - 10,539
(2.697) (160) (434) (594} (2,181) 36 -~ (5,436}
2,429 237 1,237 1,474 1,712 (512) - 5,103
(1,111) - - - (188} - - (1,299)
76 - - - (&) (20 - 50
1,394 237 1,237 1,474 1,518 {532) - 3,854
7.833 1,272 14,127 15,399 7.283 (28) - 30,487
744 16 330 346 1,686 1,175 (3,951} -
8,577 1,288 14,457 15,745 8,969 1,147 {3,951} 30,487
103,930 968 79,18C 80,148 124,044 3,499 - 311,621
2,146 593 3893 4,486 81,728 50,855 {139,215) -
106,076 1,561 83,073 84,634 205,772 54,354 (139,215 311,621
72,335 829 71,894 72,723 141,878 13,065 - 300,001
30,492 280 5133 5,413 59,224 44,086 {139,215) -
102,827 1,109 77,027 78,136 201,102 57,151 (139,215) 300,001
77 13 Bda 857 702 207 - 1,843

219 11 26 37 383 - - 639

150 - - - - - - 150

134 4 22 26 84 15 - 259

As the activities of the Group are predorinantly carried out in the UK, no geographical analysss 15 presented
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4 Net interest income Weighted average 6 Net trading income 2006 2005
effective interest rate £m £m
2006 2005 2006 2005 Fareign exchange translation gains 32 i6
% * £m Em Gamns on foreign exchange trading transactions 98 150
Interest recevable
Tota! forergn exchange 130
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 339 358 307 508 I estmenglnpr ope nyggams {nate 20 631 igg
Loans and advances to customers 624 640 10,912 10,098 Secunties and other gains 5570 8697
Loans and advances to banks 472 359 1,826 1,199 d d
Lease and hire purchase 6,331 5,293
recevables 742 707 774 787
591 582 14,319 12592 Included within securities and other gains are net gains of £5,259 million
Interest payable (2005 £8,543 million) ansing on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
and net gains of £21 mithon (2005 £nul) ansing on habiliies held at fair value
Deposits from banks 4 67 344 {1,680) (853) through profit or loss
Customer accounts 291 281 {3,756) (3,389}
Debt secunties 1n 1ssue 467 423 {1,983y (1,307}
Subordinated Liabilities 556 529 (677) (615}
Liabilines under sale and 7 Insurance premium Income 2006 2005
repurchase agreements 415 453 (260)  (394) £m £m
Other 968 724 (424) {262} Lfe msurance
382 341 (8,780) (6,920) | Gross premiums 4,308 | 3,996
Ceded reinsurance premiums {189) (89)
Net interest income 5539 5672 Net earned premiums 4,119 3907
Inctuded within interest recevable s £297 millon (2005 £209 million) n | Non-life insurance
respect of impaired financiat assets Grass premiums wetten 608 575
Ceded retnsurance premiums (17) (22)
Net premiums 591 553
5 Net fee and commission income 2006 2005 Change in provision for uncarned premiums 9 9
Em Em Net earned prermiums 600 562
Fee and commission income Total net earned premiums 4,719 4,469
Current accounts 652 593
Insurance broking 629 681 Luf written premiums be furth foll
Creddt and debit card fees 493 545 ife Insurance gross pi can be further analysed as follows
Other 1,345 1,174 2006 2005
£m Em
3,119 2,993
Fee and commissicn expense tafe 1,831 1,286
Credit and debit card fees (138) (182) ensions 1,780 2,136
Dealer commussions (217) (247 Annuities 681 547
Other o1)]| (a13) [ Other 16 27
(845) (842) Gross premiums 4,308 3,995
Net fee and commission Income 2,273 2,151

Credit protectton
Home
Health
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2006
£m

203
394
11

608

Non-hfe insurance gross wntten premiums can be further analysed as follows

2005
£m

173
390
12

575
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B Other operating income 2006 2005
£m £m
Operating lease rental income 422 433
Rental income from investment property 313 272
Other rents receivable 28 30
Gains less losses on disposal of avallable-for-sale
financial assets 22 5
Movement i value of in-force business (note 22) (199} 162
Other income 220 238
806 1,140
9 Insurance claims
Insurange claims cormprnse
2006 2005
£m £m
Life insurance and participating investment contracts
Claims and surrenders
Gross 5375 (| 4,279
Rewnsurers’ share (76) {55)
Change in hatulities 5,299 4,223
Gross 2,923 7.641
Rensurers’ share (18) 33
2,905 7,674
Change in unallocated surplus (note 33} 165 92
Total Ife insurance and investment contracts 8,369 11,989
Non-life insurance
Claims and claims paid
Gross 198 195
Remnsurers’ share - 1)
198 194
Changes in non-life insurance policyhofder habilities
Gross 2
Reinsurers’ share =
2 3
Total non-life insurance 200 197
Total insurance claims expense 8,569 12,186
2006 2005
fam £m
Life insurance gross claims can also be analysed as follows
Deaths 286 298
Matunties 1,385 1,197
Suirenders 3,081 2,204
Annuities 558 528
Other 65 52
5375 4,279

A non-hfe insurance claims development table 1s tncluded i note 31
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10 Operating expenses 2006 2005
£m £m
Salanes 2,117 2,068
Social secunty costs 161 154
Pensions and other post-retirernent benefit
schemes (note 35) 165 308
Other staff costs 298 325
Staff costs 2,741 2,855
Other administrative expenses
Operating lease rentals 254 252
Repairs and maintenance 165 136
Communications and data processing 499 467
Advertising 184 207
Professional fees 230 216
Provistons for customer remediation (note 37) - 150
Other 570 508
1,902 1,936
Deprectation of tangible fixed assets (note 24) 602 621
Amartisation of other intangible assets {note 23) 17 18
Imparment charges
Goodwill (note 21) - 6
Totat operating expenses 5,262 5,436

The average number of persons cn a headcount basis employed by the Group
dunng the year was 76,092 (2005 79,534) of which 74,079 (2005
77,620) were employed in the UK and 2,013 (2005 1,974) overseas

Fees payable to the Bank's auditors

During the year the auditors eamed the foltawing fees

2006
£m

Fees payable for the audit of the Bank's
annual report 59
Fees payable for cther services
Audit of the Bank's subsidianes pursuant to
legislation 23
Additional fees in respect of the previous year's audit
of subsidiarnes 06
Other services supplied pursuant to legislation a7
Other services relating to taxation 06
Services relating to corporate finance transactions 10
All other services 18
Total fees payable to the Bank's auditors 169

2005
£m

62

During the year the auditors also earned fees payable by entities outside the

consohdated Lloyds TSB Bank Group 1n respect of the following

2006
£m
Audits of the Group pension schemes 02
Audits of unconsolidated Open Ended Investment
Companies managed by the Group 04
Reviews of the financial position of corporate and other
borrowers 16
Acquisiion due dihgence and other work performed 1n
respect of potential venture capital investments 10

2005
£m

01

02

12

06




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

11 Impairment losses on loans and advances 2006 2005
£m E£m

Impairment losses on loans and advances (note 18) 1,560 1,302
Other credit nsk provisions (note 37) (5 (3)
1,555 1,299

12 Profit on sale and closure of businesses

Dunng 2005, a net profit of £74 million arose on dispesal of businesses,
pnncipally the Goldfish credit card business This profit was partly offset by an
adjustment to consideration received in respect of an earlier disposal and a
provision for costs In respect of the closure of businesses, which together
totalled £24 million The businesses sold in 2005 were net matenal to the
Group, and consequentty they have not been treated as discontinued
operations
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13 Taxation 2006 2005
£m £m

a Analysis of charge for the year
UK corporation tax

Current tax on profit for the year 1,006 B68
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (155) (4)
851 864
Double taxation relief {195} {138)
656 726

Foreign tax
Current tax on profit for the year 83 78
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (8) (8)
75 70
Current tax charge 731 796
Deferred tax {note 36) 531 482
1,262 1,288

The charge for tax an the profit for the year 1s based on a UK corporation tax rate
of 30 per cent (2005 30 per cent)

The Group, as a proxy for policyholders in the UK, 1s requured to record taxes on
investment income and gans each year Accordingly, the tax attnbutable to UK
Iife insurance policyholder earmings 15 included 1n income tax expense The tax
expense attrbutable to policyhalder earnings was £222 mullion (2005 tax
expense of £298 mullion), including a pnor year tax charge of £12 million
{2005 tax credit of £25 million)

In addition to the income statement current tax charge £33 million (2005 £nil)
has been charged to equity In respect of foreign exchange differences

b Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

A reconcihiation of the charge that would result from applying the standard UK
corporation tax rate to profit before tax to the tax charge for the year 1s given
below

2006 2005
£m £m
Profit before tax 4,282 3,854
Tax charge thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 30% 1,285 1,156
Factors affecting charge
Disaliowed and non-taxable items (92) (31)
Overseas tax rate differences 2) (€D
Net tax effect of disposals and unrealised gains (78) {59)
Policyhelder interests and Open Ended Investment
Compames 139 223
Other items 10 -
Tax on profit on ordinary actwities 1,262 1,288
Effective rate 295% 334%

The effective tax rate of the Group excluding gross pelicyholder and Open Ended
Investment Company interests from profit before tax and the tax charge was
25 7 per cent (2005 27 4 per cent)
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14 Trading and other financial assets at far value through profit or loss

The Group

Trading assets

Ozher financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are compnsed as follows

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Debt securities

Government secunties

Cther public sector securities
Bank and building society
certificates of depasit
Mortgage backed secunties
Other asset backed securities
Corporate and ather debt
securnties

Equity shares
Listed
Unlisted

2006 2005
£m £m
5,756 5,442
62,172 55,125
67,928 60,567

2006 2005
Other Other
financial financial
assets at assels at
falr value fair value
through through
Trading profit Trading profit
assets or loss assels or ks
Em Em £m Em
34 3 5 5
350 448 161 445
180(( 8,626 535|| 10,638
- 44 35 84
- 573 - 898
451 87 39 197
595 861 - 691
4,146|( 13,170 4,667 8,469
5,372 23,361 5276 20,977
-|| 29,508 -|| 27,650
-|| 8,852 -1| 6,008
- 38,360 — 33,698
5756 62,172 5,442 55,125
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14 Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

{continued)

The Bank

Trading assets

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are compnsed as fotlows

l.oans and advances to banks

Loans and advances {o customers

Debt secunities

Government secunties

Other public sector secunties
Mortgage backed securities
Other asset backed secunties
Corporate and cother debt
secunties

Equity shares
Listed
Unhsted

2006 2005
£m £m
5,756 5,442
3,063 482
3,819 5,924

2006 2005
Other Other
financial financial
assets at assets at
falr value fair vatue
through through
Trading profit Trading profit
assets or loss assets of loss
£m £m £m £m
34 3 5 5
350 448 161 445
180 il 535 -
- - 35 -
451 7 39 -
595 435 - 32
4,146 2,150 4,667 -
5,372 2,603 5,275 32
- 9 - -
- 9 - -
5,756 3,063 5,442 482

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2006 of the loans and
advances to banks and customers designated at fair value through profit or loss
by the Bank and the Group was £451 milhon (31 December 2005
£450 millien), the Bank and the Group do not hold any credit dervatives ar
other instruments in mitigation of this nsk There was no significant movement
n fair value of these loans attnbutable to changes in credit nsk, this 15
determined by reference to the publicly available credit ratings of the

instruments involved




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

15 Denvative financial instruments

The pnneipal dervatives used by the Group and the Bank are interest rate and
exchange rate contracts, parhcular attenbion 1s paid to the liquidity of the
markets and products in which the Group and the Bank trade to ensure that
there are no undue concentrations of activity and nsk

Interest rate related contracts include nterest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and opticns  Am interest rate swap 1s an agreement between two
parties to exchange fixed and floating tnterest payments, based upon interest
rates defined 1n the contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal
amounts Forward rate agreements are contracts for the payment of the
difference between a specified rate of interest and a reference rate, applied to a
notional principal amount at a specific date in the future An interest rate option
gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the nght, but not the obligation, to
fix the rate of nterest on a future loan or deposit, for a specified penod and
commencing on a specified future date

Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts,
currency swaps and options A forward foreign exchange contract 15 an
agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate Currency swaps generally involve the exchange of
interest payment cbligations denominated in different curcencies, the exchange
of principal can be nohonal or actual A currency oplion gives the buyer, on
payment of a premium, the nght, but not the obligaton, to sell specified
amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified
future date

Credit denvatives, principally crecit default swaps, are used by the Group as
part of its customer product activity and to manage Its own exposure to credit
nsk A credit default swap 15 a swap in which one counterparty recerves a
premium at pre-set intervals in consideration for guaranteeing to make a
specific payment should a negative credit event take place As discussed in
note 17, dunng 2006 the Group used credit default swaps to syntheticatly
secuntise £961 million of ts commercial banking loans (Bank £939 million)

Equity dervatives are also used by the Group and the Bank as part of their
equity based retail product activily to eliminate the Group's and the Bank's
exposure to fluctuations in vanous international stack exchange indices Index-
linked equity cptions are purchased which give the Group and the Bank the
nght, but nct the cbligation, to buy or sell a specified amount of equities, or
basket of equities, 1n the form of published indices an or before a specified
future date

The prncipal amount of the contract does not represent the Group's and the
Bank's real exposure to credit nsk which s hmited to the current cost of
replacing contracis with a positive value to the Group or the Bank should the
counterparty default To reduce credit nsk the Group uses a vanety of credit
enhancement technigues such as netting and collateralisation, where security 1s
provided against the exposure Fair values are cbtained from gquoted market
piices in active markets, ncluding recent market transactions, and using
valuation techmques, including discounted cash flow and options pncing
maodels, as appropnate
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15 Dernvative financial instruments {continued)

The Group

31 December 2006
Trading

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Currency swaps

Options purchased
Ophions written

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps
Forward rate agreements
Ophions purchased
Options wntten

Futures

Credit denvatives
Equity and other contracts

Tatal dervative assetsfliabilities held for
trading

Hedging

Dervatives designated as far value hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps (including swap options)

Denvatives designated as cash flow hedges
interest rate swaps

Denvatives designated as net invesiment
hedges
Cross currency swaps

Total derivative assetsfliabilibies held for
hedging

Total recogrised denvative assets/labilities

Contract/ Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities
Em £m £m
116,255 794 1,432
21,081 346 522
3,076 51 -
3,822 - 32
144,234 1,191 1,986
333,617 2,980 3,237
40,876 17 18
17,034 68 -
12,588 - 63
33,066 - 1
437,181 3,065 3,319
13,212 25 39
4,026 797 67
5078 5411
BO 10 -
37,298 333 453
37,378 343 453
569 5 13
2,589 139 -
487 466
5,565 5,877
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15 Denvatve financial instruments (continued)

The Group

31 December 2005
Trading

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Currency swaps

Optons purchased
Options written

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps
Forward rate agreements
Options purchased
Options written

Futures

Credit dervatives
Equity and cther contracts

Total denvative assets/liabihities held for
trading

Hedging

Denvatives designated as far value hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps (including swap options)

Denvatwes designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps

Total derivative assets/liabilities held for
hedging

Total recognised denvative assets/liabihes

Contract/ Farr values
notional

amount Assets  Liabilibes
Em £m £m
145,591 1,515 1,345
12,770 267 237
3,623 58 -
3,892 - 45
165,876 1,840 1,627
289,640 2814 4,015
50,006 16 20
12,679 108 -
8,812 - 85
29,358 - -
390,495 2,938 4,120
562 3 -
4,787 607 84
5,388 5,831
B9 12 -
39,499 473 730
39,568 485 730
648 5 23
’ 490 753
5,878 6,584
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15 Denwative financial instruments {continued)

The Bank

31 December 2006
Trading

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Currency swaps

Options purchased
Options written

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps
Forward rate agreements
Options purchased
Options written

Futures

Credit denvatives
Equity and other contracts

Total denvative assetsfiabilities held for
trading

Hedging

Derwatives designated as fair value hedges
Cross currency Inierest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps (Including swap options)

Dernvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps

Dervatives designated as net investment
hedges
Cross curiency swaps

Total denvative assetsMabilibes held for
hedging

Total recognised dernvative assets/liabihties

Contract/ Falr values
amaunt Assets  Liahilitles
£m £m £m
119,409 822 1,437
13,230 432 446
3,294 51 -
3,664 - 32
139,597 1,305 1,915
348,065 3,094 3,228
40,961 17 12
17,463 68 -
12,740 - 64
33,066 - -
452 295 3,179 3,304
13,212 25 39
7,349 671 667
5,180 5,925
80 10 -
36,618 331 467
36,698 341 467
569 5 13
2,589 139 -
485 480
5,665 6,405
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15 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

The Bank

31 December 2005
Trading

Exchange rata contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Currency swaps

Options purchased
Options wnitten

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps
Forward rate agreements
Optons purchased
QOphions written

Futures

Credit dervatrves
Equity and other contracts

Total denvatve assets/liabilities held for
trading

Hedging

Dernvatives designated as fair value hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps (Including swap options)

Dervatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps

Totat dervative assets/liabtlities held for
hedging

Total recognised denvative assetsfliabilities

Contract/ Fair values
nobenal

amount Assets  Liabdibes
£m £m £m
133,585 1,490 1,328
13,799 356 244
3,949 58 -
3,898 - 45
155,231 1,904 1,617
300,842 3,103 4,260
50,041 16 20
12,769 108 -
9,260 - 92
25,358 - -
402,270 3,227 4372
562 3 -
7,171 496 496
5630 6,485
69 12 -
36,251 403 704
36,320 415 704
648 5 23
420 727
6050 7,212
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16 Loans and advances to banks

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Lending to banks 5966 2,510 62,562 66,954
Money market placements with
banks 34,673 29,146 24,027 19,137
Total loans and advances to banks 40,639 31,656 86,589 86,091

Allowance for impairment losses
(note 18) (1} (1} 1) (1}

40,638 31,655 86,588 86,090

The Group holds collateral with a far value of £6,837 million (2005
£6,381 million) and the Bank £6,837 milhon {2005 £6,381 million), which
it 15 permitted to sell or repledge, of which £6,209 milion {2005
£5,550 mulhon) for the Group and £6,209 mullion {2005 £5,550 million)
for the Bank was repledged or sold to third parties for penods not exceeding
three months from the transfer

17 Loans and advances to customers

The Group The Bark
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m £m
Agniculture, forestry and fishing 2905 2,451 1,355 1,024
Energy and water supply 2,024 1,592 2,024 1,590
Manufactunng 7,513 7,923 6,135 6,624
Construction 2,332 2,222 2,040 1,901
Transport, distnbution and hotels 10,490 9,465 9,131 8,385
Pestal and telecommunications 831 546 775 508
Property companies 12,896 B,713 12,164 7,941
Financial, business and other
services 22,999 21,260 16,240 15,631
Personal
Morigages 95,601 88,835 846 730
Other 23,025 23,280 19,038 19,225
Lease financing 4,802 5815 - -
Hire purchase 5060 4,853 323 273
Due from fellow Group
undertakings 1,850 1,692 38,205 29,645
192,328 178,707 108,276 93,477
Allowance for impairment losses
{note 18) (2,193) (2,072) {1,700) (1,718)
190,135 176,635 106,576 91,759

The Group holds collateral with a far value of £444 mithon (2005
£1,018 milhon) and the Bank £444 milhon (2005 £1,018 mullion), which
it 15 permitted to sell or repledge, of wiuch £238 mullion (2005 £741 million)
for the Group and £238 million (2005 £741 milhon) for the Bank was
repledged or sold to thard parbes for penods not exceeding three months from
the transfer

Of the Banks amounts due from fellow Group undertakings at 31 December
2006, US$5 5 billion has been pledged as secunty aganst a demand loan
made to the Bank by another of its fellow Group undertakings
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17 Loans and advances to customers {continued)

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease recevables, which may
be analysed as follows

The Group
2006 2005
£m £m
Gross investment 1n finance leases, recevable
Not later than 1 year 637 673
Later than 1 year and nct later than 5 years 2,358 2,388
Later than & years 5358 6,025
8,353 9,086
Unearned future finance income on finance leases {2,945) (2,954}
Rentals received In advance (163) (200)
Commitments for expenditure In respect of equipment to
be leased (443) (117)
Net investment in finance leases 4,802 5,815

The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as ollows

The Group
T2006 2005
£m £m
Not later than 1 year 234 648
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,232 1,610
Later than 5 years 3,336 3,557
4,802 5,815

Equipment leased to customers under finance leases prmanly relates to
structured financing transactions to fund the purchase of aircraft, ships and
other large indvidual value items The allowance for uncollectable finance lease
receivables included n the allowance for tmpairment losses 1s £7 million
{2005 £4 million)

The unguaranteed residual values included (n finance Jease receivables were as
follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Mot tater than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year and not fater than 5 years - 31
Later than & years 168 245
Total 168 276

Securiisations

Loans and advances to customers include balances that have been secuntised
but not derecegrised, compnsing both residential mortgages and commercial
loans

Beneficial interests in residential morigages were transferred duning the year to
special purpose entittes which i1ssued floating rate debt secunties Neither the
Group nor any entities in the Group are obliged to support any losses that may
be suffered by the note holders and do net intend to offer such support The
floating rate note holders only recewve payments of interest and pnncipal to the
extent that the special purpose entities have recerved sufficient funds from the
transferred morigages and after certain expenses have been met In the event of
a deficiency, they have no recourse whatsoever to the Group

At 31 December 2006 the total amount of residenbial morgages subject to
sacuritisation for the Group s £14,927 million {2005 £mil) in respect of which
external funding at the year end amounted to £10,048 million (2005 £},
external funding 1s shown in debt securities in issue {see note 30}

The Group participates in the secuntisation through the prowision of
administration and other services, the provision of interest rate and currency
swaps and In the form of unsecured loan financing which 1s subordinate to the
interests of the floating rate note holders
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17 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

In addition the Group completed a £961 rmillion synthetic secuntisation of
commercial banking foans dunng the year (£539 mullion by the Bank 2005
£nil for both the Group and the Bank) utihsing credit default swaps (CDSs) The
CDSs are accounted for as denivatives and are included in denvative financial
instrurnents {note 15)

18 Allowance for impairment losses on toans and advances

2006 2005
The Group £m £m
At 1 January 2,073 1,919
Exchange and other ad)ustments {13) 1
Reclassifications - 43
Adjustments on disposal of businesses and portfolios (27) (27)
Advances wntten off (1,489) (1,236}
Recovenes of advances wntten off in previcus years 190 158
Unwinding of discount (100} (87)
Charge to the income statement 1,560 1,302
At 31 December 2,184 2,073
In respect of
Loans and advances to banks {note 16} 1 1
Loans and advances to custamers {note 17) 2,193 2,072
2,194 2,073
2006 2005
The Bank Em £m
1 January 1,719 1,645
Exchange and other adjustments (13) (1)
Reclassifications - 43
Adjustments on disposal of businesses and portfolios 27 27)
Advances written off (1,303) (1,054}
Recovernes of advances wnitten off in previous years 157 138
Unwinding of discount {100) 87)
Charge to the income statement 1,268 1,062
At 31 December 1,701 1,719
In respect of
Loans and advances to banks {note 16} 1 1
Loans and advances to customers (note 17) 1,700 1,718

1,701 1,719




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

19 Avallable-for-sale financial assets 19 Available-for-sale financial assets (contnued)
The Group The Bank Canying Batance
value before sheet
2036 20‘85 20;: Zoé)i provisions  Pravisions value
m m The Bank £m £m £m
Debt securihes At 1 January 2005 6,136 (3 6,105
Government secunties 393 ] 1,083 & 348 Exchange and other adjustments 134 - 134
Other public sector securnties 189 47 - 47 Additions 8210 - B210
Bank and bulding society Disposals ©958) - (9,958
certificates of deposit 1,615 1,470|[ 1,611 1,470 Reclassificabons ' (31) a1 o
Morigage backed secunties 5662 4,161 1,604} 1,610 Amortisation of premiums and discounts (1) - (n
Other asset backed secunities 4,721 | 4,981 433 705 Changes in fair value {note 41) 13 _ 13
Corporate and other debt
securtes 4,817 3,065 220 194 At 31 December 2005 4,503 - 4,503
17,397 14.807 3.874 4374 zc‘:jl?targgse and other adjustments o 9(?3) : 5 9(?_8!)
Eg‘t‘e'g’ shares : o ; 3] | Disposals (10,353) - (10,353)
Untisted 14 12 14 12 Changes in fair value {note 41} 7 - 7
15 46 15 46 At 31 December 2006 3972 - 3,972
Treasury bills and cther bills
Treasury bills and simelar Dunng 2006, the Bank sold £621 million of debt securities to one of its
secunties 1,743 70 €0 6| | subsidiary underiakings, however the related agreements are such that the
Other bills 23 17 23 17] | Bank has retained substantally al of the risks and rewards of ownership and,
1,766 87 83 83 as a consequence, the debt secunities continue to be recognised an the Bank's
19,178 14940 3872 4503 | Dllance sheet
The movement in available-for-sale financial assets 1s summansed as follows 20 Investment property of the Group 2006 2005
Carrying Balance £m £m
value before sheet
provisions  Provisions value At 1 January 4,260 3,776
The Group £m £m £m Changes in fair value (note &) 631 430
Additions
At 1 January 2005 14,624 (31} 14,593 Acquisitions of new properties §75 756
f\xd?ﬂhf:r%: and other adjustments 10 ?gg - 10 ?gg Additional expenditure on existing properties 75 51
Disposal (10266) - (1026e | ol addtons s
Reclassifications (31) 31 - 15posals (902) 753
Amortisation of premiums and discounts (65) - (65) | At 31 December 4,739 4,260
Changes n fair value {note 41} 11 - 11
At 31 December 2005 14,940 -~ 14940 The investment properties are valued at least annually at open-market value, by
Exchange and other adjustments (1,116) - {1,1186) mdependent, professionally qualified valuers, who have recent experience In
Additions 23,448 - 23448 the location and categonies of the investment properties betng valued
Disposals (18,106) - {18,106)
Amortisation of premiums and discounts 22 - 22 In additton the fellowing amounts have been recogrised in the income
Changes 1n fairr value {note 41) (10) - (10) | statement
At 31 December 2006 19,178 - 15,178 ZOEg 20505
Rental income 313 272
Oirect operating expenses ansing from investment
properties that generate rental tncome 29 24
Capital expenditure n respect of iInvestment properties
2006 2005
£m £m
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
date hut not recognised in the financial statements a5 3t
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21 Goodwill The Group Fhe Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2373 2,469 8 118
Acquisitions {note 48} 4 3 - -
Disposals - 93) - (110)
Impairment charge - (&3 - -
At 31 December 2,377 2,373 8 8

Cost* 2,383 2379 8

Accumulated impairment losses 6) (6) - -
2,377 2,373 B 8

*Far acquisitiens made pnot to 1 January 2004, the date of transition to 1FRS,
cost 15 included net of amounts amortised up to 31 December 2003

The goodwill held 1n the Group s balance sheet 1s tested at least annually for
impairment  For the purposes of impairment testing the goodwill is allocated to
the appropriate cash generating umit, of the total balance of £2,377 mithon
(2005 £2,373 million), £1,836 million {or 77 per cent of the total} has been
allocated to Scottish Widows and £521 rmillion {or 22 per cent of the total) to
Asset Finance

The recoverable amount of Scottish Widows has been based on a value in use
calcutation The calculation uses projections of future cash flows based upon
budgets and plans approved by management covening a five-year period, and a
discount rate of 11 per cent (gross of tax) The budgets and plans are based
upon past expenence adjusted to take into account anticipated changes in sales
volumes, product mix and margins having regard to expected market conditions
and competitor activity The discount rate 1s determined with reference to
Jnternal measures and availlable industry infermation Cash flows beyond the
five-year peried have been extrapolated using a steady 3 per cent growth rate
which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the life assurance
market Management believes that any reasonably possible change In the key
assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of Scottish Widows ta fall
below 1ts balance sheet carmying value

The recoverable amount of Asset Finance has also been based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and plans
approved by management covenng a five-year penod and a discount rate of
10 per cent (gross of tax) Due to similanties in the nsk profile and the funding
medel management believes that Asset Finance 15 closely ahigned to Lioyds TSB
Group, the discount rate represents the Lloyds TSB Group's weighted average
cost of capttal The cash flows for each of the businesses of Asset Finance
beyond the five-year penod are extrapolated using steady growth rates, in each
case not exceeding 4 per cent nor the long-term average growth rates for the
markets in which the respective businesses of Asset Finance pariicipate
Management also believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount of Asset Finance 1s based would
not cause the carrying amount of Asset Finance to exceed its recoverable
amount
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22 Value of in-force business of the Group

The asset in the consolidated balance sheet and movement recogmised in the
Income statement are as follows

Gross value of In-force insurance and participating investment business

2006 2005

£m £m

At 1 January 2922 2760
Movement in value of in-force business (199) 162
At 31 December 2,723 2,922

The movement in vatue of in-force business over 2006 contains effects from the
intreduction of the new valuahon rules in the Financ:al Services Authority's
(‘FSA'S') Policy Statement 06/14 and a revised allowance for nsk This reduced
the amount of reserves required to be held for certain contract types The value
of in-force for these contract types 1s £429 mullton lower than 1t would have
been If the FSA valuation rules had not changed The reduction in the value of
in-force business is more than offset by the lower reserves held under the new
FSA valuation rules, the iIncome statementimpact of these changes 1s quantified
In note 31

The pnincipal econormic assumphions used in calculating the vatue of in-force
business at 31 December 2005 were as follows

%
Risk discount rate 702
Return on equities 672
Return on fixed interest secunties 412
Expense inflation 379

Following the change in the methodology used ta calculate the value of in-force
husiness in 2006 the principal assumptons that it 1s necessary to make have
changed

The pnncapal features of the methodology and process used for deterrmining key
assumptions used in the calculaton of the value of in-force business at
31 Decernber 2006 are set out below

+ Economc assumptions  Each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate
consistent with that applied to such a ¢ash flow in the capital markets In
practice, to achieve the same result, where the cash flows are either
independent of or move linearly with market movements, a method has been
applied known as the ‘certainty eguivalent’ approach whereby (t 1s assumed
that all assets earn the nsk-free rate and all cash flows are discounted at the
risk-free rate

A market consistent approach has been adopted for the valuation of financial
options and guarantees, using a stochastc ophion pneing techrigue calibrated
to be consistent with the market pnce of relevant options at each vatuation
date

The nsk-free rate assumed i valuing in-force business 1s 10 basis pomnts over
the 15-year gilt yield in valuing financial options and guarantees the nisk-free
rate 15 denved from gilt yelds plus 10 basis points, 1n line with Scottish
Widows' FSA realistic balance sheet assumptions
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The table below shows the range of resulung yields and other key assumptions
at 31 December 2006

%
Risk-free rate (value of in-force) 472
Risk-free rate (financial ophons and guarantees) 391to 541
Retatl Pnce inflation 323
Expense inftation 413

» Non-market risk  An allowance for non-market nsk 15 made through the
choice of best estimate assumptions based upon expenence, which generally
will grve the mean expected financial outcome far shareholders and hence no
further allowance for non-market nsk 1s required However, in the case of
operational nsk and the with-profits fund there are asymmetnes in the range
of potential outcomes for whrch an explicit allowance 15 made

Non-econormic assumplions Future, mortality, morbidity, lapse and paid-up
rate assumphions are based on an analysis of past expenience and represent
management's best esimate of hkely future experence

Regulatory capital position of the Group's life assurance businesses

Basis of determining regulatory capital of the life assurance businesses
Available capital resources

Availlable capital resources represent the excess of assets over labiites
calculated in accordance with detariled regulatory rufes i1ssued by the FSA
Different rules apply depending on the nature of the fund, as detaled below

Statutory basis Assets are generally valued on a basis consistent with that used
for accounting purposes (with the exception that, in certain cases, the value
attributed to assets s hmited) and which follows a market value approach
where possible The habilibes are calculated using a projechon of future cash
flows after making prudent assumptions about matters such as nvestment
return, expenses and mortalty Dhscount rates used to value the habilities are
set with reference to the rnisk adjusted yields on the underdying assets in
accordance with the FSA rules Other assumptions are based on recent actual
experience, supplemented by industry information where appropnate The
assessment of Labilives does not tnclude future bonuses for with-profits pelicies
that are at the discreton of the Company, but does include a value for
policyhoider options ikely to be exercised

‘Realistic’ basis The FSA requires each fe assurance company which contains
a with-profits fund 1n excess of £500 million, including Scottish Widow plc
{‘Scottish Widows"), to carry out a ‘realishc valuation of that fund The word
‘realistic’ in this context reflects the terrminology used for reposting to the FSA
and 1s an assessment of the financial posibon of a with-profits fund calculated
under a prescnibed methodology

The vatuation of with-prafits assets in a with-profits fund on a realistic basis
differs from the valuation on a statutory basis as, in respect of non profils
business wtten in a with-profits fund (a refatively small amount of business in
the case of Scottish Widows), it includes the present value of the anticrpated
future release of the prudent margins for adverse dewiaton The realistic
vatuation uses the market value of assets without the imit affechng the statutory
basis noted above

The reahstic valuation of hiabilities 1s carned out using a stochastic simulation
model which values liabifities on a basis consistent with tradable market option
contracts {a ‘market-consistent’ basis) The model takes account of policyholder
behaviour on a best-estimate basis and includes an adjustment to reflect future
uncertainties where the exercise of gpbons by policyholders might increase
liabilibes Further detalls regarding the stochastic simulation model are given
below in the section entitted ‘Options and guarantees’
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Regulatory capital requirements

Each Ife assurance company must retain sufficient capital to meet the
regulatory capital requirements mandated by the FSA, the basis of calculating
the regutatory capital regurrement 1s given below For Abbey Life Assurance
Company Limited (‘Abbey Life), the regulatory capital requirement 1s a

_combination of amounts held i respect of actuarnal reserves, sums at nsk and

maintenance expenses {the Long-Term Insurance Capital Requiremnent) and
amounts required to cover vanous stress tests The regulatory capital
requirernent 15 deducted from the available capital resources to give "statutory
excess capital’

For Scottish Widows, no amount ts required to cover the impact of stress tests
on the actuanal reserves However, a further test 1s required in respect of the
With Profit Fund which compares the level of ‘realishc excess capital’ to the
‘statutory excess capital’ of the With Profit Fund In circumstances where the
‘realistic excess capital’ posiion 1S less than 'statutory excess capital’, the
Company is required to held additional capital to cover the shortfall but onty to
the extent It exceeds the value, calculated in a prescribed way, of intemal
transfers from the With Profit Fund Any additional capital requirement under
this test 1s referred to as the With Profit Insurance Capital Component The
‘realistic excess capital’ 1s calculated as the difference between realistic assets
and reahstic habilities of the With Profit Fund with a further deduction to cover
vanous stress tests

The determinabion of realistic liabihties of the With Profit Fund in respect of
Scotish Widows includes the value of internal transfers expected to be made
from the With Profit Fund to the Non-Parbicipating Fund of Scottish Widows
These internal transfers include charges an policies where the associated costs
are bome by the Non-Participating Fund The With Profit Insurance Capital
Component 1s reduced by the value, calculated in the stress test scenaro,
of these internal transfers, but only to the extent that credit has not been taken
for the value of these charges n denving actuanal reserves for the
Non-Participating Fund
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Capital statement

The following table provides more detail regarding the sources of capital in the Iife assurance business The figures quoted are based on management's current
expectations pending completion of the annual financial retum teo the FSA The figures allow for the proposed transfer of £750 mullion from the Long Term Fund to the

Shareholders’ Fund as at 31 December 2006

Non Total

With Partici Long Share

Profit pating Term holders’

Fund Fund Fund funds Tolal

£m £m m Em £m

As at 31 December 2006
Assets attributable to the shareholder held outside the long-term funds - - - 1,947 1,947
Assets attributable to the shareholder held within the long-term funds - 2,317 2,317 - 2,317
Total sharehclders’ funds - 2,317 2,317 1,947 4,264
Adjustments onto a regulatory basis
Life assurance business
Unallocated surplus within insurance business 631 - 631 - 631
Adjustments to remove differences between IFRS and regulatory valuation of assets and liabilities - {109) (109} {855) (964)
Adjustments to include eshimated ‘realistic’ habilities payable to the shareholder {693) - (693) - (693)
Adjustment fo repiace ‘realistic’ liabelities with statutory habilities 3,721 - 3,721 - 3,721
Adjustment to remove the value of future profits recognised n sespect of non-participating contracts
wrtten in the With Profit Fund (32) - {32} - (32
Recogrition of future profits for regulatory capital purposes - - - - -
Qualfying loan capital - - - 525 525
Avallable capital resources 3,627 2,208 5,835 1,617 7,452

The figures shown above for avatlable capital resources within the insurance business relate to Scottish Widows plc only  The amounts refating to the other hfe

assurance subsidiaries within the Group are not significant

The comparative positton as at 31 December 2005 was as follows (again, relating to Scottish Widows plc only)

Non- Total

With Particr- Long Share-

Profit pating Term holders'

Fund Fund Fund funds Totat

£m £m £m £m Em

As at 31 December 2005
Assets attnibutable to the shareholder held outside the leng-term funds - - - 1,513 1,513
Assetfs attnbutable to the shareholder held within the long-term funds - 2,619 2,619 - 2,619
Total shareholders’ funds - 2,619 2,619 1,513 4,132
Adjustments onte a regulatory basis
Life assurance business
Unallocated surplus within insurance business 494 - 494 - 494
Adjustments to remove differences between IFRS and regutatory valuation of assets and liabilibes - {456) (456) (767} {1,223)
Adgustment to include estimated ‘realistic’ habiliies payable to the shareholder (729} - (729) - (729)
Adjustment to replace ‘realisic habiliies with statutory liabilities 2,580 - 2,580 - 2,580
Adjustment to remove the value of future profits recognised in respect of non-participating contracts
written in the With Profit Fund (43) - (43) - (43)
Recogmition of future profits for regulatory capital purposes - 500 500 - 500
Qualifying loan capital - - - 561 561
Avallable capital resources 2,302 2,663 4,965 1,307 6,272
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Formal intra-group capital arrangements

Scottish Widows has a formal arrangement with one of s subsidiary
undertakings, Scottish Widows Unit Funds Limited, whereby the subsidiary
company can draw down capital from Scotush Widows to finance new business
which is reinsured from the parent to its subsidiary Scottish Widows has also
provided subordinated loans to Its subsidiary Scottish Widows Annuities Limited
and its fellow group undertaking Scottish Widows Bank plc

Constraints over avallable capital resources

Scottish Widows was created following the demutualisabion of Scottish Widows
Fund and Life Assurance Society in 2000 The terms of the demutualisation are
governed by a Court-approved Scheme of Transfer (the 'Scheme’) which, inter
alia, created a With Profit Furxi and a Non-Participating Fund and established
protected capital support for the with-profits policyholders in existence at the
date of demutualisation Much of that capital support 1s held in the Non-
Participating Fund and, as such, the capital held in that fund 1s subject to the
constraints noted below

Requirement to mantan a Support Account The Scheme requires the
maintenance of a ‘Support Account’ within the Non-Participating Fund  The
guanturs of the Support Account 15 calculated with reference to the value of
assets backing current with-profits policies which also exsted at the date of
demutualisation and must be mantained until the value of these assets reaches
a mnimum leve! Assets can only be transferred from the Non-Paricipating
Fund if the value of the remaiming assets in the fund exceeds the vatue of the
Support Account Scottish Widows has obtamed from the FSA permission to
include the value of the Support Account in assessing the realistic value of
assets available to the With Profit Fund At 31 December 2006, the estimated
value of surplus admissible assets w1 the Non-Parhicipating Fund was
£2,208 million {31 December 2005 £2,163 million) and the eshmated
value of the Support Account was E£964 millon {31 December 2005
£1,115 milien)

Further Support Account The Further Support Account 1s an extra tier of capital
suppart for the with-profits policies in existence at the date of demutualisation
The Scheme requires that assets can only be transferred from the
Non-Participating Fund 1f the economic value of the remaiming assets in the
fund exceeds the aggregate of the Support Account and Further Support
Account Unlike the Support Account test, the economic value used for this test
includes both admissible assets and the present value of future profits of
business wrtten 1n the Non-Paricipating Fund or by any subsichanes of that
fund The bafance of the Further Support Acoount 1s expected to reduce to nil by
the year 2030 At 31 December 2006, the estmated net economic value of the
Non-Participating Fund and its subsidianes for the purposes of this test was
£4,219 million (31 December 2005 £4,140 millon} and the estimated
combined value of the Support Account and Further Support Account was
£2 869 million (31 Decenber 2005 £2,836 million)

Other restrictions In the Non-Participating Fund  In addition to the polictes
which existed at the date of demutualisation, the With Profit Fund includes
policies which have been wnitten since that date  As a result of statements made
to pohcyholders that investment pohcy will usually be the same for both types of
business, there 1s an imphait requirernent to hold additional regulatory assets in
respect of the business wnitien after demutuahsation The estmated amount
required to provide such support at 31 December 2006 1s £210 mullon
(31 December 2005 £267 mulhon} Scotish Widows has obtained from the
FSA permission to include the value of this support In assessing the realisic
value of assets avaslable to the With Profit Fund There 15 a further test requinng
that no amounts can be transferred from the Non-Paricipating Fund of Scottish
Widows unless there are sufficient assets within the Long Terrn Fund to meet
both policyholders’ reasonable expectations in light of habiliies in force at a year
end and the new business expected to be wntten over the following year
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Movements n regulalory capital
The movements In Scotush Widows pic's availlable capital resources can be
analysed as follows

MNon- Total
with  Parici- Long Share-
Piofit patng Term holders’
Fund Fung Fund funds Tatal
Em £m Em Em £m

As at 31 December 2005 2,302 2,663 4,965 1,307 6,272
Changes In assumptions
used to measure life

assurance liabilities 208 (29) 179 - 179
Dividends and capital

transfers - (7500 (750} 499 (251)
Changes in regulatory

requirements - 155 155 26 181
New business and other

factors 1,117 169 1,286 [215) 1,071
As at 31 December 2006 3,627 2,208 5,835 1,617 7,452

The primary reasons for the movement in total available capital resources
dunng the year are as follows

With Profit Fund

Avallable capital in the With Profit Fund has increased from £2,302 mullion at
31 December 2005 to an estimated £3,627 million at 31 December 2006
prmanly as a result of strong invesiment market performance

Non-Participating Fund

Avallable capita! in the Non-Participating Fund has decreased from
£2,663 million at 31 December 2005 to an estimated £2,208 million at
31 December 2006 Thus 15 primattly a result of a proposed transfer from the
Non-Paricipating Fund to the Shareholder Fund at the year end of
£750 millien, offset by regulatory changes which reduced Labilties and by
the return generated from the business

Shareholder Fund

Available capital in the Shareholder Fund has increased from £1,307 mullion at
31 December 2005 to an esttmated £1,617 millon at 31 December 2006
Dunng the year Scottish Widows Linit Trust Managers Limited was purchased at
its market value of £380 million, and was written down to £47 rllion as
required by the regulations The resultant reduction in capital, together with
dividends paid of £251 mullion, s offset by the proposed transfer from the
Non-Partisipating Fund noted above and by net investment returns
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Finanesal information calculated on a ‘realistic’ basfs

The estimated financial position of the With Profit Fund of Scottish Widows at
31 December 2006, calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis, 1S given n the following
table, in the form reported to the FSA As a result of the capital support
arrangements, 1 1s considered appropriate to also disclose the estimated
‘realistic’ finaneial position of the Long Term Fund of Scottish Widows as a
whaole, which consists of both the With Profit Fund and the Non-Participating
Fund

31 Decemnber 2006 31 December 2005

With Long With Long

Profit Term Profit Term

Fund Fund Fund Fund

£m £m £m £m

Realistic vatue of assets of fund 18,121 22,330 19,018 23,242

Support arrangement assets 1,174 - 1,115 -
Realistic value of assets avallable to

the fund 19,295 22,330 20,133 23,242

(18,183) {(18,111) (19,753) (19,102)
1,112 4,219 880 4,140
58% 189% 44% 178%

Realistic value cf lrabilties of fund

Working capital for fund

Working capital ratio for fund

1Subsequent to publication of the 2005 results, Scottish Widows obtained from
the FSA permission to include the value of additional support assets in respect
of policies wnitten since demutualisation (n assessing the realistic value of
assets available to the With Profit Fund The actual year end working capial
ratios for the With Profit Fund and the Long Term Fund based on information
from the final FSA returns were 5 5 per cent and 17 7 per cent respectively

Scottish Widows continues to be well capitalised with the working caprtal ratios
for the With Profit Fund and the Long Term Fund being an estimated
5 8 per cent (31 December 2005 5 5 per cent in the final FSA returns) and
18 9 per cent {31 December 2005 17 7 per cent in the final FSA retums)

respectivety

The financiat information calculated on a ‘realistic” basis reconciles to the
Capital statement as fallows

31 December 2006

With Long

Profit Term

Fund Fund

£m £m

Available regulatory capital 3,627 5,835
Support arrangement assets 1,174 -

Adjustments o replace statutory habilities with

‘realistic’ habilities

Adjustments to include the vatue of future profits recognised
in respect of Non-Participating business written 0 the

(3,721) (3,544)

With Profit Fund 32 32
Remaval of future profits allowable for regulatory

capital purposes - -
Recogrition of future profits allowable for ‘realistic

capital purposes - 1,896

1,112 4,219
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31 December 2005

with Long
Prafit Term

Fund Fund

£m Em

Avallable regulatory capital 2,302 4,965
Support arrangement assets 1,115 -

Adjustments to replace statutory habilities with

‘realistic’ liabilities

Adjustments to include the value of future profits recogmsed
in respect of Non-Participating business written in the

(2,580) (2,291

With Profit Fund 43 43
Removal of future profits allowable for regulatory
capital purposes - (500}
Recognition of future profits allowable for ‘realistic’
capital purposes -~ 1,923
, 880 4,140
Analysis of policyholder ltabihities 1n respect of the Group's life assurance
business
Scottish
Widows ple
With Profit
Fund (in
accord- Cther
ance with long term  Total lite
FRS 27) funds business
Em £mn £m
At 31 December 2006
With Profit Fund labilities 17,984 116 18,100
Unit-linked business (excluding that accounted
for as investment contracts) - 12,734 12,734
Qther Iife assurance business - 10,181 10,181
Insurance and participating investment cantract
habiliies 17,984 23,031 41,015
Non-participating investment contract iabiliies - 24,370 24,370
Total policyholder liabilities 17,984 47,401 65,385
Scatuish
Widows plc
With Profit
Fund (n
accorg- Cther
ante with leng-term  Total Life
FRS 27) funds  business
Em £m £m
At 31 December 2005
With Profit Fund habilities 18,854 133 18,987
Unit-linked bustness (excluding that accounted
for as investment contracts) - 10,779 10,779
Other life assurance business - 10,324 10,324
Insurance and partrcipaling investrnent cantract
habilites 18,854 21,236 40,090
Non-participating tnvestment contract habilities - 21,839 21,839
Total policyholder liabilities 18,854 43,075 61,929
Capital sensivities
Sharehoiders” funds

Shareholders’ funds outside the long-term business fund, other than those used
to match regulatory requirements, are mainly invested In assets that are less
sensitive to market conditions
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With Profit fund

The with-profits realistic habilihes and the available capital for the With Profit
Fund are sensiive to both market conditions and changes to a number of
non-econamic assumphions that affect the valuation of the llabilties of the fund
The availlable capital resources (and capital requirements) are sensitive to the
level of the stock market, with the position worsening at low stock market levels
as a result of the guarantees to policyholders tncreasing in value However, the
exposure to guaranteed annuity options increases under nsing stock market
levels Anancrease in the level of equity velatihty implied by the market cost of
equity put options also increases the market consistent value of the opbions
given to polieyholders and worsens the capital position

The most critical non-economic assumplions are the level of take-up of opticns
inheremt In the contracts (higher take-up rates are more onerous), mortality
rates (lower mortality rates are generally more cnerous) and lapses prior to
dates at which a guarantee would apply {lower lapse rates are generally more
onerous where guarantees are in the money) The sensiivity of the capital
position and capital requirements of the With Profit Fund 1s partly mitigated by
the actions that can be taken by management

Other long-term funds

Qutside the With Profit Fund, assets backing actuanal reserves in respect of
policyhaolder hiabtlities are invested so that the values of the assets and habiliies
are broadly matched The most cntical non-econortic assumpheons are mortalty
rates in respect of annuity business wrntten (lower mortality rates are more
cnerous) Reinsurance arrangements are In place to reduce the Group's
exposure o deteriorating mortality rates in respect of life assurance contracts In
addition, poor cost control would gradually depreciate the available capital and
lead to an increase in the valuation of the habilities (through an increased
allawance for future costs)

Assets held in excess of those backing actuanal reserves are invested across a
range of investment categones including fixed interest secunbies, equities,
properties and cash The mix of investments i1s determined 1n hne with the
policy of Lloyds TSB Group to optirruse shareholder nsk and return  The value of
the investments 15 sensitive to prevailing conditions in the markets selected

Optrons and guaraniees
The Group has sold insurance products that contaim options and guarantees,
both within the With Profit Fund and in other funds

Qptions and guarantees within the With Profit Fund

The most significant options and guarantees provided from within the With
Profit Fund are In respect of guaranteed mimimum cash benefits on death,
maturity, rebrement of certain palicy amniversanes, and guaranteed annuity
options on retrement for certain pension policies For those policies watten pre-
demutualisabon containing potentially valuable options and guarantees, under
the terms of the Scheme a separate memorandum account was set up within
the With Profit Fund of Scotush Widows called the Additional Account which 15
avallable, inter alia, to meet any addibonal costs of providing guaranteed
benefits 1n respect of those policies The Additional Account had a value at
31 December 2006 of £1 8 bilion (2005 £1 7 tilhon) The eventual cost of
providing benefits on policies written both pre and post demutuahisaion s
dependent upon a large number of vanables, including future interest rates and
equity values, demographic factors, such as persistency and mortality, and the
proportion of policyholders who seek to exercise their options The ultimate cost
will therefore not be known for many years

As noted above, under the realistic capital regsrme of the FSA, the habilities of
the With Profit Fund are valued using a market-consistent stochastic simulation
model This model »s used in order to place a value on the options and
guarantees which captures both their intnnsic value and thewr time value
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The most significant economic assumptions included in the mode! are

« Risk-free yield The nsk-free yield is defined as 0 1 per cent hugher than spot
yields denved from the UK gilt yield curve,

« Investrnent volatifity This s denved from dervatives where possible, or
historical cbserved volatiity where it 1s not possible to observe meaningful
prnces For example as at 31 December 2006, the 10 year equity-impled
at-the-meney assumption was set at 20 per cent (31 December 2005
20 per cent} The long-term at the-money assumption for property was
15 per cent {31 December 2005 15 per cent) The equivalent assumption
for fixed rate interest stocks was 13 per cent (31 December 2005
13 5 per cent)

The model includes a matrix of the correlatiions between each of the underying
modelled assel types The correlations used are consistert with long-term
historical returns  The most significant non-economic assumpbions included in
the model are management actions (in respect of investment policy and bonus
rates), guaranteed annuity option take-up rates and assumptions regarding
persistency (both of which are based on recent actual expenence and include
an adjustment to reflect future uncertainties where the exercise of options by
policyholders might increase habilities), and assumptions regarding mortality
(which are based on recent actual expenence and mdustry tables)

Options and guarantees outside the With Profit Fund of Scottish Widows
Abbey Life currently has a number of policies tn force which have a guaranteed
annuity option [n total it holds traditional regulatory reserves of £257 million to
cover this hability at 31 December 2006 (£332 miliion at 31 December
2005) These reserves have been deterrmined using prudent future interest rate,
mortahty rate and rate of annuity option take-up assumptions and exceed the
value that would be placed on them using a market-consistent stochastic
model s esbmated that a O 5 per cent reduction in future mterest rates would
increase the labiity by some £27 rmillion

Under some of Abbey Life’s older contracts, the matunty value or the surrender
value at the end of the sefected penod 15 guaranteed to be not less than total
premiums pa:d or sums assured The lotal prowision for these opbons was
£4 milhon at 31 December 2006 (£5 milion at 31 December 2005) and was
established using stochastic techmiques after making prudent assumptions

In both Abbey Life and Scottish Widows, certain personal pension
policyholders, for whom reinstatement to their occupational pension scheme
was not an option, have been given a guarantee that their pension and other
benefits will correspond in value to the berefits of the relevant occupational
pension scheme The key assumptions affecting the ultimate value of the
guarantee are future salary growth, gt yelds at retirement, annuitant mortality
at retirement, mantal status at retirement and future mvestment returns  There
1s currenily a provision, calculated on a determimistic basis, of £98 million
{31 December 2005 £108 mullion) in respect of those guarantees If future
salary growth were Q0 5 per cent per annum greater than assumed, the hability
would increase by some £6 million If ytelds were Q¢ 5 per lower than assumed,
the Labiity would increase by some £17 mullron
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23 Other intangible assets Software
Customer  enhance-

lists ments Total
The Group £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 January 2005 - 107 107
Additions - 40 40
At 31 December 2005 - 147 147
Additions 54 51 105
At 31 December 2006 54 198 252
Accurnulated amortisation
At 1 January 2005 - 79 79
Charge for the year - 18 18
At 31 December 2005 - 97 97
Charge for the year - 17 17
At 31 December 2006 - 114 114
Balance sheet amount at
31 December 2006 54 aa 138
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2005 - 50 50

2006 2005

The Bank £m £m
Software enhancements
Cost
AL 1 January 103 380
Additions 24 13
At 31 December 127 103
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 80 53]
Charge for the year 10 11
At 31 December 90 80
Batance sheet amount at 31 December 37 23
Software enhancements of the Bank and the Group pnncipally comprise

wentifiable and directly associated internal staff and other costs
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24 Tangible fixed assets

The Group

Cost

At 1 January 2005

Exchange and other adjustments
Adjustments on acquisition and
disposal of businesses
Additions

Dhsposals

At 31 December 2005
Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Dispasals

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

At 1 January 2005

Exchange and other adjustments
Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2005
Exchange and other adjustments
Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 Detember 2006

Balance sheet amount at
31 December 2006

Balance sheet amount at
31 December 2005

Total
Operating  tangible
lease fixed
Premises  Equipment assels assets
£m £m £m £m
1,360 2,526 2,767 6,653
1 (3) 63 61
3 - - 8
89 280 615 S84
(37) (136} {484) (657)
1,421 2,667 2,961 7,049
- (3 {96} (99)
92 286 552 930
25) {1c1) (551) (677)
1,488 2,849 2,866 7,203
533 1,627 313 2,473
3 (1) 9 1t
76 267 278 621
{11 (97) (239) (347)
601 1,796 361 2,758
1 1) (63) {65}
82 248 272 602
{7) (83) (254) (344}
675 1,560 316 2,951
813 889 2,550 4,252
820 871 2,600 4,291
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24 Tangble fixed assets (continued) Total
tangible
fixed
Premises Equipment assefs
The Bank £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 January 2005 946 1,960 2906
Exchange and other adjustments (6) 1 (5)
Additions 78 246 324
Disposals (13) {95) (108)
At 31 December 2005 1,005 2,112 3,117
Exchange and other adjustments - (3) (3}
Additions 82 262 344
Disposals 6) (48) (54)
At 31 December 2006 1,081 2,323 3404
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2005 469 1,171 1,640
Exchange and other adjustments 2 - 2
Charge for the year 64 234 298
Disposals ()] (60) (66}
At 31 December 2005 529 1,345 1,874
Exchange and other adjustments {1 (2) {3
Charge for the year 70 215 285
Disposals {3 (33) (36)
At 31 December 2006 595 1,528 2,120
Balance sheet amount at
31 December 2006 486 798 1,284
Balance sheet amount at
31 December 2005 476 767 1,243

At 31 December the future metnimum rentals receivable by the Group under
non-cancellable operating leases were as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Recevable within 1 year 431 393
1 to 5 years 747 695
Qver 5 years 30 165
1,208 1,253

Equipment leased to custorers under operating leases pnmarnly relates to
vehicle contract hire arrangements Dunng 2005 and 2006 no contingent
rentals in respect of operating leases were recognised in the income statement

In addition, total future mimimum sub-lease mcome of £120 mithon for the
Group and £103 milhon for the Bank at 31 December 2006 (£141 million for
the Group and £120 million for the Bank at 31 December 2005} 15 expected to
be recewved under non-cancellable sub-leases of premises
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25 Investment in subsidiary undertakings 2006 2005

£m £m
At 1 January 16,078 16,174
Additions 8 4
Addmonal capital inpechions and transfers 2444 250
Cap;tal repayments (3) (350)
At 31 December 18,527 16,078

The principal group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to
31 December and whose tesults are included in the consolidated accounts of
Lloyds TSB Bank plc, are

Percentage

of eguity

share

Country of capstal and

registration/ voling
incorporation  nights hetd  Nature of business

Cheltenham & Gloucester plc England 100%* Mortgage lending and
retall investments

Lloyds TSB Commercial England 100% Credit factonng

Finance Limited

Lloyds TSB Leasing Limited England 100% Fwnancial leasing

Lloyds TSB Private England 100% Prvate banking

Banking Limited

The Agncultural Mortgage England 100% Long-term

Corporations PLC agrcultural finance

Lloyds TSB Offshore Limited Jersey 100%* Banking and
financial services

Lloyds TSB Scotland ple Scotland 100% Banking and
financial services

Lioyds TSB General England 100%* General insurance

Insurance Limited

Scottish Widows Investment England 100%* Investment

Partnership Group Limited management

Abbey Life Assurance England 100%* Life assurance

Company Limited

Lloyds TSB Insurance England 100%* Insurance broking

Services Limited

Lloyds TSB Asset Finance Engtand 100% Consumer credit,

Drision Limited leasing and related
services

Black Horse Limited England 100%™ Consumer credt,
leasing and related
services

Scottish Widows plc Scotland 100%* Life assurance

Scotish Widows Scottand 100%* Life assurance

Annuities Limited

*Indirect interest

The country of registration/incorporation 15 also the pnncipal area of operation
for each of the above group undertakings

None of the Bank's subsidiarnies has expenenced any significant restrictiens in
paying dividends or repaying foans and advances All regulated banking and
Insurance subsidianes are required to mantain capital at levels agreed with the
regulators, this may tmpact those subsidianes’ abtlity to make distnbutions
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26 Other assets

Assets anising from reinsurance
contracts held

Deferred acquistion costs
Settlement balances

Other assets and prepayments

Deferred acquisiben costs of the Group

At 1 January

Acquisttion costs deferred, net of amounts amortised to

the income statement

At 31 December

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em £m £m £m
451 548 - -
443 429 - -
285 336 55 156
3,483 4,271 1,911 2,731
4,662 5,584 1,966 2,887
2006 2005
£m £m
429 293
14 136
443 429

27 Deposits from banks

The breakdown of deposits from banks between domestic and intermational

offices s set out below

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Domestic
Non-interest bearing 89 105 89 577
Interest bearing 28,405 (] 24,707 {| 35,945 || 30,659
28,494 24812 36,034 31,236
International
Non-interest bearing 31 24 31 24
Interest bearing 7,869 || 6,651 8,005 || 6,713
7900 6715 8,036 6,737
36,394 31,527 44,070 37973
28 Customer accounts The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m £m
Non-interest bearning current
accaunts 4,338 4,203 4,103 3,942
Interest bearing current accounts 43,064 40,365 40,699 37,907
Savings and investment accounts 66,151 62,206 42,627 39,752
Other customer depasits 27,214 24,576 40,509 33,904
140,767 131,350 127,938 115,505
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28 Customer accounts (continued)

The breakdown of customer accounts between demestic and international
offices 15 set out below

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Domestic
Non-interest bearing 4,069 3,864 4,183 3,607
Interest bearning 133,139 | 123,802 | 119,615| | 107,822
137,208 127,670 123,798 111,42%
International
Non interest beanng 336 335 337 334
Interest bearing 3,223 3,345 3,803 3,741
3,559 3,680 4,140 4,076
140,767 131,350 127,938 115505
29 Trading and other habilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Liabilties held at far value through
profit or loss 1,156 - 1,156 -
Trading habilihes 28 - 28 -
1,184 - 1,184 -

The amount contractually payable on maturity of the hiabilities held at farir value
through profit or loss at 31 December 2006 15 £1,200 million, which 15
£44 milhon tugher than the balance sheet carrying value There was no
significant movement in the fair value of these labilities attributable to changes
in credit nsk, this 15 determined by reference to the publicly avallable credit
ratings of the Bank

30 Debt secunties in 1ssue 2006 2005
£m £m
The Group
Euro medium term note programme 5,650 6,683
Other bonds and medium term notes 10,157 141
Certificates of deposit 1ssued 25,244 22,101
Commercial paper 13,067 10,421
Total debt secunties in 1ssue 54,118 39,346
The Bank
Euro medium-term note programme 5650 6,683
Certificates of deposit 1ssued 24,729 21,629
Commercial paper 2,340 3,004
Total debt securities In 1ssue 32,719 31,316
Debt secunties in tssue by the Group at 31 December 2006 included

£10,048 million (2005 £rul} in respect of the securitisation of mortgages (see
note 173
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31 Liabilities of the Group ansing from nsurance contracts and
participating investment contracts

Insurance contract liabilities

Participating investent contract habilibies

Insurance contract llabilities

2006
£m

26,507
15,095

41,602

2005
£m

26,616
14,068

40,684

Insurance contract liabilities, substantialty all of which refate to business written
in the United Kingdom, are comprised as follows

2006 2005
Rein- Rein-

Gross  surance* Net Gross  swiance* Net

£m £m £m £m £m Em

Life insurance 25920  (425) 25,495 26,022 (511) 25,511
Non-life insurance

Unearned premums 438 - 438 447 - 447

Claims outstanding 149 (4)] 145 147 {4) 143

587 (4) 583 594 {4) 590

26,507 (429) 26,078 26616 (515) 26,101

*Remnsurance balances recewable are reported within other assets (note 26}

Life wnsurance

The movement in life insurance contract habilihes over the year can be analysed

as follows

At 1 January 2005
New business
Changes in existing business

At 31 December 2005
New business
Changes in exsting business

At 31 December 2006

Rein-

Gross surance™ Net
£m £m £m
23,789 577y 23,212
1,381 (256) 1,125
852 322 1,174
26,022 (511) 25,511
1,045 {98) 947
(1,147 184 (963)
25,920 (425) 25,495

*Reinsurance balances receivahble are reported within other assets (note 26}

The movement in liabilities ansing from participating investment contracts may

be analysed as follows

At 1 January 2005
New business
Changes in existing business

At 31 December 2005
New business
Changes in existing business

At 31 December 2006

Process for deterrining key assumphons

£m

12,469
1,181
418

14,068
1,815
(788)

15,095

The process for deterrmining the key assumpbons for insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts 15 set out below

Insurance policy Nabilities can be sphit into With Profit Fund habifites,
accounted for using the FSA's reahstc capital regime (reahstic iabihties) and
Non-Profit Fund liabilities, accounted for using a tradional prospective
actuanal discounted cash flow methodology as descnbed in the accounting

pelicies
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31 Liabihities of the Group arising from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts {continued)

With Profit Fund reafistic habifities

The Group’s With Profit Fund contarns hife insurance contracts and participating
investment contracts The calculation of With Profit Fund reahstic habilities uses
best estimate assumptions for mortality and morbidity, persistency rates and
expenses These are calculated in a similar manner to thase used for the value
of in-force business as discussed in note 22 The perststency rates used for the
realistic valuation of the With Profit Fund llabiibies make an allowance for
potenbial changes (n future expenence as the guarantees and options within
with-profits contracts become more valuable under adverse market conditions

Other key assumptions are

+ Investment returns and discount rates The realistic capital regime dictates
that With Profit Fund liabiities are valued on a market-consistent basis This
15 achieved by the use of a valuation model which values liabilities on a basis
cahbrated to tradable market option contracts and other observable market
data The With Profit Fund financial options and guarantees are valued using
a stochastic simulation model where all assets are assumed to earn, on
average, the nsk-free yield and all cash flows are discounted using the nsk-
free yeeld The nisk-free yield 1s defined as O 1 per cent higher than the spot
yields derived from the UK gilt yield curve

Guaranteed annuity option take-up rates The guaranteed annuity oplion take
up rates are set with regard to the Group’s actual experience and make
allowance for potential increases n take-up rates when the Guaranteed
Annuity Options become more valuable to the policyholder

Investment volatily Investment volatility 15 denved from denvatives where
possible, or histencal observed volatihly where 1t 1s not possible to observe
meaningful prices For exampie, as at 31 December 2008, the 10 year
equity-mplied at-the-money assumpbon was set at 20 per cent
{31 December 2005 20 per cent) The long-term at-the-money
assumphtions for property and fixed interest stocks were 15 per cent
{31 December 2005 15 per cent) and 13 per cent (31 December 2005
13 5 per cent) respectively

Non-Profit Fund habiihies

Generally, assumptions used to value Non-Profit Fund labihties are prudent in
nature and therefore contain a margin for adverse deviaton This margn for
adverse dewiation 1S based on managements judgement and reflects
management's views on the iherent level of uncertainty The key
assumphions used 1n the measurement of Non-Profit Fund habilities are

+ Interest rates The rates used are denved In accardance with the FSA Rules
These imit the rates of interest that can be used by reference to a number of
factors including the redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation
date

Margins for nsk are allowed for in the assumed interest rates These are
denved from the imits in the FSA Rules, including reductions made to the
available yields to allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of each
stock

Mortality and morbility The mortality and morbrdity assumptions, mncluding
allowances far improvements in longevity for annuitants, are set with regard to
the Group's actual experience where this provides a reliable basis, and
relevant industry data otherwise, and includes a margin for adverse deviation

B

Lapse rates Lapse rates, set with regard to the Group's actual expenence and
with a margin for adverse deviation, are allowed for on some Non-Profit Fund
contracts

Maintenance expenses Allowance 1s made for future policy costs explicitty
Expenses are determined by reference to an internal analysis of current and
expecied future costs plus a margin for adverse dewiation  Explicit allowance is
made for future expense inflation
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31 Liabihties of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts (continued)

Key changes in assumptions
Impact
on profit
before tax
£m

Lapse rates’ (114
Modelting of options and guarantees in the With-Profits Fund? 66
FSA rule changes under PS06/14% 4
Conversion to market consistent methodology® (18)

!Lapse rates have been adjusted following a detalled review of the Group's
current and expected expenence

ZChanges to the valuation of options and guarantees primanly reflect improved
representation of the current regulatory regime and rewised assumptons of
future policyhalder behaviours

3Changes brought tn by the FSA under PSO6/14 have brought significant
reductions to the reserves required {o be held There has been a large offsetuing
reduction in the value of in-force business, as explained In note 22

“The value of in-force business asset 1s now denved using market-consistent
methodology, consistent with the approach adepted for Eurcpean Embedded
Value supplementary reporting

Sensitrity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect of changes in key assumphicns on
profit before tax disclosed in these financial statements assuming that the other
assumptions remamn unchanged In practice this 1s unlikely to occur, and
changes in some assumptions may be correlated These amounts nclude
movements in assets, habtilies and the value of the in-force business 1n respect
of insurance contracts and participating investment contracts The impact s
shown in one direchion but can be assumed to be reasonabfy symmetncal

Increase/

(reduction)

Change In in profit

variable before tax

£m

Non-annuttant mortality 5% reduction 35
Annustant mortahty 5% reduction (124)
Lapse rates 10% reduction 80
Maintenance expenses 10% reduction 64
Risk-free rate! 1% deduction 243
Guaranteed annuity option take up2 5% addition (22)
Equuty investment w::latllity3 1% addition (6)

Assumptions have been flexed on the basis used to calculate the value of
in-force business and the reahistic and statutory reserving bases

For the above sensittvities a 5 per cent reduchon means a reduction to
95 per cent of the expected rate

'This sensitivity shows the impact on the value of i force business, financial
options and guarantee costs, statutory reserves and asset values of reductng the
nsk-free rate by 100 basis points

2This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 5 per cent addibon to the expected
rate

3This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 1 per cent addition to the expected
rate
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31 Liabilibies of the Group arising from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts {continued)

Nen-life insurance
Non-life insurance contract habiities are analysed by hne of business as
follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Credit protection 268 284
Home 314 304
Health 5 6
587 594

E ——

Far non-hfe insurance contracts, the methodology and assumptions used in
relation to determinng the bases of the eamed premium and claims
provisioning levels are denved for each indwvidual underwntten product
Assumptions are intended to be neutral estimates of the mast ikely or expected
outcome There has been no significant change in the assumptions and
methodologies used for setting reserves

The reserving methodology and associated assumphons are set out below

The unearned premium reserve 15 determined on a basis that reflects the length
of time for which contracts have been n force and the projected incidence of
nsk over the term of each contract

Claims outstanding comprise those claims that have been notified and those
that have been incurred but not reported Claims incurred but not repaorted are
determined based on the historical emergence of claims and their average cost
The notified clarms element represents the best estimate of the cost of claims
reported using projections and estimates based on histoncal expenence

The movements m non-life insurance contract habilites and retnsurance assets
over the year have been as follows

Provisions for unearned premiums Rein
Gross surance* Net
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 456 - 456
Increase in the year 575 - &875
Release n the year (584) - (584)
At 31 December 2005 447 - 447
increase In the year 608 (17) 591
Release 1n the year {617) 17 (6C0)

At 31 December 2006 438 - 438

*Rensurance balances receivable are reported within other assets (note 26)

These provisions represent the lability for short-term insurance contracts for
which the Group’s obligations are nat expired at the year end
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31 Liabshties of the Group ansing from isurance contracts and
participating investment contracts (conttnued)

32 Liabilities of the Group ansing from non-participating
investment contracts

Claims and Joss adjustment expenses G Re""'* Net The movement in habihties anising from non-participating investment contracts
rz:: sura';: Efn may be analysed as follows
Retn-
Notified claims 117 {4) 113 Gross  surance* Net
Incurred but not reported 24 - 24 £m £m £m
At 1 January 2605 141 ) 137 | At1 January 2005 16,361 (26) 16,335
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (221} - (221} New business 3,413 (7) 3,406
Increase i liabilities Changes in existing business 2,065 - 2,065
Ansing from current year claims 239 - 239
. 12 ~ (12} At 31 December 2005 21,839 {33) 21,806
Artsing from prior year claims (12} New business 2316 ~ 236
At 31 December 2005 147 (4 143 Changes In existing business 215 11 226
Cash pad for claims settled :n the year {223) - (223}
Increase n liabilties At 31 December 2006 24,370 (22) 24,348
Anging from current year ¢laims 231 - 231
Ansing from prior year claims (6) - {6) | *Reinsurance balances recevable are reported within other assets (note 26)
At 31 December 2006 149 (4) 145
Notified claims 127 (4) 123
incurred hut nol reported 22 - 22 33 Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses for the Group
At 31 December 2006 149 4) 145 The movement in the unallocated surplus within long-term msurance business
Notsfied claims 120 ) 116 over the year can be analysed as follows
Incurred but niot reported 27 - 27 2006 2005
£m Em
At 31 December 2005 147 (4) 143
At 1 January 518 426
Change in unallocated surplus recognised in the
*Remnsurance balances recewvable are reported withsn other assets (note 26) income statement (note 9) 165 92
Non-life insurance claims development table At3l mber 683 518
The development of insurance habiliies provides a measure of the Groups
ability to estimate the ultinate value of claims The top half of the table below
llustrates how the Group's estimate of total claims outstanding for each 34 Other habilities The Group The Bank
accident year has changed at successive year ends The bottom half of the table 2006 2005 2006 2005
reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appeanng In the balance sheet £m £m F £m
ba dered the most appropnate for the business
o e G coreer PRIcP Seftlement balances a7 779 81 5
Unitholders' interest in OEICs 4,583 3,296 - -
Non-life insurance all nsks — gross Other creditors and accruals 5,976 5,801 3,199 2,985
Accident year 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Total 11,034 9876 3,280 2,990
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Estimate of ultimate
claims costs 35 Retirement benefit obligations
At end of accident
year 242 234 227 211 208 1,122 Charge to the Group Income statement
One year later 230 220 209 207 2006 2005
Two years later 228 223 207 £m £m
:gzie g?srsl;f:r gg: 221 Defined benefit panston schemes™ 104 243
¥ Other post-reurement benefit schemes 5 16
Current estmate of Total defined benefit schemes 109 259
cumulative claims 224 221 207 207 208 1,067 Defined contnbution pension schemes 56 49
Cumulative
165
payments o date (223) (211) (199) {189) (115 (937) 308
Lm&nlutg;congn ;s::et 1 10 8 18 93 130 *In 2006, this amount I1s shown net of a credit of £128 million following the
in the Group's decision to cease augmenting the pension entitlement of employees
Liablity 1n respect taking early retirement
of prior years 9
Total hability included in the balance sheet 139

The hatulity of £139 mullion shown in the above table excludes £10 milhon of
unallocated claims handling expenses
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35 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Amounts recogmsed in the balance sheet

The Group The Bark
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m Em

Defined benefit pension schemes 2,362 2809 1,745 2.105
Qther post-retirement benefit
schemes 100 101 100 101

2,462 29510 1,845 2,206

For accounting purposes, the assets and labiites of the Group's
post-retirement  benefit schemes are allocated between the parbicipating
employers, including the Bank, in proportion to the cash contnbutions made
In to the schemes

Penswon schemes

Defined benefit schemes

The Group has established a number of defined benefit pension schemes i the
UK and overseas The majonty of the Group's and the Bank's employees are
members of the defined benefit sections of the Lloyds TSB Group Pension
Schemes No's 1 and 2 These schemes provide retirement benefits calculated
as a percentage of final salary depending upon the length of service, the
minmum retirement age under the rules of the schemes 15 50

The latest full valuations of the schemes were carnied out as at 30 June 2005,
these have been updated to 31 December 2006 by gualfied independent
actuanes The last full valuations of other Group schemes were carned out on a
number of different dates, these have been updated to 31 December 2006 by
gualified independent actuanes or, in the case of the Scotush Widows
Retirement Benefits Scheme, by aqualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows

The Group's and the Bank’s obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes
are funded The Group expects to pay contnbutions of approximately
£530 million {the Bank £410 million} to its defined benefit schemes in 2007

Amounts included in the balance sheet

The Group The Bank
20086 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Present value of funded obligations 17,378 17,320 13,166 13,134
Fair value of scheme assets (15,279) (14,026) (11,579) (10,619

2,099 3294 1,587 2,515

Unrecogrused actuanal gains
(losses) 263 {485) 158 (410)

Liability tn the balance sheet 2,362 2,809 1,745 2,105

Movements in the defined benefit obligation

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 17,320 14,866 13,134 11,282
Current service cost 3a2s 292 236 209
Interest cost 817 775 623 586
Actuanal {gains) losses {434) 1,786 (324) 1372
Benefits paid (555) (446} {429) (336)
Past service cost 32 15 32 15
Curtallment (129) - {108) -
Exchange and other adjustments 2 32 2 6
At 31 December 17,378 17,320 13,166 13,134
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35 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 14,026 11,648 10,619 8839
Expected return 942 839 717 635
Employer contnibutions 550 419 426 310
Actuarnal gains 314 1,538 244 1,169
Benefits paid (555} (446) (429) (336)
Exchange and other adjustments 2 28 2 2
At 31 December 15,279 14,026 11,579 10,619
Actual return on scheme assets 1,256 2,377 961 1,804
Assumptions

The pnncipal actuarral and financial assumpbions used 1n valuations of the
defined benefit pension schemes were as fkoltows

2006 2005
% %
Discount rate 510 4 80
Rate of inflation 290 270
Rate of salary increases 393 398
Rate of increase for pensions tn payment and deferred
pensions 270 250
Years Years
Life expectancy for member aged 60, on the
valuatien date
Men 258 256
Women 278 276
Life expectancy for member aged 60, 15 years
after the valuation date
Men 270 268
Women 289 287

The mortalty assumptions used in the scheme valuatons are based on
standard tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuanes which were
adjusted i line with both current industry expenence and the actual expenience
of the relevant schemes The table shows that a member retinng at age 60 as at
31 December 2006 1s assumed to live for, on average, 25 8 years for a male
and 27 B years for a female In practice there will be much vanation between
individual members but these assumptions are expected to be appropnate
across all members It 1s assumed that younger members will live langer 1n
retirement than those retinng now This reflects the expectation that mortality
rates wiltl continue to fall ever tme as medical science and standards of bving
improve To lltustrate the degree of improvement assumed the table also shows
the life expectancy for members aged 45 now, wher they retire 1n 15 years tme
at age 60

An analysis of the impact of a reasonable change in these assumptions i1s
provided 1n note 2




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

35 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The expected return on scheme assets has been calculated using the following
assumptions

2005 2005

% %

Equities 80 82
Fixed interest gilts 41 46
Index linked gilts 39 43
Non-government bonds 48 53
Property 64 69
Cash 37 36

The expected return on scheme assets in 2007 will be calculated using the
following assumptions

2007

%

Equities 80

Fixed interest gits 46

Index inked gilts 42

Non-government bonds 51

Property 65

Cash 39

Composition of scheme assets

The Group The Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m

Equsties 9,677 9,021 7,376 6,830

Fixed interest gilts 1,114 946 845 716

Index kinked gilts 921 520 679 697

Non-government bonds 1,543 1,415 1,148 1,071

Property 1,333 1,185 1,052 897

Cash 691 539 479 408

At 31 December 15,279 14,026 11,579 10,619

The assets of all the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets
In separate trustee administered funds

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considenng the expected
returns avallable on the assets undetlying the current mvesiment policy
Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption
yelds at the balance sheet date Expected returns on equity and property
inwestments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective
markets

Expenence adjustments history {since the date of adoption of 1AS 19)
2006 2005 2004

The Group £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation 17,378 17,320 14,866
Fawr value of scheme assets {15,279) (14,026) (11,648)
2,099 3294 3218
Experience losses on scheme habilives (50) (69) (126)
Expenence gains on scheme assets 314 1,538 361
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35 Retirement benefit obhigations (continued)

2006 2005 2004

The Bank £m £m £Em
Present value of defined benefit obligation 13,166 13,134 11,282
Fair value of schemme assets (11,579) (10,619} (8,839)

1,587 2,515 2,443
Expenence losses on scheme habilities 42) (53) (124}
Experience gawns on scheme assets 243 1,166 282

The expense recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 Decemnber comprises

2006 2005

£m £m

Current service cost 325 292
Interest cost 817 775
Expected return an scheme assets (942) (839)
Curtaitment* (128) -
Past service cost 32 15
Total defined benefit pension expense 104 243

*Following recent changes 1n age discrimination legistation, the Group has
ceased to augment the pension enttlement of employees taking early
retirement, this change has reduced the Group's defined benefit pension
lhiability by £129 mullion (€1 mithon of which 1s unrecogrised) and resulted in a
one-off credit to the 2008 income statement of £128 million

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contributton pension schemes in the
UK and overseas, principally the defined contribution sections of the Lioyds TSB
Group Penston Schemes No's 1 and 2

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2006 the charge to the income statement
in respect of these schemes was £56 million (2005 £49 millon), representing
the contributions payable by the employer in accordance with each schemes
rules

Other post-retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of schemes which provide post-retirement
healthcare benefis to certain employees, retred employees and therr
dependent relatives The pnncipal scheme relates to former Lloyds Bank staft
and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-
retirement healthcare for all eligible former employees {and their dependents)
who retired prior to 1 January 1996 The Group has entered into an insurance
contract to provide these benefits and a provision has been made for the
estimated cost of future insurance premiums payable

For the pnncipal post retirement healthcare scheme, the latest actuanal
valuation of the iability was carned out at 31 December 2000, this valuation
has been updated to 31 December 2006 by gqualffied independent actuanes
The prncipal assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of
increase in healthcare prermums has been assumed at 7 02 per cent (2005
6 81 per cent)
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35 Retirement benefit obhgations (continued)

Amount included n the balance sheet

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Present value of unfunded
obligations 110 1z 110 112
Unrecognised actuanal losses (10 (11) {10) (11}
Liabuity i the balance sheet 100 101 100 101
Movements in the other post-retirement benefits cbligatton
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 112 104 112 104
Exchange and other adjustments - (3) - (3
Actuanal (gain) foss (1) 1 {1) 1
Insurance premiums paid {6) (6) {6) (6)
Charge for the year 5 16 5 16
At 31 December 110 112 110 112
36 Deferred tax balances
The movement in the net deferred tax balance 1s as follows
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Liability (asset) at 1 tanuary 1,170 928 (984) (1,053)
Exchange and cther adjustments (4) 3 - -
Disposals {281) {256) - -
Income staterment charge (note 13} 531 492 123 65
Amount charged (credited) to
equity
Available-for-sale financial
assets (note 41) - (2} - (1)
Cash flow hedges (note 41} - 1 - 1
- 1) - -
Amounts transferred to the income
statement in respect of cash flow
hedges (note 41} - 4 - 4
Liability {asset) at 31 December 1,416 1,170 (861) (984)

The deferred tax charge in the consolidated mcome statement compnises the
following temperary differences

2006 2005

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances {106) 59
Pensions and other past-retirement benefits 157 44
Investment reserve 59 -
Allowances for impairment losses 22 23
Unrealised gains 162 279
Tax on value of in-force business {59} 64
Other temporary differences 296 23
531 492
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36 Deferred tax balances (continued)

Deferred tax assets and habihies are compnsed as follows

The Greup The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m Em £m
Defarred tax assets
Pensions and other post-retirement
benefits {736) (893) (563) (648)
Allowances for impairment losses (143) (165} (136) (157)
QOther provisions (39) (36} {27 (31)
Denvatives (168) (172} (132) (157)
Tax losses carned forward (326) (323) - -
Other temporary differences (247) {205} (107) (100}
(1,659) (1,794) (865) (1,091)
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax habiliies
Accelerated capital allowances 1,252 1,358 58 42
fnvestment reserve 149 Q¢ - -
Unrealised gains 500 338 - -
Tax on value of in-force business 875 934 - -
Other temporary differences 299 244 456 65
3,075 2,964 104 107

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses and tax credit carry forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefil through future taxable
profits 15 probable

Deferred tax assets of £567 milhon for the Group and £305 million for the Bank
(2005 £526 mull:en for the Group and £305 million for the Bank) have not
been recogmsed 1In respect of capital losses camed forward as there are no
predicted future capital profis  Capital losses can be camed forward
indefinitely

In additon, deferred tax assets have not been recognised 1n respect of Elgible
Unrelieved Foreign Tax ('EUFT'} and other foreign tax credits carned forward as
at 31 December 2006 of £138 mullion for the Group and £49 milkon for the
Bank (2005 £88 million for the Group and £43 millicn for the Bank), as there
are no predicted future taxable profits agamnst which the unrelieved foreign tax
credits can be ubhsed EUFT can be carned forward indefinutely

Deferred tax habilities

Deferred tax labihties have not been recognised for tax that may be payable of
earnings of certain subsidianes were remitted to the UK Such amounts are
either remnvested for the foreseeable future or can be remitted free of tax
Unremitted earnings totalted £682 million for the Group and £27 mullion for the
Bank (2005 £609 mtllion for the Group and £24 mullion for the Bank)

Future transfers from Scothsh Widows ple's long-term business fund to its
Shareholder Fund will be subject to a shareholder tax charge Under1AS 12, no
provision 15 required to be made to the extent that the timing of such transfers 1s
under Scotish Widows pic's control Accordingly, deferred tax habidties of
£110 millien (2005 £110 milhon) have not been recogrised
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37 Other provisions Provisions
for
conbngent
habilitries Vacant
and  Customer leasehold
commut- remediation property
ments  prowsions  and other Total
The Group £m Em £m Em
At 1 January 2006 33 194 141 368
Exchange and other adjustments - - 3 3
Prowisions applied 4%} (93) (22) {116)
Amortisation of discount - - 4 4
Charge (release) for the year (5) - 5 -
At 31 December 2006 27 101 131 259
Provisions
contngent
habiliies Vacant
and Customer leasehold
commut remediation property
ments prowisions  and cther Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 33 165 100 298
Exchange and other adjustments - - (2) {2)
Provisions apphed 1) {76) a7n (94)
Amaortisation of discount - - 2 2
Charge (release) for the year (5} (8) 5 (8)
At 31 December 2006 27 81 88 196

Provisions for cantingent habilties and commuitments

Prowisions are held in cases where the Group s rrrevocably comumitted to
provide additranal funds, but where there 15 doubt as to the potential borrower's
ability to meet its repayment obligations

Customer remediation provisions

The Group has established provisions for the estimated cost of making redress
payments to customers In respect of past product sales, in those cases where
the onginal sales processes have been found to be deficient Dunng 2006
management have reviewed the adeguacy of the provisions held having regard
to current complant volumes and the level of payments being made and are
satsfied that no addiional charge 1s required for the Group (in 2005 charges of
£150 mithion for the Group and £147 midhon for the Bank were made)

At 31 December 2006 the provisions held relate to past sales of a number of
products, including mortgage endowment policies, sold through the branch
networks of Lloyds TSB Bank, Uoyds TSB Scottand and Cheltenham &
Gloucester and underwntten by ife assurance companies within the Group and
also by thid parties The pancipal assumptions that are made in the
assessment of the adequacy of the provision relate to the number of cases
that are likely to require redress taking into account any bme barring, and the
estimated average cost per case The ulimate ¢ost and tirming of the payments
remains highly uncertain and will be influenced by external factors beyond the
control of management, such as regulatory actions, media interest and the
performance of the financial markets However, 111s expected that the majonty
of the remaining expendiiure will be incurred over the next year
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37 Other prowisions (continued)

Vacant teasehoid property and other

Vacant leasehold property provisions are made by reference to a prudent
estimate of expected sub-let income, compared to the head rent, and the
possibility of disposing of the Group's interest in the lease, taking into account
conditions in the property market These provisions are reassessed on an
annual basis and will normally run off over the penod of under-recovery of the
leases concerned, currently averaging three years, where a property 15 disposed
of earlier than anbcipated, any remaming balance 1nv the provision relabing to
that property 15 released

The Group also carnes provisions n respect of 1ts obligations relating to UIC
Insurance Company Limited (‘UIC"), which 1s in provisional bguidation The
Group has indemmnified a third party against losses in the event that UIC does
not honour s obhigations under 2 retnsurance contract, which 15 subject to
asbestosis and pollution claims in the US The ultimate cost of settling the
Group's exposure in respect of the mnsuranice business of UIC and the timing
remains uncertain The proviston held répresents management's current best
estmate of the cost after having regard to the financial condition of UIC and
actuanal esumates of future claims
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38 Subordinated liabilities

The Group

Preferred securnities

6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunities callable 2007 (US$1,000 million)
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

6 625% Perpetual Capital Secunities callable 2006 (€750 million)

Euro Step-up Nen-Voting Non-Cumnulative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 {€430 million)

6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2013 (€500 million)

Sterling Step-up Non-Vobng Non-Cumultative Preferred Secunties callable 2015 (£250 million}

4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2017 (€750 million)

Undated subordinated llabilities

Prnimary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes

Senes 1 (US$750 mihon)

Seres 2 (US$500 milion)

Senes 3 (US$E00 mullion)

11%% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£100 millon)

5%:% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 million)
Undated Step-up Floating Rate Nates callable 2009 (€150 miltion)

6%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (€410 millon)

5 125% Step-up Perpetual Subordinated Notes callable 2015 (£560 muilion}

5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20 billon)
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 {(£500 mulliom
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 {£270 million}

8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million)

6%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (£450 miftion)

6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 mullion)

Dated subordinated liabilities

7%:% Subordinated Bonds 2007 (£300 million)

5%,% Subordinated Notes 2008 (DM 750 ritlon)

10%:% Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 (£100 million)

9'%,% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (£:00 million)

64,% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 mullicn)

12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 million)

4%,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 milhion}

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 milhon)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 {£100 milhon)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£200 million)

Subordinated Floating Rate Motes 2013 (£150 mullion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Motes 2014 (£464 million)

575% Subordinated Notes 2014 (£150 million)

6%s% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 mitlion}

Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 mullon)
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (ES0Q million}
Subordinated Floating Rate MNotes 2020 (€100 million}

5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 (E350 million)
9%:% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (E300 million}

Subordinated Non-Interest Beanng Loan on rolling & year notice (£150 million)

Total subordinated habilities
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Note

ad

ac
a,)
a.c,h
ak
ach

ab

ah
ab
ag
ae

a,

4,8
a8
4,8
alg

(=3

2006 2005
£m £m
483 553
- 518
312 337
345 371
248 248
478 522
1,866 2,549
383 436
255 291
306 349
100 100
845 892
101 103
408 407
525 553
107 127
475 501
255 269
189 202
47 457
470 500
4,866 5,187
300 300
260 274
104 106
99 a9
283 303
113 115
562 597
150 150
100 100
200 200
150 150
464 464
149 148
330 345
300 300
336 343
67 68
328 346
329 341
150 150
4,774 4,899
11,506 12,635
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38 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

2006 2005

The Bank Note Em £Em
Preferred secunttes
6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2007 (US$1,000 miflion) ad 483 583
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares | - -
6 625% Perpetual Capital Secunities callable 2006 (€750 mullicn} ac - 518
Euro Step-up Non-Votuing Non-Cumulative Preferred Securities callable 2012 (€430 miflion) a,| 312 337
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Caprtal Secunties callable 2013 (€500 million) ach 345 kY3l
Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunities callable 2015 (£250 miflien) ak 248 248
4 3856% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callabte 2017 (€750 rmutien) ach 478 522

1,866 2,549
Undated subordinated liabilities
Pnimary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes ab
Series 1 (US$750 miflion) 383 436
Series 2 (US$500 million) 255 291
Series 3 (US$600 million) 306 349
5%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 million) ah 845 892
Undated Step-up Floauing Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 rmulhion) a,b 101 103
6%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (£410 millon) a.g 408 407
5 57% Undated Suberdinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20 billion) a, 107 127
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 {£500 million} 475 501
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 (E270 mullion) a.g 255 269
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million) a.g 189 202
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (£450 milion) a,g 447 457
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (E500 mullien) a,g 470 500

4,241 4,534
Drated subordinated Labiities
7%,% Subordinated Bonds 2007 (£300 mithon) 300 300
5Y,% Subordinated Notes 2008 (DM 750 mullion) 260 274
10%:% Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 (£100 millian) f 104 106
9%,% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (£100 milhon) 99 a9
6Y,% Subordinated Motes 2010 (€400 mulion) 283 303
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 miilion} f 113 115
4%,% Suborthnated Notes 2011 (€850 milhon) 562 597
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 million) 464 464
57/,% Subordinated MNotes 2014 (£150 rrullion) 149 148
6%:% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 million} 330 345
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 milhion) b 300 300
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 million} b 336 343
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 mullion} b 67 68
5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 miilon) 328 346
9%,% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 mitlion) 329 341
Subordinated Non-Interest Beanng Loan on rolling & year notice (£150 midlion) 150 150

4,174 4,299
Total subordinated liabilities 10,281 11,382

These abilives will, 1n the event of the winding-up of the ssuer, be subordinated to the clamms of depesitors and all other creditors of the issuer

a) In cettain arcumstances, these notes, bonds and secunties would acquire the charactensucs of preference share capital Any repayments of undated loan capital
would require the pnor consent of the Financial Services Authonty They are accounted for as liabibiies as coupen paymients are mandatory as a consequence of the
terms of certain preference shares

b} These notes bear interest at rates fixed penodically in advance based on London Interbank rates

¢) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these secunties can be deferred although in this case nether Lioyds TSB Bank plc nor Lioyds TSB Group plc can
declare or pay a dividend until any deferred payments have been made In the event of a winding up of Lioyds TSB Bank plc, these secunties will acquire the
charactenstics of preference shares

d} In certain circumstances the interest payments on these secunires can be deferred although 1 this case nerther Lioyds TSB Bank plc nor Lioyds TSB Group pic can
declare or pay a dvidend until payments are resumed Any deferred payments wilt be made goed on rederniption of the secuntes The secunties can be redeemed at
par at the opuon of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on or after 22 November 2007

€) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these secunbes can be deferred although in this case Scottish Widows plc cannet declare or pay a dividend unti
any deferred payments have been made

f} Guaranteed by Lloyds TSB Group plc on a subordinated basis

g) At the callable date the coupon on these notes will be resel by reference to the apphicable five year benchmark gilt rate

h} In the event that these notes are not redeemed at the cailable date, the coupon will be reset to a floating rate
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38 Subordinated habiities (continued)

1) In the event that these notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset to a margin of 1 60 per cent over the five year Yen swap rate

1} These securities constitute lirmited partnership interests 1n Lloyds TSB Capital 1 L P, a Jersey hmited partnership in which Lloyds TSB (General Partner} Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary, 1s the general partner Non-cumulative income distnbutions accrue at a fixed rate of 7 375 per cent per annum up to 7 February
2012, thereafter they will accrue at a rate of 2 33 per cent above EURIBOR, to be set annually This 1ssue was made under the imited subordinated guarantee of
Lloyds TSB Bank plc In certatn circumstances these preferred securities will be mandatonly exchanged for preference shares in Lloyds TSB Group plc Lloyds
TSB Group pic has entered into an agreement whereby dwidends may only be paid on its erdinary shares if sufficient distnbutable profits are avalable for
distributions due in the financial year on these preferred secunties

k) These secunties constitute imited partnership mterests in Lioyds TSB Capital 2 L P, a Jersey mited partnership in which Lioyds TSB {(General Partner) Lirmited,

a wholly owned subsithary, 1s the general partner Non-cumulative income distnbutions accrue at a fixed rate of 7 834 per cant per annum up to 7 February

2015, thereafter they will accrue at a rate of 3 50 per cent above a rate based on the yield of specified UK government stock This 15sue was made under the

imited subordinated guarantee of Llcyds TSB Bank plc In certain circumstances these preferred secunties will be mandatonly exchanged for preference shases in

Lloyds TSB Group plc Ltoyds TSB Group plc has entered into an agreement whereby dividends may enly be paid on its ordinary shares If sufficient distnbutable

profits are available for distnbutions due in the financial year on these preferred secunties

Throughout 2005 and 2006, the Bank has had in issue 100 6 per cent non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are

redeemable at the option of the Bank at any time, carry the nghts to a fixed sate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no

dividend shall be payable 1n the event that the duectors determine that prudent capital rabios would not be maintained if the dividend were paid Upon winding
up, the shares rank equally with any other preference shares issued by the Bank

=
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39 Share capital

Group and Bank

2006 2005
£m Em

Authonsed share capita)
1,650 million ordinary shares of £1 each 1,650 1,650

1 cumulative floating rate preference share of £1

100 6 per cent Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
shares of £] each

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
Ordinary shares of £1 each
At 1 January and 31 December 1,542 1,542

Cumulatwve floating rate preference
share of £1
At 1 January and 31 December - -

1

Issued and fully paid preference shares

Throughout 2005 and 2006, the Bank has had in 1ssue 100 6 per cent non-
cumulative redeernable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are
redeemable at the option of the Bank at any time, camry the nghts to a fixed rate
non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no
driidend shall be payable in the event that the directors determine that prudent
capital ratios would not be mamtaied if the dvidend were paid Upon winding
up, the shares rank equally with any other preference shares issued by the
Bank n accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards, these shares are reported within habilibes (see note 38)

40 Share premium account Group and Bank
2006 2005
£m £m
At 1 January and 31 December 2,960 2,960
41 Other reserves
Other reserves comprise
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Revaluation reserve in respect of
avallable-for-sale financial assets - 29 (3) 26
Cash flow hedging reserve 12 11 12 11
12 40 9 37
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41 Other reserves {continued)

Movements in other reseves were as follows

Revaluation reserve tn respect of
avallable-for-sale finantial assets

At 1 ltanuary 2005

Exchange and other adjustrments
Change wn farr value of available-for-sale
financial assets

Deferred tax

Income statement transfer (tax £nil)
At 31 December 2005

Exchange and other adjustments
Change In fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets (tax £nil)

Income statement transfer

Disposat

Current tax

At 31 December 2006

Cash flow hedging reserve

At 1 January 2005

Change n fair value of hedging denvatives
Deferred tax

Incorme statement transfer
Deferred tax

At 31 December 2005
Income statement transfer (tax £ril)

At 31 December 2006

The Group The Bank
£m £m
28 22

7 n
11 13
2 1
13 14
)] (3
29 26
2 -
(10} (¥4]
(22) (22)
1 -
{21) (22)
- (3)
4 4
(1) (1}
3 3
12 12
(4 (4)
8 8
11 11
1
12 12
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42 Retained profits The Group The Bank
2005 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 6,643 6,036 3,744 2,89
Currency translation differences
(see analysis below) (31) 16 (23) 25
Profit for the year* 2916 2504 2,449 2,736
Dividends (1,918) (1,913 (1,918) (1,913)
At 31 December 7610 6643 4,252 3,744

*No income statement has been shown for the Bank, as permitted by Section
230 of the Companies Act 1985

The movements In the cumulative amount of foreign exchange differences taken
directly fo retained profits are as follows

The Group  The Bank

£m £m
Al 1 January 2005 (12) {n
Currency translation differences ansing tn the year 16 25
At 31 December 2005 4 18
Currency translation differences ansing m the year (108) {23)
Foreign currency gains on net investment hedges 110 -
Current tax (33) -

77 -
At 31 December 2006 {27) {5)
43 Ordinary dividends 2006 2005

£m £m
Second intenm diadend In respect of previous year,
declared dunng the current year 1,316 1,314
First intenm dividend 1n respect of current year 602 599

1,918 1,913

The directors have proposed a second intenm dmadend of £1,325 millon
{2005 E1,316 million) which will be paid on 2 May 2007, this 1s equivalent
to 85 94 pence per ordinary share (2005 85 36 pence)
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44 Share based payments

Charge to the income statement

The charge 1o the income statement 15 set out below 2006 2005
£m Em

Executive and SAYE schemes

Options granted n the year 3 3

Ophions granted in prior years 25 27
31 31

Share incentive plan

Shares granted in the year 12 24

Shares granted in pnor years 15 21
27 45
58 76

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2006 Lioyds TSB Group plc operated the following share based payment schemes, all of which are equity seftled

Executive schemes

The Executive share option schemes are long-term incentive schemes available to certain semor executives of the Group, with grants usually made annually Options
were granted within limuts set by the rules of the schemes relating to the number of shares under option and the pnce payable on the exercise of options  The last grant
of executive options was made in March 2005 These options were granted without a performance multipber and the maximum himit for the grant of options in normal
circumstances was three times annual salary Between April 2001 and August 2004, the aggregate value of the award based upon the market price at the date of
grant could not exceed four times the executive's annual remuneralion and, normally, the imit for the grant of aptions to an executive 1n any one year would be equal
to 1 5 tmes annual salary with a maximum performance multiplier of 3 5 Pnor to 18 April 2001, the normal hmit was equal to one year's remuneration and no
performance multiplier was apphed

Performance conditions for executive options
For options granted up to March 2001

Options granted Performance conditions
Prior to March 1596 None
March 1996 Growth in earnings per share of Lioyds TSB Group which 15 equal to the aggregate percentage

change in the Retail Price Index plus two percentage points for each complete year of the
relevant penod

March 1997 — August 1999 As for March 1996, plus a further condition that Lloyds TSB Group plc's ranking based on
shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) over
the relevant peniod should be in the top fifty companies of the FTSE 100

Maich 2000 - March 2001 As far March 1997 - August 1999 except that there must have been growth in the earnings
per share equal to the change in the Retail Price Index plus three percentage points for each
complete year of the relevant penod

In respect of options granted between March 1996 and March 2001, the relevant period for the performance conditions begins at the end of the financial year
preceding the date of grant and will continue until the end of the third subsequent year following commencement or, If not met, the end of such later year tn which the
conditions are met Once the conditions have been satisfied the options will remain exercisable without further conditons If they are not satisfied by the tenth
anniversary of the grant the option will lapse

For oplions granted from August 2001 to August 2004

The performance condition 1s inked to the performance of Lloyds TSB Group plc’s total shareholder return {calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in
share pnce) agamst a comparator group of 17 compamies mcluding Lioyds TSB Group plc

The performance condition 15 measured over a three year period commencing at the end of the financial year preceding the grant of the option and continuing unbl the
end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition 1s not then met, it will be measured at the end of the fourth financial year If the condition has not then
been met, the options will lapse

To meet the performance conditions, the Group's ranking against the comparator group must be at least minth The full grant of options will only become exercisable if
Lloyds TSB Group plc 1s ranked first A performance mulupher (of between nil and 100 per cent) will be applied below this level to calculale the number of shares in
respect of which options granted to executive directors will become exercisable, and will be calcufated on a shiding scale If Lioyds TSB Group plc is ranked below
median the opuons will not be exercisable

Options granted to senior executives other than executive directors are not so highly leveraged and, as a result, different performance multipliers are applied to their
ophions For the majonty of executives, options are granted with the performance condibon but no performance multiplier
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44 Share based payments (continued)}

For optrons granted in 2005

The same condiions apply as for grants made up to August 2004, except that

—the performance conditton 1s linked to the performance of Lioyds TSB Group plc's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in
share price} against a comparator group of 15 companies including Lloyds TSB Group ple,

—if the parformance conditran has not been met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options will lapse, and

—the full grant of aptions becomes exercisable only if the Group 1s ranked in the top four places of the comparator group A shding scale applies between fourth and
eighth positions  If Lloyds TSB Group s ranked betow the median (minth or below} the options will not be exercisable and will lapse

Movements in the number of share optrons autstanding under the Executive share option schemes dunng 2005 and 2006 are set out below

2006 2005

2006 Weighted 2005 Weighted

Number of age | Number of average exercise

optlons price (pence) options price (pence}

Outstanding at 1 January 43,977,411 485 35 39,289,430 515 95
Granted - - 10,869,357 474 23
Exercised (328,218) 437 03 (202,708) 273 37
Forfeited (11,189,600) 560 77 (5,978,668} 673 41
Qutstanding at 31 Decemnber 32,459,593 459 84 43,977,411 485 35
Exercisable at 31 December 819,139 744 90 1,430,218 685 23

The weighled average share price at the time that the optiens were exercised dunng 2006 was 552 29 pence (2005 4980 15 pence} The wesghted average
remaiming contractual 1ife of ophons outstanding at the end of the year was 6 B years (2005 7 4 years)

Save-As-You-Earn schemes

Eligible employees may enter mnto contracts through the Save-As-You-Earn (SAYE) schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the expiry of a fixed term of three or
five years, have the option to use these savings within six months of the expiry of the fixed term to acquire shares in Lloyds TS8 Group pk at a price equal to
80 per cent of the market price at the date the options were granted Grants in peniods up to 31 December 2001 also had options exercising after seven years

Movements 1n the number of share ophons outstanding under the SAYE schemes are set out below

2006 2005

2006 Weighted 2005 Weighted

Number of average exercise Number of average exercise

options price (pence} oplions price (pence)

Outstanding at 1 January 114,459,474 314 17 122,115,907 32171
Granted 19,301,716 418 00 9,610,466 38000
Exercised (35,148,982) 294 84 (6,086,150 418 80
Forfeited (3,440,257} 33947 (4,404,042) 31536
Cancelled (3,984,599) 427 14 (3,722,13%) 41576
Expired {967,208) 50313 (3,054,572) 488 49
Qutstanding at 31 December 90,220,144 33594 114,459,474 314 17
Exercisable at 31 December 889,479 475 41 2,153,227 497 86

The weighted average share price at the time that the options were exercised during 2006 was 524 36 pence (2005 465 51 pence} The weighted average
remaining contractual hfe of options outstanding at the end of the year was 2 2 years (2005 2 2 years)

Other share opticn plans

Lloyds 758 Group Executive Share Plan 2003

The ptan was adopted in December 2003 and under the plan share options may be granted to senior employees, who may also be directors of Lioyds TSB Group
Options granted to date under this scheme were granted specifically to facilitate recrutment Qptions granted under this plan are not subject to any performance
conditions

. 2006 2005

2006 Weightad 2005 Weghted

Number of ag! i Number of average exercsg

options price {pence) aphons price {pence)

Qutstanding at 1 January 268,918 Nil 206,647 Nil
Granted 165,395 Nil 62,271 Nil
Exercised (77,190) Nil - -
QOutstanding at 31 December 357,123 Nil 268,918 MNil
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The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £4 58 (2005 £4 1B) The weighted average share price at the time that the ephons were
exercised dunng 2006 was 557 25 pence Mo ophons outstanding at 31 December were exercisable The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at the end of the year was 2 Q years (2005 1 9 years}

Lioyds TSB Group executive share plan 2005

This plan was adopted by the Group tn 2005, specifically to facilitate the recrustment of Ms Dial Ms Dial 1s the only participant in the plan: Options granted under this
plan are not subject to any performance condibons and will normally become exercisable only if Ms Dial remains as an employee, and has not given notice of
resignation, on 31 May 2008 The option will alse be exercisable If Ms Dial ceases to be an employee before that date in certain circumstances described in her
service agreement, m which case the options will be exercisable for six months and then lapse

2006 2005

2006 Weighted 2005 Weighted

Number of average exercise Number of average exsicise

optlons price (pence) options price {pence)

Outstanding at 1 January 242,825 N - -
Granted - - 242,825 Nil
Qutstanding at 31 December 242,825 Nil 242,825 Nil

The weightect average fair value of options granted in 2005 was £3 63 No options outstanding at 31 December were exercisable The weighted average remaining
contractual |ife of options outstanding at the end of the year was 1 9 years (2005 2 9 years)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan introduced 1n 2006 1s a long-term incentive scheme aimed at delivenng sharehalder value by linking the receipt of shares to an
improvement i the perfarmance of the Group over a three year period Awards are made within limits set by the rules of the plan, with the imits determimng the
maximum number of shares that can be awarded equaling to three times annual salary, n exceptional circumstances this may tncrease up to four times
annual salary

For awards made in 2006 there are two performance conditions measured over a performance period commencing on 1 January 2006 and ending on
31 December 2008

50 per cent of the award will be based on a conditon measunng the Group's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share
price) against a comparator group of 15 companies including Lioyds TSB Group ple To vest in full, the Group's total shareholder return must exceed the median of
the total shareholder return of the comparator group by an average of 7 5 per cent per annum 8 75 per cent of the award will vest where the Group's total
shareholder return 1s equal to the median and vesting will be on a straight-line basis between these points Where the Group s total shareholder return 15 below the
median, this pait of the award will lapse

The remairung 50 per cent of the award wall be based on earmings per share growth calculated on a compound annualised basis For the award to vest in full, the
earmings per share growth over the peformance period must be at least equivalent to an average of the Retail Price Index plus 6 per cent per annum 8 75 per cent of
the award will vest where earmings per share growth is an average of the Retall Prce Index plus 3 per cent per annum and vesting will be on a straight-line basis
between these points Where the earnings per share growth 1s less than an average of the Retail Price Index plus 3 per cent per annum this part of the award
will lapse

2006

Number of

shares

Qutstanding at 1 January -
Granted 5,852,386
Forfeited (64,278)
QCutstanding at 31 December 5,788,108

The fair value of the share awards granted in 2006 was £2 96

Performance share plan

Under the performance share plan, introduced dunng 2005, participating executives will be eligible for an awand of free shares, known as performance shares, to
match the bonus shares awarded as part of therr 2004 and 2005 bonus The maxamum match will be two performance shares for each bonus share, awarded at the
end of a three year period The actual number of Lloyts TSB Group pic’s shares awarded will depend on Lloyd TSB Group's lotal shareholder return performance
measured over a three year penod, compared to other companies in the comparator group The maximum of two performance shares for each bonus share will be
awarded only if the Group's tatal shareholder return performance places it first in the comparatar group, one performance share for each bonus share will be granted if
the Group 1s placed fifth, and one performance share for every two bonus shares if the Group ts placed eighth (median) Between first and fifth and fifth and eighth
shding scales witl apply If the total shareholder return performance 1s below median, no performance shares will be awarded There will be no retest Whilst income
tax 1s deducted from the bonus before deferral into the plan, where a match of performance shares 1s justified, these shares will be awarded as f income tax had not
been deducted
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Outstanding at 1 January
Granted
Farfeited

Outstanding at 31 Decernber

The farr value of the matching element of the performance shares awarded dunng 2006 was £1 92 {2005 £1 78}

2006 2005
MNumber of Number of
shares shares
826,438 -
1,035,564 854,116
{12,900) (27,678)
1,849,102 826,438

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaiming contractual Iife and number of options outstand:ng for the eption

schemes were as follows

Executive schemes SAYE schemes Other share aplion plans
Weighted Welghted Weighted Weighted Weighted Wesghted
average average average average average average
exercise ining life Number of exercise  remaining ife Number of exercise remaining lite Number of
price {pence) {years) options  price (penice) (years) oplicns  price (pence) {years) options
31 December 2006
Exercise price range
£0to £2 - - - - - - Nil 19 559,948
£2t0 £3 - - - 284 00 18 45,234,578 - - -
£3 10 £4 394 25 62 6,265,105 345 97 23 23,320,638 - - -
£4to £5 444 24 77 22,497,465 422 94 31 20,125,284 - - -
£51t0 £6 541 32 26 1,424,507 571 24 07 1,522,876 - - -
£6 to £7 652 98 42 1,332,177 - - - - - -
£7t0 £8 - - - 718 00 02 16,768 - - -
£81t0 £9 873 12 17 940,339 - - - - - -
Executrve schemes SAYE schemes Other shate option plans
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
exercise pnce  remaining life Number of  exerctse price  remaining hfe Number of  exertrse pnice  remaining e Number of
[pence) (years) options (pence) (years) options (pence)} {years) options
31 Pecernber 2005
Exercise pnce range
£0to £2 - - - - - - Nl 22 511,743
£21t0 £3 - - - 284 00 20 78,553,860 - - -
£3to £4 393 33 71 10,112,857 346 71 31 28535928 - - -
f£41to £5 444 04 86 24,177,788 469 50 14 3,415,737 - - -
£510 £6 542 22 37 2,320,524 544 77 11 3,821,055 - - —
£6 to £7 652 79 51 1,823,756 632 00 02 55,572 - - -
£7 to £8 71504 62 4,111,758 720 20 10 37,322 - - -
£8to £9 868 08 28 1,430,728 - - - - - -

The weighted average far value of options granted during the year was Enil {2005 £0 67) for executive ophions and £1 00 (2005 £0 98) for SAYE options The
values for executive options have been determined using a binomial model that uses a stochastic projection model to determine the effect of the market based
conditons The values for the SAYE options have been determined using a standard Black-Schales model The fair value calculations are based on the following

assumptions

Risk-free interest rate

Expected hfe

Expected volatility

Expected dwidend yield
Weighted average share pnce
Wetghted average exercise prnice
Expected forfeitures

Other option Other share

SAYE schemes plans
4.44% 4 55% 4 79%

3 5 years 29 years 3 0 years
23% 21% 19%

6 5% 6 2% 67%

£5 23 £550 E515
£4 18 - -~
6% 5% 5%

Expected volatility 15 a measure of the amount by which Lloyds TSE Group plc's shares are expected to fluctuate dunng the life of an option  The expecied volatility 1s
estimated based on the histoncal volatibty of the closing daily share price over the most recent penod that 15 commensurate with the expected life of the option The
histoncal volatility 1s compared to the implied volatihty generated from market traded ophions in Licyds TSB Group pic's shares to assess the reasonableness of the

mstoncal volatility and adjustments macde where appropriate
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Share incentive plan

Free shares

An award of Lioyds TSB Group plc shares may be made annually to employees based on a percentage of the emplayees' salary in the preceding year up to maximum
of £3,000 The percentage 15 nermally announced concurrently with Lioyds TSB Group's annual results and the price of the shares awarded 15 announced at the ime
of grant The shares awarded are held i trust for a mandatory period of three years on the employees’ behalf The award 15 subject to a non-market based condition i
an employee leaves the Lloyds TSB Group within this three year period for other than a ‘good" reason, all of the shares awarded will be forferted (for awards made up
to April 2005, only a partion of the shares will be forfeited 75 per cent within one year of the award, 50 per cent within two years and 25 per cent within three years)

The number of shares awarded relating o free shares in 2006 was 7,725,195 (2005 8,748,521), with an average fair value of £5 28 (2005 £4 57), based on
the market pnice at the date of award

Matching shares

Lloyds TSB Group undertakes to match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these shares are held tn trust for a mandatory penod of
three years on the employees’ behalf The award is subject to a non-market based condition, f an employae leaves within this three year penod for other than a ‘good’
reason or the accompanying partnership shares are sold wiathin that time, 100 per cent of the matcheng shares are forfeited {or the portion relating to the shares sold)
The number of shares awarded relating to matching shares in 2006 was 2,036,423 (2005 2,296,575), with an average farr value of £5 40 (2005 £4 73), based
on market prices at the date of award .
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45 Related party transachions

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons hawing authonty and
respensibtlity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of an entity,
the Group's key management personnel are the members of the Lloyds TSB
Group plc group execulive committee together with ds non-executive directors

The table below details, on an aggregated basis, key management persannel
compensation

2006 2005
£m £en

Compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits 14 11
Post-employment benefits 3 3
Termination benefits - -
Share based payments 3 2
Total 20 16

The aggregate of the emcluments of the drectors was £11,257,000 (2005
£8,826,000)

The aggregate of the amaount of the gains made by directors on the exercise of
Lioyds TSB Group plc share options was £125,175 (2005 £1,077,312)

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing under
defined contnbution and defined benefit pension schemes were two and four
respectively (2005 two and five) Aggregate company contributions in respect
of directors to defined contribution pension schemes were £122,000 (2005
£103,000)

The total for the highest paid director (Mr Daniels), inciuding the £7,702
(2005 £1,077,312) gain on the exercise of Lioyds TSB Group plc share
options, was £2,452,000 (2005 £3,007,000) The amount of his accrued
pension at the year end was £120,000, betng his pension entittement based on
pensicnable service with the Group to 31 December 2006 but payable at
normal retirement age

2006 2005
millions millans

Share options over Loyds TSB Group pic shares
At 1 January 12 12
Granted {includes options of apponted directors) - 3
Exercisedflapsed (includes optians of retired directors) (1) (3}
At 31 December 11 12

The tables below detail, on an aggregated basis, balances outstanding at the
year end and related income and expense, together with information relating to
other transactions between the Group and Its key management personnel

2006 2005
£m fm

Loans
AL 1 January 3 3
Advanced - 1
Interest - -
Repayments (1} m
At 31 December 2 3

The loans are on both a secured and unsacured basis and are expected to be
settled in cash The loans attracted interest rates of between 5 1 per cenl and
19 9 per cent In 2006 {2005 4 6 per cent and 17 9 per cent)
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45 Related party transactions {continued)

No provisions have been recogmised n respect of loans gven to key
management personnel (2005 E£nil)

2006 2005
£m £m

Deposits
At 1 January 5 2
Placed 12 22
Interest - -
Withdrawn (12) {19}
At 31 December 5 5

Deposits placed by key management personnel attracted interest rates of up to
5 2 per cent (2005 4 5 per cent)

At 31 December 2006, the Group provided guarantees totalling £19,744 in
respect of one director (2005 £19,744 1n respect of one director)

At 31 December 2006, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered
into by the Group and its banking subsidiaries with directors and connected
persons Included amounts outstanding in respect of loans and credit card
transactions of £2 million with four directors and four connected persons
(2005 £3 million wath four directors and three connected persons)

Batances and transactions with fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertalings
Balances and transactions between members of the Lioyds TSB Bank group

In accordance with 1AS 27, transactions and balances between the Bank and its
subsidiary undertakings, and between those subsidiary undertakings, have all
been eliminated on consclidation and thus are not reported as related party
transactions of the Group

The Bank, as a result of its position as parent of a banking group, has a large
number of transactions with vanous of its subsidiary undertakings, these are
included on the balance sheet of the Bank as follows

2006 2005
£m £m

Assets, included within

Denivative financial instruments 273 323
Loans and advances to banks 60,804 64,728
Loans and advances to customers 37,301 28,990
Other assets a77 445

98,8565 94,486

Liabilibes, ncluded within

Deposits from banks 9,513 8,407
Custamer accounts 18,294 15,318
Denvative financial enstruments 706 702
Subordinated liabilities 560 585
Other habilites 510 76

29,583 25,388

Due to the size and volume of transactions passmng thraugh these accounts, it 1s
neither practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and
outflows Dunng 2006 the Bank eamed interest income on the above asset
balances of £4,585 millon {2005 £4,128 million) and ingurred interest
expense on the above liahility balances of £940 milion {2005 £921 million)

In addition, the Bank raised recharges of £5617 million (2005 £531 million)
on s subsithanes in respect of costs incurred and also receved fees of
£583 million (2005 £625 milion}, and paid fees of £14 mithon (2005
£61 milliom), for vanous services provided between the Bank and s
subsichanes

Details of contingent liabiiies and commitments entered into on behalf of
fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings are given in note 46
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Balances and transactions with Uoyds TSB Group plc

The Bank and its subsidianes have balances due to and #rom the Bank’s parent
company, Lloyds TSB Group pic, which are included on the balance sheet
as follows

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Assets, inctuded within
Loans and advances to customers 1,850 1,692 204 655

Labilities, included within

Customer accounts 1,425 280 1,349 205
Denvative financia!l instruments 114 188 114 188
Subordinated habiities 1,714 1,714 1,114 1,114

3,253 2,182 2,577 1,807

These balances include Lloyds TSB Group pic’s banking arrangements and, due
10 the size and volume of transactrons passing through these accounts, it 15
neither practical nor meaningfu! te disclose information on gross inflows and
outflows Bunng 2006 the Group earned interest income on the above asset
balances of £3 million and the Bank earned interest income of mil (2005 Group
£5 mullien, Bank mil), the Group incurmed an interest expense on the above
liability balances of £105 million and the Bank incurred an interest expense of
£73 million {2005 Group £102 milhon, Bank £70 million)

Other related party disclosures
At 31 December 2006, the Group's penston funds had call deposits with
Lioyds TSB Bank plc amounting to £19 million (2005 £14 mutlion}

The Group manages 89 (2005 86) Open Ended Investment Companies
(‘OEICs", and of these 38 (2005 36) are consolidated The Group invested
£372 mulien (2005 £345 million} and redeemed £237 milion (2005
£265 mullion) in the unconsohdated QEICs dunng the year and had
nvestments, at fair value, of £1,746 mullion (2005 £2,074 milon) at
31 Decernber The Group earned fees of £149 milhon from the unconsolidated
OEICs (2005 £85 mithien) The Bank held no wvestments in QEICs at any e
dunng 2005 or 2006

The Group has a number of venture capital associates that it accounts for at fair
value through profit or loss At 31 December 2006, these companies had total
assets of approximately £1,625 mullion (2005 £1,194 milhon}, habiities of
approximately £1,609 milion (2005 £1,072 million) and for the year ended
31 December 2006 had turnover of approximately £2,409 milhon
{2005 £1,782 million) and made a net loss of approximately
£5 mikon (2005 profit £36 milkon) In additon the Group has
provided £460 mllion (2005 £363 mullion} of financing to these companies
on which it received £20 million (2009 £19 nullion) of interest income in
the year

46 Contingent liabilities and eommitments

Legal proceedings

Dunng the ordmary course of business the Group and the Bank are subject to
threatened or actual legal proceedings All matenal cases are periodically
reassessed, with the assistance of external professional adwisors where
appropnate, to determine the ikelihood of the Group or the Bank mcumng a
hability In those instances where 11 1s concluded that it 15 more likely than not
that a payment will be made, a provision 15 established to management's best
estimate of the amount required 1o seitle the obligation at the balance sheet
date

In same cases it wall not be possible to form a view, either because the facts are
unclear or because further time ts needed to properly assess the merits of the
case No prowsions are held agatnst such cases, however the Group and the
Bank do not currently expect the final outcome to have a matenal effect upon
the Group's or the Banks financial position

Contingent liabibities and commutments ansing from the banking business
Acceptances and endorsernents anse where the Group or the Bank agrees to
guarantee payment on a negohiable instrument drawn up by a customer

Other items serving as direct credit substitutes include standby letters of credit,
or other Irevocable obligations, serving as financial guarantees where the
Group or the Bank has an irrevocable obligation to pay a third party beneficiary
if the customer fails to repay an outstanding commitment, they also include
acceptances drawn under letters of credit or sierilar facilities where the acceptor
does not have specific title to an 1dentifiable underlying shipment of goods

Performance bonds and other transaction-related contingencies {(which include
bid or tender bonds, advance payment guarantees, VAT Customs & Excise
bonds and standby letters of credit relating to a particular contract of non-
financtal transaction) are undertakings where the requirement to make payment
under the guarantee depends on the outcome of a future event

Where the guarantees are 1ssued on behalf of customers, the Group or the Bank
usually holds collateral against the exposure or has a night of recourse to the
customer

The Group's and the Bank's maxmum exposure to 1oss 15 represented by the
contractual nominal amount detatled in the table below  Consideration has not
been taken of any possible recoveries from custorners for payments made in
respect of such guarantees under recourse provisions or from collateral held

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m Em
Contingent liabiities
Acceptances and endorsements 63 35 68 35
Guarantees =* 9373 =* 9911
Other
Other items serving as direct
credit substitutes 618 550 654 5562

Performance bonds and other
transaction refated contingencies 2,096 1,737| [ 2,114 1,753

2,714 2287 2,768 2,305
2777 11695 2,836 12,251

The Bank
2006 2005
£m £Em
Incurred on behalf of feflow Lloyds TSB Group
undertakings 62 607

*As indicated m note 1, since 1 January 2006 all of the Group’s financial
guarantee contracts have been accounted for as financial instruments and
measured at fair value on the Group's and the Bank's balance sheets
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The contingent liabilities of the Group and the Bank, as detalled above, anse in
the normal course of banking business and 1t 1s not practicable to quantify their
future financial effect

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Commitments

Documentary credits and other

short-term trade-related transactions 374 283 273 191
Forward asset purchases and

forward deposits placed 5,764 277 5,764 377
Undrawn formal standby facilities,

credit hnes and other commitments

to tend

Less than 1 year matunty

Mortgage coffers made 4,071 2,983 - -

Qther commitments 49,731| 155,310] |58,115] [60.016
53,802 58,293 58,115 60,016

1 year or over matunty 28,477 24,123 24996 22,512

88,417 82976 89,148 83,096

The Bank
2006 2005
£m £m
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds TSB Group
undertakings 12,589 8348

Of the amounts shown abave n respect of undrawn formal standby facilibes,
credit lines and other commiments to lend £51,288 mullion (2005
£43,094 milen} for the Group and £52,419 millon (2005
£46,189 million) for the Bank were Irrevocable

Operaling lease commitments
Where a Group company 15 the lessee, the future mimimum lease payments
under non-cancellable premises operating leases are as foltows

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Mot later than 1 year 212 216 192 187
Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 733 784 677 654
Later than 5 years 835 1,016 759 863

1,780 2016 1,628 1,744

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for centam of
s propertes Some of these operating lease amangernents have renewal
options and rent escalation clauses, although the effect of these 1s not matenal
No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

Finance lease commutments
Where a Group company 15 the lessee the future obligations payable under
finance leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m £m
Not later than 1 year 1 1 - -

Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years - - - -
Later than 5 years 15 15 15 15

16 16 15 15

46 Contingent lrabilities and commitments {continued)

Finance lease payments relate to leases of premises with 2 net book value of
£14 rullion for the Group and £14 rmullion for the Bank (2005 £14 aullion for
the Group and £14 rmillien for the Bank) and equipment with a net book value
of £1 milhon for the Group and £1 milkton for the Bank (2005 £2 mullion for
the Group and £2 rillion for the Bank) No arrangements have been entered
into for conungent rental payments The fair value of these finance lease
obhigations approximates their carrying amount at 31 December 2006 and
2005

Capital commutments

Excludrng commitments of the Group In respect of investment property (see
note 20}, capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December
2006 amounted to £75 millon for the Group and £1 mullion for the Bank
(2005 £223 milhon for the Group and £8 million for the Bank) Of the caputal
commitments of the Group, £74 millign (2005 £215 mihon) relates to assets
to be leased to customers under operating teases The Group's management 1s
confident that future net revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover these
commitments

47 Financial nsk management

Strategy tn using financial instruments
The Group uses financial instruments (including denvatwes) to meet the
financial needs of Its customers, as part of its trading activities and to reduce its
own exposure to market and credit risks

The Group accepts deposits from and makes loans to commercial and retail
customers at both fixed and floating rates and for vanous penods Such
exposures to customers nvelve both on balance sheet loans and advances and
guarantees and other commitments such as letters of credit and revocable
commitments

The pnemary nsks affecting the Group through its use of finanoial instruments
are credit nsk, market nsk, which includes interest rate nsk and fareign
exchange nsk, insurance nsk, and hquidity nsk Infermation about the Group's
management of these nsks I1s given below

Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of reduchons in earnings and/or value, through financiat or
reputational loss, as a result of the failure of the party with whom we have
contracted to meet Its obligations (both on and off balance sheet)

Credit nsk 15 managed according to baseline credtt framework standards,
against which all activity 1s assessed Thus framework dentifies the following
key elements governance, organisational framework, policies, people,
processes and procedures, management nformation, and systems and
technology

Credit risk can anse from lending or investing or through off balance sheet
activities such as guarantees or the undertaking of settlement or delivery risk
The pnmary off balance sheet instruments used by the Group are guarantees
together with standby, documentary and commescial letters of credit

In its pnncipal retail portiolios, the Group uses statistically-based decisioning
techriques {(pnmarnly credit sconng), although thresholds are set above which
an individual tredit assessment takes place Divisional nisk departments review
scorecard effectiveness and approve changes, with matenal changes subject to
Lloyds TSB Group Risk approval Credit nsk in non-resaif perifoltos 15 subject to
ndwidual credit assessments, which consider the strengths and weaknesses of
indmidual transactions and the balance of nsk and reward

Credit nsk exposures 1n the snsurance businesses anse primanly from holding
mvestments and from exposure to reinsurers Control 15 exercised over those
exposures through a sutable combination of formal limits set out in mandates,
credit policy parameters and high level committee oversight
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Credit nsk also anses from the use of denvatives Nole 15 shows the total
notional pnincipal amount of interest rate, exchange rate, credit denvative and
equity and other contracts outstanding at 31 December 2006 The notional
prnncipal amount does nat, however, represent the Group's credit nsk exposure,
which 15 imited to the current cost of replacing confracts with a positive vatue to
the Group To mitigate credit nsk the Group makes use of credit enhancement
techniques such as netung and collaterahsaton, where secunty 15 provided
against the expasure

Credit nsk may also anse through the existence of contracts for the provision of
senices or products to Lloyds TSB and this 1s also considered through
indmidual credit assessments, where the nisks of loss are matenal

Day-to-day credit management and asset qualily within each business 15
primarily the responsibility of the relevant business director

Credit quality 1s supported by specialist units to prowide, for example ntensive
management and control, secunty perfection, maintenance and retention,
expertise In documentation for lending and associated products, sector-specific
expertise, and legal services applicable to the particular market place and
product range offered by the business

Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been ncurred at the
balance sheet date Changes in general economic conditions in the UK or in
interest rates could result in losses that are different from those pravided for at
the balance sheet date

Lloyds TSB Group has dedicated standards, policies and procedures for the
measurement, control and monitoring of credit and related nsks The Group
controls 1ts exposure to indmidual counterparties, groups of counterparties and
customer nsk segments through a tered hierarchy of delegated sanctioning
authonties Approval requirements for each decision are based on the
transaction amount, the customer's aggregated facitiies, credit nsk ratings
and the nature and term of the nsk Regular reports on sigmificant credit
exposures are provided to the Lloyds TSB Group group executive commuttee and
board In addition, Lloyds TSB Group Risk sets sector caps that reflect the
Group's nsk appetite to control excessive concentrations of nsk

The Group monitors Its credit nisk exposure through the use of a Group rating
system with ratings corresponding to a range of prababilities of future default,
portfolio anatysis to identify and define portfolios of credit and related nsk
exposures and the appropnate benchmarks by which the Group manages the
credt nsk exposure of those portfolios Monitoning reports are produted
regularly for review by Lloyds TSB Group Risk

Where 1t s efficient and hikely to be effective {generally with counterparties with
which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions), the Group enters mnto
master netting arrangements  Although master netting arrangements do not
gererally result 1n an offset of balance sheet assets and labihues, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis, they do reduce the credit
nsk 1o the extent that if an event of defaull occurs, all amounts with the
counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis The Group's overall
exposure to credit nsk on denvabive instruments subject to master neting
arrangements can change substantially wathin a short pericd since it s affected
by each transaction subject to the arrangement

At 31 December 2006, the maximum crecit nsk exposure of the Group and the
Bank in the event of cther parties farling to perform their abligations is detailed
below Mo account 1s taken of any collateral held and the maxymum exposure to
loss 15 considered to be the balance sheet carrying amount or, for nan-derivative
off-balance sheet transactions and financial guarantees, their confractual
nominal amounts

-

L
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2006 2005
The Group Em £m
Loans and advances to banks 40,639 31,656
Loans and advances to customers 192,328 { 178,707
Deposit amounts avarlable for offset! (6,392)| | (6,414)
Impairment losses (2,194} | (2,073)
224,381 201,876
Available-for-sale debt secunties and treasury bills 19,163 14,894
Contingent hiabilities 2,777 11,695
Financaal gL:arantees2 8,139 -
Undrawn irrevocable formal standby facilibies, credit
lines and other commitments to lend? 51,288 43,004
Denvative assets, before neting 5,565 5,878
Amounts available for ofiset under master neting
arrangements’ {2,761)] |_ (3,235}
2,804 2,643
Trading and other financial assets at fair vatue through
profit or loss 29,568 26,869
338,120 301,071
2006 2005
The Bank Em £m
Loans and advances to banks 86,589 86,091
Loans and advances to customers 108,276 | | 93,477
Deposit amounts available for offset? (6,040} [ (6,073)
imparrment losses (1,701} | (1,719)
187,124 171,776
Available-for-sale debt secunties and treasury bills 3,958 4,457
Contingent habtlities 2,836 12,251
Financial guarantees? 8,633 -
Undrawn irrevacable formal standby facilites, credit
lines and other commitments to lend? 52,419 46,189
Denvative assets, before netting 5,665 6,050
Amounts available for offset under master netting
arrangements’ (2,761)] | (3,235)
2,904 2815
Trading and other financial assets at fair vatue through
profit or loss 8,810 5,923
266,684 243,411

Deposit amounts avallable for offset and amounts available for offset under
master netting arrangements do not meet the cntena under |1AS 32 to enable
loans and advances and denvative assets respectively to be presented net of
these balances in the financial statements

See note 46 - Cantingent hiabiities and commitments for further infermation

Market risk

Market nsk is the nsk of reductions i earmings and/or value, through financial
or reputational Yoss, ansing from unexpected changes in finangal pnces,
including interest rates, exchange rates and bond, commedity and equity
prices The Group's banking actwvites expose It to the nsk of adverse
movements in nterest rates or exchange rates, with Iitle or no exposure to
equity or commaodity sk The Group's insurance activities also expose it to
market nsk The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes are exposed to
significant nsks from the consbtuent parts of their assets, pnimarnly equity and
interest rate nsk, and from the present value of therr habilities
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The pnimary market nsk measure used within the Group s the Value at Risk
(VaR) methodology, which incorporates the volatilty of relevant market prices
and the correlation of their movements Although an important measure of risk,
VaR has lismtations as a result of its use of histonical data, assumed distribution,
holding periods and frequency of calcutation The use of confidence levels does
not convey any information about potential loss when the confidence level 1s
exceeded VaR 15 also not well suited to options positions  The Group recognises
these limitations and supplements its use with a vanety of other technigues
These reflect the nature of the business actvity and mclude interest rate
re-pricing gaps, open exchange positrons and sensitivity analysis Stress testing
and scenano analysis are also used in certain portiolios and at Group level to
stmulate extreme condittons to supplement these core measures The nsk of
loss measured by the VaR model 1s the potential loss in earnings  The total and
average trading VaR does not assume any dwversification benefit across the
three nsk types The maxmum and minimum VaR reported for each nisk
category did not necessanly occur on the same day as the maxmum and
minimum VaR reperted as a whole

Trading

Based on the commenly used 95 per cent confidence level, assuming pasthions
are held overnight and using observation penads of the preceding three years,
the VaR for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 based on the
Group's global tfrading positions was as detailed in the following table (the table
also aggregates potential loss measures from options portiolios}

The Group
31 December 2006
Closing Average Maximum  Minimum
£m £m £m £m
Interest rate nsk i3 23 46 06
Foreign exchange nisk 03 03 07 00
Equity nsk 00 00 00 00
Total VaR (no diversification) a6 26 50 09
31 December 2005
Clesing Average Maximum  Mimnimum
Em £m £m £m
Interest rate nsk 09 18 45 05
Foreign exchange nsk 02 03 04 02
Equity nsk 0o co co 00
Total VaR (no diversification) 11 21 47 0g

VaR figures for the Bank are not matenally different to those of the Group

Non-trading

The Group s banking non-trading exposure 15 summarised in the form of an
interest rate repricing table, as set out on page 64 Items are allocated to ime
bands by reference to the earhier of the next contractual interest rate repricing
date and the matunity date However, the 1able does not take into account the
effect of interest rate options used by the Group to hedge its exposure

it 15 estmated that a hypothetical immediate and sustained 100 basis poiats
increase 1N interest fates on 1 January 2007 would decrease net interest
income by £237 8 multion for the 12 months to 31 Decemnber 2007, while a
hypothetrcal immediate and sustained 100 basts point decrease in interest rates
would increase net interest income by £237 4 million  An analysis by currency
Is shown bhelow
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Asia & Europe &
North  Austra Middle Total Total
UK  America lasla East 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em £m £m

Change n net interest
incorme from a + 100
basis point shift in
yield curves

Change in net Interest

income from a -100

basrs point shift in

yield curves 207 2 128 {03) 177 2374 1047

{2076) (128 03 (177 (2378 (1125

The analysis above Is subject to certain simplifying assumptions cluding, but
not hmited to, all rates of all matunties worldwide move simultaneously by the
same amount, all positiens in the wholesale books run to matunty, and there 1s
no management action in response to movements in interest rates, in particular
no changes to preduct margins

In practice, positions in both the retail and whelesale books are actively managed
and actual impact en net interest income may be different to the modet

For the insurance business the compositicn, and value, of surplus assets held in
excess of labilibes are reported to Lloyds TSB Group Risk on a monthly basis
The figures quoted betow are the sumn of the two portfolios with no allowance for
diversification between portfolios or asset classes and represents the potential
loss in earnings

The following table shows closing, average, maximum and minimum VaR for
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 cn a 99 per cent confidence
ten day basis

The Group
31 December 2006
Closing Average Maximum  Mini
£m £m £m Em
Interest rate 115k 179 191 205 169
Farergn exchange nsk 26 32 35 26
Equity nsk 431 209 431 394
Total VaR 636 63 2 659 597
31 December 2005
Clasing Average  Maumum  Minimurn
£m £m Em £m
Interest rate risk 198 179 200 158
Foreign exchange nsk 33 28 35 23
Equity nsk 417 477 573 354
Total VaR B4 8 68 4 778 591

The Group's structural foreign exchange posiion at 31 December 2006 15 set
out on page 66 The position imples that at 31 December 2006 a hypothetcal
increase of 10 per cent in the value of sterling against all other currencies would
have led to a £43 mullron reduction In reserves, and vice versa On this basis,
there would have been no matenal impact on the Group's nsk asset ratios

Banking actmbies

Most of the Group's trading activity 1s undertaken to meet the requirements of
wholesale and retail customers for foreign exchange and interest rate products
However, some interest rate and exchange rate positions are taken using
denvabives and on balance sheet instruments wath the object of earring a profit
from favourable movements in market rates Trading 15 restricted to a number of
specialist centres, the most important centre being financial markets drnasion in
London These centres also manage market nsk in the wholesale banking
books, both in the UK and internationally The level of exposure 15 strctly
controlled and monitored within approved hmits Active management of the
wholesale book 15 necessary to meet customer requirements and changing
market circumstances
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Market nisk in the Gioup’s retail porifolios and in the Group's capital funds s
managed within krmits defined in the detailed group policy for interest rate nsk
in the banking book, which s reviewed annually and approved by the Lloyds
TSB Group asset and habiity committee The structural foreign exchange
position 1s managed having regard to the currency composiion of the Group's
nsk-weighted assets The cbiective 1s to mit the effect of exchange rate
movements on the published nsk asset rato

Insurance activities

Market nsk exposures from the insurance businesses are controlled via
approved mvestment policies set with reference to the Group's overall nsk
appetite and regularly reviewed by the Lloyds TSB Group asset and habity
cormitiee

With-profits funds are managed in accordance wath the relevant fund's
Principles and Practices of Financial Management

The investment strategy for other insurance habilibies 15 determined by the term
and nature of the underlying habilities and asset/liability matching positions are
actively monitored  Actuanal tools are used to project and match cash flows

Investment strategy for surplus assets held in excess of habilities takes account
of the regulatory and internal business requirements for capital to be held to
support the business now and in the future

The Group haises with the pension scheme trustees with regard to strategies for
the overall mix of pension assets

Interest rate sk

In the Group's retail banking business interest rate risk artses from the different
repricing charactenstics of the assets and habiliies Liabilities are erther
nsensitive to interest rate movemnents, for example interest free of very low
interest custorner deposits, or are sensitive to interest rate changes but bear
rates which may be vaned at the Group's discretion and that for competitive
reasons generally reflect changes in the Bank of England s base rate There are
a relatively small volume of deposits whose rate 15 contractually fixed for therr
term to matunty

Many banking assets are sensitive to Interest rate movements, there 1s a large
volume of managed rate assets such as variable rate mongages which may be
considered as a natural offset to the interest rate nsk ansing from the managed
rate fiabiMites However a significant proportion of the Group's lending assets,
for example personal loans and mosigages, bear nterest rates which are
contractuably fixed for penods of up to five years or longer

The interest rate nsk ansing from the Group's retal banking actvities 1s
managed centrally, in part by the use of internal interest rate swaps For
accounting purposes 1AS 39 does not permit the use of internal derrvatives in
hedge relationships and, although economically the position 1s hedged, this
leads to volatility in the income staternert In response to this the Group has
created a function the purpose of which 1s to establish accounuing hedge
relationships 1n order to reduce the volatility ansing in the income statement
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The Group establishes twa types of hedge accounting relaticnships for interest
rate nisk far value hedges and cash flow hedges The Group Is exposed to fair
value interest rate nisk on its fixed rate customer loans, 15 fixed rate customer
deposits and the majonty of its suberdinated debt, and to cash flow interest rate
nsk on Its vanable rate loans and deposits together with its floating rate
subordinated debt The majonity of the Group's hedge accounting relationships
are far vatue hedges where interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest
rate nsk intherent in the fixed rate mortgage portfolio At 31 December 2006 the
agpregate notional principal of interest rate swaps designated as fair value
hedges was £37,378 million (2005 £39,568 miltion) with a net fair value
liabilty of £110 million {2005 £248 mullion) (see note 15) In additon the
Group has a smal! number of cash flow hedges which are primanly used to
hedge the vaniability in the cost of funding withtn the wholesale business These
cash flows are expected to occur over the next six years and will be reported in
the income staterment as they take place The notional principal of the interest
rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges at 31 December 2006 was
£569 million (2005 £648 million) with a net fair value liability of £8 mullion
{2005 £18 mulion) (see note 15)
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The tables below summanse the repnicing mismatches of the Group's and the Bank's financial assets and habiliies Items are allocated to time bands by reference to
the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the matunty date

The Group

As at 31 December 2006

Assets

Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments™

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabihties

Deposits from banks

Customer accounts

Denvative financeal sanstruments, trading and other habilities at
fair value through profit or logs*

Debt secunties in issue

Liabilittes ansing from insurance and investrent contracts
Other habilities

Subordinated habilities

Total hiabdities
Met repncing gap

As at 31 December 2005

Assels

Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Dervative financial instruments*

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customens
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assats

Liabilities

Depasits from banks

Customner accounts

Denvative financial instruments, trading and other labilities at
fair value through profit or loss*

Debt secunties in 1ssue

Liabilities ansing from insurance and investment contracts
Other habilives

Subordinated labilties

Total habilities
Net repneing gap

3 months or 1 yearor 5 years or

1 month or  less but over  less but over  less but over Non interest
tess 1 menth 3 months 1 year Owver 5 years bearing Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1,455 867 1,012 5,177 21,057 38,360 67,928
- - - - - 5,565 5,565
24,652 1,561 1,561 7,449 5,346 59 40,638
71,081 17,711 19,572 60,845 19,110 1,816 190,135
5,525 10,732 1,554 1,174 138 15 19,178
828 48 - - - 21,344 22,220
103,541 30,919 23,739 74,645 45,651 67,169 345,664
28,157 3,654 1,716 827 1,920 120 36,394
124,974 3,444 4,802 1,809 1,333 4,405 140,767
- - 55 467 634 5,905 7,061
29,672 13,562 5,059 1,339 4,486 - 54,118
- - - - - 66,655 66,655
37 27 2 - 4,583 12,038 16,687
1,337 561 750 2,657 6,051 150 11,506
184,177 21,248 12,384 7,099 19,007 89,273 333,188
(80,636) 9,671 11,355 67,546 26,644 {22,104) 12,476

3 months or 1 year or 5 years or

I monthor lessbutover  less butover  less but over Non-interest
less 1 month 3 months 1 year  Over 5 years bearning Total
Em £m £m £m Em £m Em
1,734 2418 1,035 3,796 17,886 33,698 60,567
- - - - - 5,878 5,878
25,107 2,483 2,923 370 57 715 31,655
72,897 17,048 20,327 51,044 13,594 1,625 176,635
1,695 8,674 1,221 1,497 1,678 175 14,940
185 50 ~ - - 21,701 21,946
101,728 30,673 25,506 56,707 33,215 63,792 311,621
23,859 4,866 1,472 131 1,070 129 31,827
112,831 4,901 3,941 4,061 1,413 4,203 131,350
- - - - - 6,584 6,584
20,411 8,396 3,905 1,709 4,925 - 39,346
- - - - - 63,041 63,041
50 23 65 1 3,256 12,083 15,518
1,346 640 504 2,381 7,614 150 12,635
158,497 18,826 9,887 8,283 18,318 86,190 300,001
{56,769) 11,847 15,619 48,424 14,897 (22,398) 11,620

*Derrvative financial instruments which are exposed to interest rate nsk are cained in the balance sheet at fair value and for the purposes of this analysis have been

treated as non-interest beanng
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The Bank

As at 31 December 2006

Assets

Trading and other financial assets at farr value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments*

Loans and advances {o banks

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from banks

Customer accounts

Denvative financial instruments, trading and other habilimes at
fair value through profit or loss*

Debt secuniies n 155ue

QOther hiabilities

Subordinated habilities

Total habihties
Net repricing gap

As at 31 December 2005

Assels

Trading and other financial assets at far value
through profit or loss

Denwvative financial instruments*

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances {0 customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilitres

Deposits from banks

Customer accounts

Denvative financial instruments, trading and other habilities at
fair value through profit or loss*

Debt securities in 1ssue

Other hiabiibes

Subordinated iabilibies

Tolal habilibes
Net repncing gap

3 months or 1 year or 5 years or

1 month or  less but over  less but over  less but over Non interest
less 1 month 3 months 1 year Over 5 years bearing Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m
491 465 676 3,496 3,682 9 8,819
- - - - - 5,665 5,665
27,340 4,865 11,647 34,991 7.443 302 86,588
46,092 11,261 7,000 19,069 14,880 8,274 106,576
1,207 1,836 666 114 134 15 3,972
824 48 - - - 24,849 25,721
75,954 18,475 19,989 57,670 26,139 39,114 237,341
35,622 3,948 2,090 1,388 902 120 44,070
100,910 12,692 5,261 3,084 1,471 4,520 127,938
- - 55 467 634 6,433 7.589
17,361 4,689 4,844 1,339 4,486 - 32,719
- 27 2 - - 5,952 5,981
737 561 750 2,657 5,426 150 10,281
154,630 21,917 13,002 8,935 12,919 17,175 228,578
(78,676) {3,442) 6,987 48,735 13,220 21,939 8,763

3 months or 1 year or less S years or

1 menth or  less but ever but over  less but aver Nor-nterest
less 1 month 3 months 1 year Over 5 years beanng Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1,207 2,059 530 1,762 366 - 5,924
- - - - - 6,050 6,050
39,465 4,926 12,778 25,466 2,496 959 86,090
41,991 10,350 8,031 14,235 11,301 5,851 91,759
828 2,391 923 161 26 174 4,503
185 46 - - - 23,214 23,445
83,676 19,772 22,262 41,624 14,189 36,248 217,771
29,972 5,103 1,751 546 - 601 37,973
94,395 9,719 3,420 3,143 886 3,942 115,505
- - - - - 7,212 7.212
13,122 7.878 3,682 1,709 4,925 - 31,316
3 26 1 - - 6,070 6,100
746 640 504 2,381 6,961 150 11,382
138,238 23,366 9,358 7,779 12,772 17,975 209,488
(54,562) (3,594) 12,904 33,845 1,417 18,273 8,283

*Dervative financial instruments which are exposed to interest rate nsk are carned 1n the balance sheet at fair value and for the purposes of this analysis have been

treated as non-interest bearing

65




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

MNotes to the accounts

47 Financial nsk management {contnued)

Currency risk

Foreign exchange exposures compnse those onginahing 1 treasury trading
activities and structural foreign exchange exposures, which anse from
investment in the Group's overseas operations

The corporate and retarl businesses incur foreign exchange nsk in the course of
provicding services to therr customers All non-structural foreign exchange
exposures tn the non-trading book are transferred to the trading area where they
are monitored and controlled These nsks reside in the authonsed trading
centres who are allocated exposure lrmits The imits are monitored daily by the
local centres and reported to Group Treasury Group Treasury calculates the
associated VaR and the closing, average, maxmum and mimmum for 2005
and 2006 are disclosed on page 62

Risk anses from the Group's investments in its overseas operations The Group's
structural foreign currency exposure is represented by the net asset value of the
foreign currency equity and subordinated debt investments in s subsidianes
and branches Gains or losses on structural forelgn curiency exposures are
taken to retained earnings

The Group and the Bank hedge part of the currency translation nisk of a net
investment In a foreign operation using a cross currency swap At 31 December
2006 the notional principal of this cross currency swap was £2,589 miliion
with a net fair value asset of £139 million (see note 15) and was designated on
an after-tax basis as a hedge of a net investment tn a foreign operation

The structural position 1s managed by Lloyds TSB Group Capital Funds having
regard to the currency composition of the Group's nsk weighted assets and
reported to the Lloyds TSB Group asset and liability committee on a monthly
basis The Group’s main overseas operations are In the Amencas and Europe
Details of the Group’s structural foreign currency exposures are as follows

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £Em £m £m
Functional currency of Group
operatons
Euro 76 80 48 49
US doflar a7 102 35 37
Swiss franc 70 56 45 44
Other non-sterhing 188 183 161 149

431 421 289 279

Insurance nsk

Insurance nsk 1s the nsk of reduchons sn earmings andfor value, through
financial or reputational loss, due te fluctuations in the tming, frequency and
seventy of nsured/underwntten events and to fluctuations in the tming and
amount of claim settlements This includes fluctuations in profits due to
customer behaviour

The major sources of nsurance nsk withun the Group are the insurance
businesses and the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes The nature of
insurance business involves the accepting of insurance nsks which relate
primanly to mortahty, morbidity, persistency, expenses, property damage and
unemployment The prime insurance nsk carned by the Groups pension
schemes s related to mortality

Control 15 exercised pnmanly through a suitable combination of high level
committees/boards For the life assurance businesses the key control body 1s
the board of Scottsh Widows Group Limited with the more sigruficant nisks alse
being subject to approval by the Lioyds TSB Gioup executive committee and/or
the Lioyds TSB Group board For the general insurance businesses the key
conirol body 1s Lloyds TSB {nsurance executive committee with the more
significant nsks agan being subject to Lloyds TSB Group executive comimiitee
and/or Lloyds TSB Group board approval All group pensien scheme issues are
covered by the Lloyds TSB Group asset and hiability commitiee
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Insurance nsks are measured using a vanety of techniques including stress and
scenano testing, and where appropriate stochastic modelling

New insurance proposals are underwntten to ensure an appropriate premium 1s
charged for the nsk or the nsk 1s declined

Limits are used as a control mecharism for tnsurance nsk at policy level

Some Insurance nsks are retained while others are reinsured with external
underwnters The retained nisk level 15 carefully controlled and momitored, wath
close attention being paid to underwnting, claims management, product design,
policy wordings, adequacy of reserves, solvency management and regulatory
requirements

General Insurance exposure to accumulations of nsk and passible catastrophes
Is mitigated by resnsurance arrangements which are broadly spread over
different reinsurers Detailed modelling, including that of the probable
maumum loss under varnious catastrophe scenarios, supports the choice of
reinsurance arrangements Appropriate reinsusance arrangements also apply
within the Iife and pensions businesses with significant montality nsk and
morbidity nsk being transferred to our chosen reinsurers

Options and guaraniees are sncorporated 1n new insurance products only after
careful consideration of the sk management issues that they present

Expenses are monitered by an analysts of the Group's expenence relative to
budget Reasons for any significant divergence from expectation are tnvestigated
and remedial action taken

Persistency rates of hife assurance policies, which relate to the rate of policy
termination and the rate at which palicies cease 1o pay regular premiums, are
regulasly assessed by reference to appropnate nsk factors

Liquidity nsk

The Group Is exposed to daily calls on its cash resources from current account
and other amounts repayable on demand, overmight and other maturing
deposits, loan draw-downs and cash-settled denvative instruments

The Group's policy requires that each business umit meets s financial
obligations as they fall due, that the Group complies with the Financial Services
Authonty Stering Stock Liquidity Policy in the UK and that all local regulatory
requirements are met

A substantial proportion of the customer deposit base 1s made up of curtent and
savings accounts which, although repayable on demand, have traditionally
provided a stable source of funding Dunng 2006, amounts deposited by
custorners increased by £9,417 milion from £131,35¢ million at
31 December 2005 to £140,767 milllon at 31 December 2006 These
customner deposits are supplemented by the ssue of subordinated loan capitat
and wholesale funding sources in the capital markets, as well as from direct
customer contracts Wholesale funding sources in¢lude deposits taken on the
inter-bank market, certificates of deposit, sale and repurchase agreements, a
Euro Medium-Term Note programme and commercial paper programmes The
Group has also raised wholesale funding via the issuance of Residential
Morigage Backed Securnittes, £10,048 mithon was outstanding at 31 December
2006

The ability to sell assets guickly 15 atso an important source of iquidity for the
Group's banking businesses The Group holds sizeable balances of marketable
debt secunties which could be disposed of to provide additional funding should
the need anse
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The tables below analyse assets and ltabilities of the Group and the Bank into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining pened at the balance sheet date,
balarces wath no fixed matunty are included within the aver 5 years category

Matunties of assets and habidities

The Group

As at 31 December 2006

Assels

Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit o loss

Denvative financial instruments

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilites

Deposits from banks

Customer accounts

Denvative financial instruments, trading and other hiabilities at fair value
through profit ar loss

Debt secunties in 155ue

Liabitities ansing from insurance and investment contracts

Other habilibes

Subordinated hatiliies

Total habilies
Net hquidity gap

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instrurnents

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances lo customers
Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabiities

Depostis from banks

Custorner accounts

Dervative financial iInstruments, trading and aother habilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt secunties 1n 1ssue

Liabiities ansing from msurance and nvestment contracts

Other liabilities

Subordinated habilities

Total habihities
Net hqudity gap

Upta 13 312 15 Over 5
1 month morths months years years Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m
886 782 805 5,589 59,766 67,928
559 740 1,198 1,749 1,319 5,565
22,491 1,349 1,539 9,807 5,452 40,638
29,924 8,223 10,716 40,633 100,639 190,135
652 1,301 3,446 6,919 6,860 19,178
6,200 191 71 175 15,583 22,220
60,712 12,586 17,875 64,872 189,619 345,664
Upto 13 312 1.5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Tatal
Em £m £m £m £m £m
28,268 3,659 1,707 818 1,942 36,3954
129,158 3,394 4,960 1,854 1,401 140,767
932 709 751 1,991 2,678 7,061
28,320 4,866 5,912 8,611 6,409 54,118
945 832 2,292 12,474 50,112 66,655
5,586 325 437 274 10,065 16,687
- - 300 1,673 9,533 11,506
193,209 13,785 16,359 27,695 82,140 333,188
(132,497) (1,199) 1,516 7177 107,479 12,476
Upto 1-3 3-12 15 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £m Em Em Em
520 818 1,051 6,271 51,907 60,567
848 618 603 1,906 1,903 5,878
24,372 1,513 3,955 1,357 458 31,655
24,560 7.696 10,944 39,132 94,303 176,635
130 1,092 1,838 6,638 5,241 14,940
6,256 246 68 154 15,222 21,946
56,686 11,983 18,460 55,458 169,034 311,621
Up to 1-3 312 15 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £m Em £m Em
23,839 4,778 1,710 141 1,059 31,527
117,624 5,065 3317 3,773 1,571 131,350
690 657 799 1,893 2,545 6,584
20,629 8,395 3,887 1,586 4,849 39,346
1,030 359 1.263 9,502 50,887 63,041
5,561 306 602 265 8,784 15,518
- - - 1,082 11,553 12,635
169,373 19,560 11,578 18,242 81,248 300,001
{112,687) (7,577} 6,882 37,216 87,786 11,620
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47 Financial nsk management (continued)

The Bank

As at 31 December 2006

Assets

Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Dernvative financial mstruments

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from banks

Customer accounts

Dernvative financial instruments, trading and other liabiliies at fair value
through profit o loss

Debt securties in issue

Other habilhities

Subordinated habilities

Total labshties
Net hquidity gap

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Trading and other financial assets at far value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances {0 customers
Avatlable-for-sale financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabiities

Depoasits from banks

Customer accounts

Denvative financial instruments, trading and other habihties at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt secunties in 1ssue

Other liabilittes

Subordinated liabilities

Total habihties
Net higuichty gap

Upto 13 312 15 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £Em £m £m £m
291 378 549 3,781 3,820 8,819
564 633 1,287 1,746 1,435 5,665
27,211 4,333 11,655 35,469 7,920 86,588
54,009 10,6223 6,753 19,584 15,607 106,576
460 629 814 1,081 988 3,972
4,318 152 111 245 20,895 25,721
86,853 16,748 21,169 61,906 50,665 237,341
Up to 13 312 15 Over 5§
1 meonth manths months years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
35,742 3,948 2,090 1,388 902 44,070
104,564 5301 11,423 4,502 2,148 127,938
796 744 802 2,495 2,752 7,589
17,361 4,685 4,844 1,339 4,486 32,719
3,579 125 86 127 2,064 5,981
- - 300 1,423 8,558 10,281
162,042 14,807 19,545 11,274 20,910 228,578
(75,189) 1,841 1,624 50,632 29,755 8,763
Upte i-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
1 menth months months years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
219 456 540 4,104 605 5,924
825 506 652 2,021 2,046 6,050
40,701 3,371 6,214 33,688 2,116 86,090
42,889 6,606 7,162 18,519 16,583 91,759
126 1,085 757 1,161 1,374 4,503
4,456 151 100 249 18,489 23,445
89,216 12,175 15,425 59,742 41,213 217,771
Upio 13 3-12 1-5 Over 5
1 menth months months years years Total
Em Em Em £m £m £m
29,9535 4,920 2,105 993 - 37,973
95,589 4,952 4,990 5,986 3,988 115,505
688 600 800 2372 2,752 7212
13,338 7.879 3,664 1,586 4,849 31,316
3,487 109 243 63 2,198 6,100
- - - 1,082 10,300 11,382
143,057 18,460 11,802 12,082 24,087 200,488
(53,841) (6,285) 3,623 47,660 17,126 8,283

The matching and controlled smismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and habilities 1s fundamental to the management of the Group An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the nsk of losses
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47 Financial nsk management (continyed)

Fair values of financial assets and liabihities

Financial nstruments include financia! assets, financial habilibes and
denivatives The fair value of a financial instrument 15 the ameunt at which
the instrument could be exchanged 1 a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or iquidation sale

Wherever possible, farr values have been estimated using market prices for
instruments held by the Group Where market prices are not avatlable, fair
values have been estimated using quoted values for instruments with
charactentstics either rdentical or simifar to those of the instruments held by
the Group In certain cases, where no ready markets currently exist, vanous
techniques {such as discounted cash flows, or observations of similar recent
market transactions) have been developed to estimate what the approximate
fair value of such instruments might be These estimation techmiques are
necessarlly subjective in nature and involve several assurmptions

The farr values presented in the following table are at a specific date and may be
significantly different from the amounts which will actually be paid or receved
on the matunty or settlerment date

Because a vanety of estmation techmiques are employed and significant
estimates made, compansens of fair values between financial institutions may
not be meaningful Readers of these financial statements are thus advised to
use caution when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

Farr value information 1s not provided for tems that do not meet the defintions
of a financial instrument These items include intangible assets, such as the
value of the Group's branch network, the long-term relationships with
depositors and credit card refationships, premises and equipment, and
shareholders equity These items are material and accordingly the Group
believes that the far value information presented does not represent the
underlying value of the Group

The valuation technique for each major category of financial instrument 1s
discussed below

Trading and other financial assets at far value through profit or joss
Fair vatue 1s determined using market pnces

Derwvatrve financial instruments

Al denvatives are recognised at thewr fair value Fair values are obtained frem
quoted market pnces in active markets, including recent market transactions,
and using valuatien techmiques, including discounted cash flow and options
pricing models, as appropriate Derrvatives are camed in the batance sheet as
assets when their fair value 1s positive and as llabilites when therr fair value 1s
negative

Loans and advances to banks and customers

The Group provides loans and advances to commercial, corporate and personal
customers at both fixed and vanable rates The carrying value of the vanable
rate loans and those relating 1o lease financing 1s assumed to be their fair value
For fixed rate lending, several different technigues are used to estimate farr
value, as considered appropriate For commercial and personal customers, fair
value 15 pancipally esbmated by discounting antictpated cash flows (including
interest at contractual rates) at market rates for similar loans offered by the
Group and other financial institubons The far value for corporate loans 1s
estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows at a rate which reflects the
effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes in credit sk Certain loans
secured on residential properties are made at 2 fixed rate for a meted penod,
typically two to five years, after which the loans reven to the relevant vanable
rate The fair value of such loans 1s estimated by reference to the market rates
for similar loans of matunity equal to the remaning fixed interest rate penod
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47 Financial sk management (continued)

Avalfable-for-sale financial assets

Listed secunties are valued at current bid pnices Unbsted secunities and other
financial assets are valued based on disceunted cash flows, market prices of
similar instruments and other appropnate valuation techrigues

Investment properties
Fair values represent open-market values determined by an independent,
professionally qualified valuer

Deposits from banks and customer accounts

The fair vatue of depasits repayable on demand is considered o be equal to
therr carrying value The fair value for all other deposits and customer accounis
1s estimated using discounted cash flows apphying either market rates, where
apphcable, or current rates for deposits of stmilar remaining matunties

Debt securities in issue and subordinated habilibes

The fair value of short-term debt secunties 1n issue 1s approxmately equal o
their carrying value Fair value for other debt securities and for subordinated
llabilities 15 estirmated using quoted market pnces

Trading and other habiibes at fair value through profit or loss
Farr value s determined using valuation techmques based upon market prices

Liabuhties ansing from non-participating investment contracts

The value of the Group's non-participating investment contracts, all of which are
unit-inked, 1 contractually linked to the fair values of financial assets within the
Group's unitised mvestment funds and 1s determined using current unit prices
multiphed by the number of units attnbuted to the contract holders at the
balance sheet date Therr value 1s never less than the amount payable on
surrender, discounted for the required notice period where applicable

Financial commitments and contingent habilities

Financial guarantees are valued on the basis of cash premiums received The
Group considers that it is not meaningful to provide an estimate of the fair value
of other conlingent habihttes and financial commitments, given the lack of an
established market, the diversity of fee structures and the difficulty of separating
the value of the instruments from the value of the ovesall transaction Therefore
only financial guarantees are included 1n the following table
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47 Funancial nsk management {conbnued)

Camying value Farr valug
2006 2005 2006 2005
The Group Em £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 67,928 60,567 67,928 60,567
Denvative financial instruments 5,565 5,878 5,565 5.878
Loans and advances to banks 40,638 31,655 40,641 31,691
Loans and advances to customers 190,135 176,635 189,827 177,245
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 19,178 14,540 19,178 14,940
Investment properties 4,739 4260 4,739 4,260
Financial habilities
Deposits from banks 36,394 31,527 36,383 31,508

Customer accounts 140,767 131,350 140,688 131,332

Trading and cther habilities at farr

value through profit or loss 1,184 ~ 1,184 -
Denvative financial instruments 5877 6584 5877 6,584
Debt secunities in i1ssue 54,118 35,346 54,0670 39,352
Liabiliies ansing from non-

parhicipating mvestment contracts 24,370 21,839 24,370 21,839

Financial guarantees 49 - 49 -

Subordinated fiabilines 11,506 12,635 12,250 13,436
Carrying value Fair value
2006 2005 2006 2005

The Bank £m £m £m £m

Financial assets

Trading and other financial assets

at fair value through profit or less 8819 5924 8819 5924

Denvative financial instruments 5,665 6,050 5,665 6,050

Loans and advances to banks 86,588 86,090 86,591 85126

Loans and advances to customers 106,576 91,759 106,675 52,275

Avallable-for-sale financial assets 3,972 4503 3972 4503

Financial iabilities

Deposats from banks 44,070 37,973 44,059 37961

Customer accounts 127,938 115,505 127,929 115,523

Trading and other habilties at fair

value through profit or loss 1,184 - 1,184 -
Denvative financial instruments 6,405 7,212 6,405 7,212
Debt secunties n 1ssue 32,719 31,316 32,671 31,323
Financial guarantees 49 - 49 -
Subordinated liabiities 10,281 11,382 10921 12,034

48 Acquisitions

Durning 2006, the Group, through its Asset Finance subsidianes, acquired two
businesses engaged in consumer finance for a total consideration of
£16 mlkon, settled in cash Goodwill of £4 milion arose on these
acquisttions, no significant fair value adjustments were made

In 2005 the Group, through its subsidiary The Dutton-Forshaw Motor Company
Liruted, completed the purchases of the assets and trade of three separate
motor dealership businesses for a total consideration of £16 milen, settled in
cash Goodwill of £3 millien arose on these acquisiions, no significant fair
value adjustments were made
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49 Cash flow statements

a Change in operating assets The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Change in loans and advances to
banks (11,063) (1,319) (3,465) (10,953)
Change n loans and advances to
customers (14,069) (14,475} {15,431) (8,851
Change in trading assets (7,112) {88) (2,574) 5,837
Change in other operating assets 50 (1,202) (131) (55)

Change in operating assets

(32,194) (17,084) (21,601) (14,022)

b Change in operating liabilities The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Change i deposits from banks 5222 (8,168) 6,750 (9,418
Change n customer accounts 9,668 4,607 12,728 8,616
Change in debt secunties in )ssue 15,068 10,280 1,699 7,652
Change In trading habilites 482  (3,957) 382 (1,149)
Change in investment contract
habilities 3,795 6,094 - -
Change 1n other operating habibities (71) 1,179 380 195
Change in operating hiabitities 34,164 10,035 21,939 5,896
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49 Cash flow statements {continued)

¢ Nen-cash and other items The Group The Bark
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Depreciation of fixed assets 619 639 295 309
Revaluation of investment property (631) (430) - -
Allowance for loan losses 1,560 1,302 1,268 1,062
Write-off of allowance for
loan losses {1,299} (1,078) (1,146} (916)
Impairment of goodwili - 6 - -
Insurance claims 8,569 12,186 - -
Insurance ctaims paid (7,486) (8,265) - -
Custorner remediation provision - 150 8) 147
Custoster remediation paid {93) @n (76) (62)
Other provision movements {19) {7 {16) (5)
Net charge in respect of defined
benefit schemes 109 259 73 191
Contributions to defined
benefit schemes {556) {425) (432} (316)
Other non-cash items 175 {589) (695) 127
Total non-cash items 948 3,671 (737) 537
Interest expense on subordinated
labiliies 727 684 614 591
Profit on disposal of businesses - {50) - (57)
Other (43) (15) (32) 7)
Total other items 684 619 582 527
Non-cash and other items 1,632 4,290 (155) 1,064

d Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as shown In the batance sheet

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Cash and balances with central
banks 1,898 || 1,156 1,678 966
Less mandatory reserve deposiis’ (300)[__(288)|| (1693} (169)
1,598 868 1,509 797
Loans and advances to banks 40,638 || 31,655 ||86,588 |}86,090
Less amounts with a matunty of
three months or moere and balances
due from subsidiary undertakings  N16,798}}| (5,770)}K72,662) (69,580}
23,840 25,885 13,926 16,510
25,438 26,753 15,435 17,307

IMandatory reserve depasits are held with local central banks 1n accordance with
statutory requirements, these deposits are not available to finance the Group's
day-to-day operations

tncluded within cash and cash equivalents of the Group at 31 December 2006
15 £9,054 multion (2005 £8,860 milion) held wittun the Group's ife funds,
which 1s nat immediately available for use n the business
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49 Cash flow statements (continued)

e Analysis of changes in financing during the year

The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Share capial (including share
premium accournt)
At 1 January and 31 December 4,502 4,502 4,502 4,502
The Group
2006 2005
£m £m
Minonty interests
At 1 January 435 81
Exchange and other adjustments {4) -
Capital invested by minonty shareholders - 329
Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders (151) -
Minonty share of profit after tax 104 62
Payments to minonty shareholders (32) 3N
At 31 December 352 435
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Subordinated habihues and finance
leases
At 1 January 12,651 11,454 11,397 10,753
Exchange and cther adjustments (620) 70 {592) 68
Issue of subordinated habilities - 1,361 - 810
Repayments of subordinated
labihties {509) {(232) (509} (232)
Finance lease capital repayments - (2) - 2)
At 31 December 11,522 12,651 10,296 11,397
f Acquisition of group undertakings and businesses
The Group The Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m £m
investment in subsidhary - - 8 4
Net assets acquired
Loans and advances to custorners 11 - - -
QOther assets 1 8 - -
Tangible fixed assets - 8 - -
Other habilites - (3) - -
Goodwill ansing on consolidation 4 3 - -

Net cash outflow from acquisiions

in the year* 16 16 8 4
Payments to former members of

Scottish Widows Fund and Life

Assurance Society acquired dunng

2000 4 11 - -

Net cash outflow from acquisitions 20 27 8 4

*The consideration in respect of these acquisiions was settled tn cash in the year
concerned (see note 48)
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49 Cash flow statements (cortinued)

¢ Disposal and closure of group undertakings and businesses

The Group
2006 2005
£m £m
Loans and advances to customers - 803
Goodwil! - g3
Other net assets and habilines - (946}
- (50)
Profit on sale and closure of
businesses - 50
Cash and cash equivalent
consideration received - -
Cash and cash eguivalents
disposed of - -
Net cash outflow from disposals In
the year - -
Consideration for 2005 disposal
settled i cash 936 -
Adjustment to consideration
received In respect of prior peried
disposals - (4)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from
disposals 936 (4

The Bank

2006 2005
£m £m

- 803

- 110
- {970)
- (57)

- 57
936 -
936 -

72




* Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

50 Future developments

The following proncuncements wilt be relevant to the Group but were not effective at 31 December 2006 and have not been apphied in prepanng these financial

statements
Pronouncement Nature of change Effective date
{FRS 7 Financial Instruments  Drsclosures’ Consolidates the current financial nstruments disclosures  Annual periods beginning on or after
Into a singte standard and requires more detailed 1 January 2007 .
qualitative and quantitative disclosures about exposure to
nsks ansing from financial instruments
Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financiat Staternents  Introduces addittonal disclosures of the objectives, Annual pencds beginning on or after
- Capital Disclosures polictes and processes for managing capital, quantitative 1 January 2007
data about what the entity regards as capital, and
compliance with capital requirements
IFRIC 11 /FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Clanfies the application of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment  Annual penods beginang on or after
Transactions® 3 to certain share-based payment arrangements involving 1 March 2007
own equity struments and arrangements involving
equity instruments of a parent entity
IFRS 8 Operating Segments® * Replaces |AS 14 Segment Reporting and requires Annual penods beginneng on or after

reporting of financial and descnptive information about 1 January 2009
operating segments which are based on how financial
information 1s reported and evaluated internatly

! Includes consequential changes to other pronouncements
2 At the date of this report, these pronouncements are awatting EU endorsement
3 Pending EU endorsement, the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply these pronouncements in the 2007 financial statements

The full impact of these accounting changes 15 being assessed by the Group, none of these pronouncernents are expected to cause any matenal adjustments to the
financial statements

51 Approval of the financial statements and other Information

The financial statements were approved by the directors of Lioyds TSB Bank plc on 22 February 2007

Lloyds TSB Bank plc and its subsidiaries form a leading UK-based financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services
in the UK and 1n certain locatons overseas
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